
 1 

 Democratic Services 
White Cliffs Business Park 
Dover 
Kent  CT16 3PJ 
 
Telephone: (01304) 821199 
Fax: (01304) 872453 
DX: 6312 
Minicom: (01304) 820115 
Website: www.dover.gov.uk 
e-mail: democraticservices 
 @dover.gov.uk 

 
 
 

10 March 2014 
 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE will be 
held in the HMS Brave Room at these Offices on Thursday 20 March 2014 at 6.00 pm when 
the following business will be transacted.  
 
Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Jemma Duffield 
on (01304) 872305 or by e-mail at jemma.duffield@dover.gov.uk. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive  
 

Governance Committee Membership: 
 
Councillor T J Bartlett (Chairman) 
Councillor K E Morris (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor M R Eddy 
Councillor S J Jones 
Councillor A S Pollitt 
Councillor M A Russell 
 

 
AGENDA 
 

1 APOLOGIES   
 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 

2 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   
 

 To note appointments of Substitute Members.  
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be 

Public Document Pack



 2 

transacted on the agenda.  
 
Where a Member has a new or registered Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in a 
matter under consideration they must disclose that they have an interest and, 
unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance that the DPI is a 'Sensitive 
Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting.  The Member must 
withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any matter 
in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 
vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting 
them to do so.  If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware 
that they have a DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, 
subject to any dispensations, withdraw from the meeting. 
 
Where a Member is declaring an Other Significant Interest (OSI) they must also 
disclose the interest and explain the nature of the interest at the meeting.  The 
Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the 
consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and must not 
participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 
granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the 
public are permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering 
questions or giving evidence relating to the matter.  In the latter case, the Member 
may only participate on the same basis as a member of the public and cannot 
participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting in accordance with the Council's procedure rules. 
 
Where a Member does not have either a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or 
Other Significant Interest (OSI) but is of the opinion that for transparency reasons 
alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter under 
consideration, they can make a Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI). 
A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at the meeting and vote on the matter 
under consideration. 
 
Note to the Code: 
 
Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of 
outside bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member 
knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or 
where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. It should be emphasised that an 
effect on the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc 
OR an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc 
would both probably constitute either an OSI or in some cases a DPI.  
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 4 - 13) 
 

 To confirm the attached Minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 26 
September 2013, 11 November 2013 and 5 December 2013.  
 

5 INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY UPDATE REPORT  (Pages 14 - 43) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Head of Audit Partnership.  
 

6 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014-15  (Pages 44 - 50) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Head of Audit Partnership.  
 



 3 

7 INTERNAL AUDIT SELF-ASSESSMENT AGAINST THE PUBLIC SECTOR 
INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS  (Pages 51 - 54) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Head of Audit Partnership.  
 

8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT QUARTER THREE REPORT  (Pages 55 - 66) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Director of Finance, Housing and Community.  
 

9 CERTIFICATION REPORT 2012-13  (Pages 67 - 78) 
 

 To consider the attached report from Grant Thornton.  
 

10 CERTIFICATION WORK PLAN 2013-14  (Pages 79 - 86) 
 

 To consider the attached report from Grant Thornton.  
 

11 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE - MARCH 2014  (Pages 87 - 103) 
 

 To consider the attached report from Grant Thornton.  
 

12 AUDIT PLAN 2013-14  (Pages 104 - 120) 
 

 To consider the attached report from Grant Thornton.  
 

 
 
 

Access to Meetings and Information 
 

• Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its 
Committees and Sub-Committees.  You may remain present throughout them except 
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information. 

 

• All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on 
the front page of the agenda.  There is disabled access via the Council Chamber 
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer.  In addition, there is a PA 
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber. 

 

• Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes are normally published within five working 
days of each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are available for public 
inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.  Basic translations of 
specific reports and the Minutes are available on request in 12 different languages. 

 

• If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right 
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Jemma Duffield, 
Democratic Support Officer, telephone: (01304) 872305 or email: 
jemma.duffield@dover.gov.uk for details. 

 

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request. 



�

�������� 	
� ����������� 	
� ��������������	 ��

������ ����� ��� ���� �	������
�

����������
�����	���������������������������� �����!�����!�
�
"������#�
�
��������#� �	������	����$�%��������

�
�	������	��#�� &�'��	�����

��(�'����
��$�$	����
)���"	������
��)�(�������
�

)��	�"������#� ���'�*�����'��������+����,�-�������	���	��
���.��		��	�/��)����������������,�-�������	���	��
�

�

�����#� ����
�'0�����1��
.�����	��	
�2��������*	����������	��������
.�����	��	
�-	1��������
*����	
�2�������
*����	
�)�����"�����������3'����&����)�����"����������4�
�����+������,�.��	�����������	���
�

�5 � )"�+�-6'���
�
������7�����	���	�	���!��
�

�55� )""�68��'8���2��9%��6�9�'��'�%'(���
�
������7�����	�������������������!��
�

�5:� .'�+)()�6�8���2�68�'('����
�
������7�����	����������	���	
�������������������������!��
�

�5�� �689�'���
�
���� �������� 	
� ���� ������� ����� 	�� ��� $���� ��� � 7���� ����	1��� ��� �� �	������
���	����������������������������!��
�

�5;� ��8��6�9�6�8�('<6'��=�"(�<6�6�8��2��'�%'(��()6868-�����'(<'��8�
�"'�626������6��''���
�
����.�����	��	
�-	1�������������������������	���	������������������	����1��	��
�����
����	��������!�6��7������������������������	���	�������
	�����	������	����������
���	���������������7	�������1�����
	���������
����������	��	
�����
	�������������	
�����
�	������	�����������	
����������	�!�
�
��������7���	����������	�	�������������/�������.�����	��	
�-	1��������
	������
7	�/!��
�
('��+<'.#� �����������	���������	������	�����������������1���	����	�����

�	��������	��"�������)�������� �,�.�����	����/�������	��������
������������ !5��	� !���������)���0��!�

�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item No 4

4



�
�5>� ('<6'���2��*'���8��6�9�6�8��

�
����.�����	��	
�-	1������������	�������������	���	��������	�	������	����	������
�	� ���� �	������ ���� ����	�����	�� 	
� ����������	�� 
	�� ���� 6����������� "���	�� ����
�����������6�����������"���	�!�������	�	�����7	��������	�������������	���������
�����	
� ������?��������1��7�	
���������)��	7������������������/������ ����$	����
6�����������(���������	��"����!��
�
('��+<'.#� ����� ��� ��� ���	�������� �	� ���� �	������ ����� ���@���� �	� ����

1��7�� 	
� ���� '���� &���� $	���� 6����������� (���������	��
"����#�

�
� � 3�4� ����� ���� 6�����������"���	�� ��� ����� ��� ���	7�����

	
�AB�;����������������������������	����������1�������
������������ ��� ���� ����� ������ ��� �
� �C��� 7���� ��
�������	
���������	����!�

�
� � 3�4� ����� ��������������� 6�����������"���	�� ��� ����� ���

���	7�����	
�A� �����������������������������	�������
���1��� ���� ������������ ��� ���� ����� ����� ��� �
� �C���
7�������������	
���������	����!�

�
�

�5B� D9)(�'(+E�68�'(8)+�)9.6��9".)�'�('"�(���
�
���� *���� 	
� )����� "����������� 3'���� &���� )����� "����������4� ����	������ ����
D��������� 6�������� )����� 9������ (��	��!� ������ ���� ����� ��1��� ������� �	��������
������ ���� ����	��� ��0� 	
� 7����� ���� �����1��� ������������ )��������� +�1���� ���

	��	7��#�
�

�� .��������2����������-������

�� %���������	�������������'��������"�������

�� ���<�

�� .	1��������������<����	��6�
	�����	��)�����������

�� '&����1�����,�8��7	�/����������

�� �������F��	���	
��	��������������������)�����������
�
������1�����������3'&����1�����,�*	�����%���
���D���������������4�7���	
������	���
�	����?���������������������1��!��
�
6��������	
��������������������
	������?�������:�!�>����������������7��������1�����
���������������	
� ���������?�������	��>!B�G�������	������	�!��
�
('��+<'.#� ���������D���������6��������)�����9���������	�������	���!��
�
�

�:�� -()8���'(�626�)�6�8���(&�"+)8��
�
�������	���7��� ����	���������������		��	�/�	
�-�������	���	�!������	��������
7�����1���������������0��������������
	����������������� ����������� �7�������

	��	7��#�
�

5



�� *	����� ���� �	������ ��0� %���
���� ������� 3�����
�����	�� ��������� ,�
 �C��C� 4�

�� "		����	
�*	�������������(��������3�����
�����	�����������,���C�;C� 4�

�� 8���	����8	�=.	�������(�����(������3�����
�����	�����������,��;C�BC� 4�
�
6��7���������������7������	���������7����	����-�������	���	���	������������������
������������������/����	��	�����	������������/�!��
�
('��+<'.#� ���������-����������
�����	���	�/�"��������	���!��
�
�

�:�� ('<6'�� �2� �*'� ��98�6+H�� )(()8-'�'8��� 2�(� �'�9(68-� 268)8�6)+�
('�6+6'8�'��
�
���'�*����	
�-�������	���	������	�������������	�����	����������������������������

���� �	������ ���� ���1�	��� ���� ��� �������� 	
� ���� *	����� (�1����� )��	���� 3*()4�
��������7�����	���������������������	��!��
�
��������
�'0�����1����1����������	������������������	������������/����������1����
��
	������������
���	
�����*()�������������7����	�
������	
������	����	�!�*	7�1����
�����������������
��������	������7����	������������	������/�	����I�������������F�
����7	�������������������������
����������	������������������!�������������6�)+���
�	��������	��7	����������������
	����������	�����F����������	�����
	�����5C�:!�
�
6����������	
��	������	���7����	���������	�������������	�� ����)������	������	�F��
I8������� 8����	��F� �	������� ���� .�����	�� 	
� 2�������� *	����� �����	��������
?�����	���� 7������� ��� 7	���� ��� �	��� ���
��� �	� ����� ���� �	������	�� 	�� ���1����
����������������������������������������1����������/����������!���
�
('��+<'.#�� ������������	�������	���!�
�
�

�:�� ��� C�5�)9.6��2''�+'��'(��
�
��� '� *���� 	
� -����� ��	���	�� ���������� ���� ��� C�5� )����� 2��� ������� �	� ����
�	�������!� 6�� 7��� ������� ����� ���� 
��� 7��� ��� C�5� 7��� ��������� 
�	�� ����� 	
�
����C� !��
�
('��+<'.#� ���������)�����2��������������	���!��
�
�

�: � 268)8�6)+��9��9(8�����C� ��
�
����.�����	��	
�2������������������������	���	������2���������������������C� !�)��
������	���� ������ 7��� ����������� ��� ���� ������� �������� ���� ��1����� *	�����
(�1�����)��	�����3*()4��	����	��
	��	7�������������	��	
��	�������	������
���*()�
��������!� ���� �	�������� 7��� ��1����� ����� ������ 7��� �	� ����	1��� �	� ������ ����
�����
��������������7���	������	������.�����	����������� C�5!��
�
('��+<'.#�� ���������2���������������������C� ����	�������	���!��
�
�

�:5� )9.6��268.68-��('"�(���
�

6



��� '� *���� 	
� -����� ��	���	�� ���������� ���� )����� 2������� ���	���� �������� ����
�	�������� ��� �������� 	
� ������� ����� ���� ��/��� ������ ��� �������� 	
� ����*	�����
(�1�����)��	����3*()4!��
�
����	����	��	�������	�����F��2�����������������������������	������	��	��<�����
	��
�	����7������?����
���!��������7�����	������	���	���	�������������������7�����	�
�	� ��������� �

���!� ���� 		�� 7	�/� 	
� ���� �	������ ��� �	���� 7���� ���� ��7� ������
����	����7�����/�	7�����!�
�
6����������	
�����*()������
��������1��7�	
�-�������	���	��7��������������7�������
�	��������
	������
���������/���� ���7������	�=�	������ ����������������
��!�����������
����� �	�������������	���7���� �����	������������ ������	��������� ������������ �����
���� �	������ ���� ��/��� ��	���� ��1���� ���� 
	��	7��� ���� ��	����� 7���� �� ������ ����
������������ ���	��� ����� ���� ����� �	��������� ��� ��������� ��������� ���� �	�����!�
*	7�1�������-�������	���	�������	����	1�����������1�����	������	���������7����	�����
���	����	���	��	�
����	����
��������������	�!��
�
���� .�����	�� 	
� 2�������� *	����� ���� �	�������� ������� ����� ���� �	������ ����
�����1��� ��1���� 
�	�� �)"6�)� ���� ���� �	�����	�� 	
� ���� �	������ ���� ��1��7��� ����
����	���������������	�!��
�
('��+<'.#�� ���������)�����2�������(��	�������	���!��
�
�

�::� ��)�'�'8���2�)���98�������C� ��
�
����*����	
�2������������������������	���	����������������	
�)��	���������C� !�
�����	��������7�����
	�������������������������������������1������	����@��������
������
�����������)�����2��������������������7�����	1�����	����������������������

�	������*	�����(�1�����)��	���������
��!��
�
('��+<'.#� 3�4� ����� ����������������������	
�)��	����� 
	������C� �

3)������0� �4� ��� ����	1��� ���� ������ ��� ����
���������	
������	�������!�

�
� � 3�4� ����� �����	�������� ����	����� ������������� �	� ����

����+������	
�(�����������	��������������)������0��!�
�
�

�:�� �(')�9(E��)8)-'�'8��D9)(�'(��8'�('"�(���
�
����*����	
�2�����������	��������������������������������	���
	��D������������
��1����� ���� �	�������� ����� ���� �	������ ���� ��������� 7������ ���� ���������
��������������"�����������	���������������������������	�!�
�
�����	�����F�� ��=�	���� ��1��������� ��� 	
�  �� $���� ��� � 3����	0�������� A5!:��	��
��G�	
��	���� ��1��������4�������1���������7����6�1������3����	0��������A��!B��	��
;5G�	
� �	���� ��1��������4� ����	�����
	����� ������ ��������/!� �*	7�1���� ���� �	����
��������� �����1��� 
	�� ���� ?������� 	
� A5������7��� A������� ���	7� ���� ������ 
	�� ����
����	������ �	�����	�� ��� ���	���� ��������� ���������� 6�1������ ��1������ 
����������=
���
	���������������������!�
�
���� �	������ ���� �����1��� A::������ ���/� 
�	�� 6������� ��� �� ��0����� 	
� %�������
"	������9��.	����������'��	�!��
�

7



('��+<'.#�� ������������	�������	���!��
�
�

�:;� -�<'(8)8�'�+��)+���.'�('<6�6�8��
�
����.�����	��	
�-	1����������������������-	1��������+	�����	���(�1���	�����	��!�
���� �	�������� 7��� ��
	����� ����� ���� �	��� ��	���� �	������ ��������1��
��?����������� 	1�������� ����������� ���� ���������� ��	������� �	� ��	1���� ��

����7	�/�
	��������	�����������	���������	������	
���������!�
��
��������������������������� �	� �����	������� ��� �����	
� �	������� 
�	��-�����
��	���	��7���������������	��	
���/��������������	����!��
�
('��+<'.#� ��������������	���������	������	�����#�
�
� � 3�4� ����� ���� �������� �	��	����� -	1�������� +	����

�	���� 7����� ���	��	������ ���� (��/� ����������
�������� ���� ���� "��
	������� ����������
2����7	�/�������	����!�

�
� � 3�4� ����� ���� �������� �	��	����� -	1�������� +	����

�	��������	����!�
�
�

�:>� -�<'(8)8�'�)��9()8�'���)�'�'8���6.=E')(�9".)�'��
�
���� .�����	�� 	
� -	1�������� ���������� ���� -	1�������� )��������� ����������
���=E����9�����!��
�
('��+<'.#� �������������������	�����������!��
�
�
��������������������;!5����!�

8



�

�������� 	
� ����������� 	
� ��������������	 ��

������ ����� ��� ���� �	������
�

����������
�����	���������������	���������� ����!"���#�"�
�
$������%�
�
��������%� �	������	����&�'��������

�
�	������	��%�� (�)��	�����

��*�)����
+�,�$	������
��+�*�������
�

�

�����%� -�����	��	
�.	���������
,	�����	���	������	������
�����/������0�-��	�������,�##	���
-��	�������,�##	����

�����
�

 ��� +$�/�.1),��
�
+���#	�	��
	����������2������������
�	���	������	��,�&�&	���"��
�

 ��� +$$�1���)����3�,4',�1�4�)��)�')*,��
�
������2�����	�������������������"�
�

 ��� -)�/+*+�1��,��3�1��)*),���
�
������2�����	����������	���	
�������������������������"��
�

 � � *)51)���3��6)����,�1�4�1����
�
���� -�����	�� 	
� .	��������� #��������� ���� *����2� 	
� ���� �	��������	�� ��� �
�������7��� ������	�������2����+��������8�	
� �����	��������	��2�����#�	������ 
	�� ��
#�	�����	
�������������2"��
�
���� �	�������� 2��� ��
	����� ����� 2����� ���� *����2� ���	�#	������ �� ������� 	
�
���������
����������������������	��������	����������������2�����	�
�����������
�������#�	#	�����	�����2������2���������	���������	
������	������	#������"�
�
9�:�����+��������	
������	��������	��
�
����/	�������+����������������������������������	
���������	�����+��������	
�����
�	��������	���#������������������#����	
������	���	
��	�����"��������������	��������
������� ;�������� �����#������	�� 9'��7� �� -	�������:� ����� ���� ���� 	��� 2���� �	���� ���
�	����������	������#����	����������	
������	�����"��
�
9�:�$����  �*��#	���������� 
	��3�����	���0� ���	�#	����������������� ��<�����������

�	���<������	
����������������	��������	����������
�
�����	���������������	������������	
���������	�����	��������	�������������������
������� �#������ ��� ���� �	��������	�� �	� ��
����� ������	��� 	
� ���� �	������ ����
)=�������"� +� #���������	���� ������ ���� ����� ����� �	� ���� �������	��� 	
� ����
-�����	�� 	
� 3��������6	����� �����	�������� ���� ��� 2��� #�	#	���� ����� ����� ������
2	���������	#�������#����	
� ����*����2�	
� �����	��������	�����>� 
	��	�����	

�����
�������	��"��

Public Document Pack

9



�
9�:� $����>�0��	������$�	�������*������
�
���� �	������ $�	������� *����� ���� ����� ���� ���;���� 	
� �� ������� 	
� ������������
�������	�������������������������	�;�������	
������2�������*�����2����	��������
���������������2����������
���
	��#��#	�������2������##�	#�������	���7��#���������	����
��������	���#�	����������"�
�
9�:�$���� 8� 0� �	���� ���� $�	�	�	��� 9+����������� 
	�� �#��7��� ��� $�������

�	�������:�
�
���� �����2� #�	#	���� ����������� �	� �	��
�� ���� �������� �������	�� 2����� ����
���������	
� ����$��������	������������������=��������������������	�� �	�#������
#�������#��7���
	�������	���������������������2������������������������
������
	��
�	���������	�������
������������"��
�
�����	��������2����������� ��������� �	� �����	���	
�#�������>8��	#����	
� �������
��
�	��������	�����	#�����������#������	�������	�����?��2����������������	����������7���
�����������#�	#	��������������"��
�
*),�/5)-%�� ����� ��� ��� ���	�������� �	� �	������ ����� ���� *����2� 	
� ����

�	��������	�� ��� � ��� �##�	���� 9��������� ��	��� ��� $����  � ��� ������
���������9*��#	���������� 
	��3�����	��:���������#�	#	��������������
���	�#	���������	������	�����?���	��������	�"�

�
�
�
��������������������@" ��#�"�

10



�

�������� 	
� ����������� 	
� ��������������	 ��

������ ����� ��� ���� �	������
�

����������
�����	������������������������������� !���"�!�
�
#������$�
�
��������$� �	������	����%�&��������

�
�	������	��$�� '�(��	�����

��)�(����
*�%�%	����
��+�)�������
#����,���-.��"�����	
�+�*�#	�����/�
�

+��	�#������$� (�����0�����+��	������������	��-+��������/�1�2�������	���	��
��������		��	�,��+����������������3�2�������	���	��
�

�

�����$� 0����	
�4�������
0����	
�+�����#���������"�-(����'����+�����#���������"/�
��"����0����	
�+�����#���������"�-(����'����+�����#���������"/�
�����5������3����	�������*�""	���
�

�67� +#�5�2.(*��
�
+���"	�	��
	����������8��������9���
�	���	������	��+�*�#	�����!��
�
���������5������3����	�������*�""	������	���9����������"	�	����	
�����������	��
	
�4��������0	����������	����������������������	��	
�2	9�������!��
�

�6:� +##�.;��(;���4�*<&*�.�<�(��(�&()*��
�
.�����	�������8�����	������#�	�������)����=���	������	��#����,���8����""	������
���������������������
	���	������	��+�*�#	�����!��
�

�7�� �(�5+)+�.�;*��4�.;�()(*���
�
������8�����	����������	���	
�������������������������!��
�

�7�� �.;<�(*��
�
���������5������3����	�������*�""	�����9����������������������8	����������	����
��
�������	�������>��������!��
�

�7�� �)(+*<)?��+;+2(�(;��@<+)�()�����)(#�)���
�
����0����	
�4�������"��������������������������������@��������8	���"	��!�����
�	�������� 8��� ��9����� ����� ���� �	������ ���� ��������� 8������ ���� ���������
��������������#�����������	�����������������������"���	�!��
�
������8����� 
�9������"���	��������8�����&��������&��,��8����8�	�� �����	������
���� A�� �����	�� ��9������ ��1�	����� �	9��� ���	� B�	���	���C� 	�� ��"���C�� ������
�

����9�����������������	��	������	������9���������9������8������!�0	8�9��������
�	��������������������������	��������9�����������	��	�������
�9������"���	�!��
�

Public Document Pack

11



.�����"	�����	���D�����	��
�	���	������	����)�(���������0����	
�4���������9�����
����� ���� �	������ 8��� �>"�	���� 	"��	��� ��� ���"���� 	
� ���� ��������� .������� ������
8�����8��������������""�	>�����������
���"���!��
��
)(*�5E(�$� �����������"	�������	���!��
�
�

�7�� @<+)�()5?�.;�();+5�+<�.��<#�+�(�)(#�)���
�
����0����	
�+�����#���������"�����������"����0����	
�+�����#���������"�"���������
����@���������.��������+�����<"�������"	��!��
�
������ ���� ����� ������ .�������� +����� ��"	���� �	�"������ ������ ���� "���	��� 	��� 	
�
8����� �����9��� �� *����������� +��������� -('� *��9����� 1� �	������ ��>� )������	��
*�����/�����	�����)���	������+��������� -)���� �	�&���+""������	��/!����� ������
������ -('�*��9�����3�0	�����&���
���@���������������/�8����	��	
� ����������� 
	��
8������������������8����""�������!��
�
.�� ������	�� �	� ���� ������ �������� ���� �	������ ���� ����� �8������ �� *�����������
+�����������9���������"����	
�����5	�����	���	
��	�"	�����2	9���������8�����8���
	���	
�����"�������	
������	�����C��	9��������
����8	�,!��
�
����������	
�������������
	�����	���������""������	������������	

����������������
������� ����������� 
	���	�����������������8��� ������������9�������������	
� ����
�	�������� ��� ����� ���� �� ������� 	�� ������ 8���� 8	�,� ���� ���� ��"�����	�� 	
� ����
�	�����!� .��8���D�����	����8������������8������ ������	
���"����������8���� ��"����
����������������9����8������9��!��
�
)(*�5E(�$� -�/� �����������"	�������	���!�
�
� � -�/� ����� ���� ������	�� 	
� 4������� ���� ���� ������	�� 	
�

2	9����������� ��D������� �	�"�	9��������"����� �	� ����
��>�� ������� 	�� ���� "�	9���	�� 	
� ��
	�����	�� �	�
�������!��

�
�7=� 2�E();+;�(�����.��((�<#�+�(��

�
����(��������5����3�2�������	���	��"��������������"������	������	�������!��
�
�������� ���������� ���� F������� ������F� D�����	��� ��	���� ���"��
���� ����
���	���������8����� ���8������	����������������	������8�������������� ��������	�� ���
���"���� 	
� ���� 
	���	
� "��������	��	
� �	���	
� ���� ��
	�����	�� ���8��������� ����� ���
"�����"����
���������	�������������	����"��
��������
	�����	�����8	�������	
�����
���
�	�����������������"�����!��
�
)(*�5E(�$� -�/� ����������"���������	���!�
�
� � -�/� ����� 	

������ ��� ��D������� �	� "�	9���� ���"	����� �	�

����F�������������F�D�����	�������������"����	
�����
2	9���������	��������<"����!��

�
�7�� +;;<+5�+<�.��5(��()��

�

12



����(��������5����3�2�������	���	������	����������+������+�����5�����!�.��8���
������� ����� ���� ��������	���������	���8� ��
	�����	�� �	� �����"��9�	�����"��������� ���
	�����
	�����	������	�������!��
�
.�����"	�����	���D�����	��
�	���	������	����)�(����������	��������8�����
	�����
�����2����� ��	���	��8���� �����
����8���� �����	�����C�� "	����	�� ����� ���� �����
��� 	
�
0	����� )�9����� +��	���� -0)+/� 
����� �	� ���� 2������� 4���� 8��� ����!� �����
"	����	��8������

�������������0����	
�4������!��
�
0	8�9���� ���� ��"�������� 	
� �	���������� ���� 5	���� 2	9�������� -��52/� ����
8��������	������	�����C��������"����	
�����������	
������
����	���,���������	���
	������
�����
��� ���� ���� ��9��� 	
� �����
��� ���� ������ ��������� �� "	���������� ����� ������52�
�	������������"	8����	
������������	���	�
	�������������
���	
�
��������,��	�����0)+!�
�
����0����	
�4���������9������������� �����8����� ����+������*��������������	��
���	������ ���� 
������� �������	��� ��� )�9����� *�""	��� 2����� 
	�� �	���� ����	�������
������8�����������������	���"�������
	��������>���8	�
��������������!��
�
)(*�5E(�$� ���������+������+�����5����������	���!��
�
�
�������������������� !�6�"�!�

13



 

 

1 

Subject: QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 

Meeting and Date: Governance Committee – 20 March 2014 

Report of: Christine Parker – Head of Audit Partnership 

Decision Type: Non-key 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Purpose of the report: This report includes the summary of the work completed by the East 
Kent Audit Partnership since the last Governance Committee 
meeting, together with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 
31st December 2013 

Recommendation: That Members note the update report. 

1. Summary 

This report includes the summary of the work completed by the East Kent Audit 
Partnership since the last Governance Committee meeting, together with details of 
the performance of the EKAP to the 31st December 2013. 

2. Introduction and Background 

 
2.1 For each Audit review, management has agreed a report, and where appropriate, an 

Action Plan detailing proposed actions and implementation dates relating to each 
recommendation. Reports continue to be issued in full to each member of Corporate 
Management Team, as well as an appropriate manager for the service reviewed. 
Attached as Appendix 1 to the EKAP report is a summary of the Action Plans agreed 
in respect of the reviews covered during the period.  

 
2.2 Follow-up reviews are performed at an appropriate time, according to the status of 

the recommendation, timescales for implementation of any agreed actions and the 
risk to the Council. 

 
2.3 An Assurance Statement is given to each area reviewed. The assurance statements 

are linked to the potential level of risk, as currently portrayed in the Council’s risk 
assessment process. The assurance rating given may be Substantial, Reasonable, 
Limited or No assurance. 

 
2.4 Those services with either Limited or No Assurance are monitored, and brought back 

to Committee until a subsequent review shows sufficient improvement has been 
made to raise the level of Assurance to either Reasonable or Substantial. A list of 
those services currently with such levels of assurance is attached as Appendix 2 to 
the EKAP report. 

 
2.5 The purpose of the Council’s Audit Committee is to provide independent assurance 

of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control 
environment, independent review of the Authority’s financial and non-financial 
performance to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens 
the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process. 

 

Agenda Item No 5

14



 

 

2 

2.6 To assist the Committee meet its terms of reference with regard to the internal 
control environment an update report is regularly produced on the work of internal 
audit. The purpose of this report is to detail the summary findings of completed audit 
reports and follow-up reviews since the report submitted to the last meeting of this 
Committee. 

 
 SUMMARY OF WORK 
 
2.7 There have been thirteen Internal Audit reports that have been completed during the 

period, of which six reviews was classified as providing Substantial Assurance, three 
as Reasonable Assurance, one as Limited, and a further two resulted in a split 
assurance which was partially limited. The remaining piece of work was of a nature 
for which an assurance level is not applicable i.e. quarterly housing benefit claim 
testing. Summaries of the report findings and the recommendations made are 
detailed within Annex 1 to this report. 

 
2.8 In addition four follow-up reviews have been completed during the period, which are 

detailed in section 3 of the quarterly update report. 
 
2.9 For the nine-month period to 31st December 2013, 210.96 chargeable days were 

delivered against the planned target of 270, which equates to 78.13% plan 
completion. 

  
3 Resource Implications 
 
3.1 There are no additional financial implications arising directly from this report.  The 

costs of the audit work will be met from the Financial Services 2013-14 revenue 
budgets. 

  
3.2 The financial performance of the EKAP is currently on target at the present time. 
 
 Appendices 
 
 Appendix 1 – Internal Audit update report from the Head of the East Kent Audit 

Partnership. 
 
 Background Papers 

 

• Internal Audit Annual Plan 2013-14 - Previously presented to and approved at the 
14th March 2012 Governance Committee meeting. 

• Internal Audit working papers - Held by the East Kent Audit Partnership. 
 
 Contact Officer:  Christine Parker, Head of Audit Partnership  

15



APPENDIX 1 

 

3 

 
 

 

 
 
  

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT FROM THE HEAD OF THE EAST KENT AUDIT 
PARTNERSHIP.  

  
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
  
1.1 This report includes the summary of the work completed by the East Kent Audit 

Partnership since the last Governance Committee meeting, together with details of 
the performance of the EKAP to the 31st December 2013. 

 
2. SUMMARY OF REPORTS: 
   

             Service / Topic Assurance level 

2.1 Treasury Management  Substantial 

2.2 Capital  Substantial 

2.3 Budgetary Control  Substantial 

2.4 Coast Protection Substantial 

2.5 Service Contract Monitoring Substantial 

2.6 Environmental Health – Food Safety Substantial 

2.7 Insurance & Inventories of Portable Assets 
Substantial/ 
Reasonable 

2.8 Freedom of Information and Record Management  Reasonable  

2.9 East Kent Housing – Repairs and Maintenance  Reasonable 

2.10 
Environmental Protection – Contaminated land, pollution, air 
and water quality. 

Reasonable 

2.11 Cemeteries 
Reasonable/ 

Limited 

2.12 EK Services – ICT Software Procurement Limited 

2.13 
EK Services – Housing Benefit Quarterly Testing (Qtr 3 of 
2013-14) 

Not Applicable 

 

2.1      Treasury Management – Substantial Assurance. 

  
2.1.1 Audit Scope 

  
To ensure that various Treasury Management matters within the remit of the 
accountancy office are performed effectively & efficiently, in furtherance of the 
Council’s Policies. 
 

16



APPENDIX 1 

 

4 

2.1.2 Summary of Findings 
 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 
raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management 
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being 
available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or 
instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return.  

 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations.  

 
 The primary findings giving rise to this Substantial Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• There are appropriate policies and procedures in place for all areas of Treasury 
Management. 

• Treasury reports are made regularly to the Cabinet and Council. 

• The Treasury Accounting Technician uses robust information sources to inform 
decisions about where to invest, including credit ratings of institutions. 

• The movement of funds is carefully and securely managed, with individual log-ins 
and passwords required and second authorisers in place. 

 
 Minor scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas: 
 

• The staff that can also perform the Treasury Function may need refresher 
training as testing indicated that expected paperwork was missing when the 
Treasury Accounting Technician was on leave. 

 

2.2     Capital – Substantial Assurance. 

  
2.2.1 Audit Scope 

  
To provide an effective and efficient evaluation and approval procedure for capital 
projects and robust financial procedures to enable sufficient budgetary provision to be 
made available for their funding.     
 

2.2.2 Summary of Findings 
 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that the capital programme is 
prepared on an annual basis for consideration by the Executive before submission to 
the Council. The capital programme operates on a cash funded position with no new 
projects being approved to commence unless either the whole project cost can be 
financed through additional funding, sufficient capital receipts have been banked, or 
other savings in the programme have being identified. The new projects in the 
programme have been approved subject to financing being identified and the 
completion and approval of a project appraisal. 
 
The primary findings giving rise to this Substantial Assurance opinion are as follows: 

 

• There are appropriate policies and procedures in place for all areas of Capital 
Management. 

17



APPENDIX 1 

 

5 

• Capital reports are made regularly to the Cabinet and Council. 

• Regular reconciliations of income and expenditure are completed, and 
managers are regularly consulted about their projects. 

• The Capital Programme is put together through a robust procedure, involving 
CMT, Cabinet and the Council in order to ensure that funding is available and 
the projects that are added to the plan are the most appropriate. 

 

2.3     Budgetary Control  – Substantial Assurance. 

  
2.3.1 Audit Scope 

  
 To ensure that effective budgetary control is exercised across the Council on a 
corporate wide basis. 

 
2.3.2 Summary of Findings 
 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for providing appropriate financial information 
to enable Budgets to be monitored effectively. They must monitor expenditure 
against Budget allocations and report to the Executive on the overall position on a 
regular basis. The Chief Executive and Heads of Service are responsible for 
ensuring that budgetary control is properly exercised and for taking appropriate 
action to ensure that budgets are not exceeded. 

 
It is the responsibility of budget managers to control income and expenditure within 
their area and to monitor performance, through the Council's budget monitoring 
process approved by the Section 151 Officer. They should report on variances within 
their own areas, having regard to the parameters and timescales set by the Section 
151 Officer and the Scrutiny (Policy and Performance) Committee or its equivalent. 
They should also take any action necessary to avoid exceeding their Budget 
allocation and alert the Section 151 Officer to any problems. 

 
 Management can place Substantial Assurance on the system of internal controls in 

operation. 
 
 The primary findings giving rise to this Substantial Assurance opinion are as follows: 
 

• The budget and any variances are reported to the Council on a quarterly basis. 
The report also includes reasons for the variance and any changes to the budget 
that need to be authorised. 

• The annual budget setting process includes stages for approval from CMT, the 
Council and the Cabinet. 

• Each budget has a dedicated accountant, and codes set-up for the income and 
expenditure. 

• The budget monitoring system and e-Financials system are interfaced and 
reconciled regularly. 

 

2.4     Coast Protection – Substantial Assurance. 

  
2.4.1 Audit Scope 

  
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and     
controls established to ensure that the following business objectives are met. 
 

18



APPENDIX 1 

 

6 

• To reduce the risk to people and the developed and natural environment from 
flooding and coastal erosion by encouraging the provision of technically, 
environmentally and economically sound and sustainable defence measures; 

• To support the provision of adequate and cost effective flood warning systems. 

• To support the provision of adequate, economically, technically and environmentally 
sound and sustainable flood and coastal defence measures. 

• To discourage inappropriate development in areas at risk from flooding and coastal 
erosion. 

• To ensure that appropriate funding is obtained through the Environment Agency’s 
Medium Term Plan in accordance with the Shoreline Management Plan 
 

2.4.2 Summary of Findings 
  

Dover District Council has 33.2 km of shoreline within its boundaries. Of this, 25.9km 
is defended against erosion. The coast defences within the District are managed by a 
variety of parties although the Council retains certain legal powers as the operating 
authority for the area. The defended sections are managed as follows: 

 

• Folkestone Warren to Abbots Cliff - National Rail; 

• Shakespeare Beach - National Rail; 

• Dover Harbour - Dover Harbour Board; 

• St. Margaret's Bay - Dover District Council; 

• Kingsdown Rifle Range - Ministry of Defence; 

• Kingsdown to Sandown Castle, Deal - Dover District Council; and 

• Sandown Castle, Deal to Sandwich Bay - Environment Agency. 
 

 The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial assurance opinion in this area re 
as follows: 

 

• There is a clear Flood and Coastal Defence Policy that is available to all staff and 
the general public. 

• The Council has effective flood plans in place. 

• The Council has adopted and follows the Shoreline Management Plan for the 
area. 

• Yearly submissions are made to the Environment Agency for funding in respect 
of ongoing and planned projects. Other sources of funding are also considered. 

• Planned inspections are carried out yearly, with additional inspections taking 
place as required based on weather conditions. 

• The Council fulfils its obligations with regard to environmental considerations. 
This is mainly achieved by following the Shoreline Management Plan. 

• Appropriate consideration is made of flooding and coastal protection when 
considering planning applications. 

 
 Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas: 
 

• The policy appears to be very slightly out of date, and it makes reference to 
organisation’s old names and policies that have since been superseded. 

 

2.5     Service Contract Monitoring – Substantial Assurance: 

  
2.5.1 Audit Scope 

  

19



APPENDIX 1 

 

7 

To evaluate the management and monitoring of a sample of contracts across Council 
departments with a view to ensuring that the contract terms and conditions are 
adequately monitored and managed and result in the Council receiving the highest 
levels of performance from its contractors. 
 

2.5.2 Summary of Findings 
 
 Dover District Council maintains a contract register that includes contracts above 

£10,000. For the purpose of this review four contracts were selected and testing 
undertaken to ascertain how adequately these contracts are managed and 
monitored. The procurement process was not examined as part of this review. 

 
 The four contracts reviewed were as follows: 
 

1 – Cleaning and Routine MTC of Public Conveniences; 
2 – Cleaning Whitfield Offices; 
3 – Lift Servicing Agreement; and 
4 – Platinum Plus Support Contract for Car Parking Equipment. 

 
 The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• The level of monitoring is appropriate for each of the contracts reviewed. 

• Expenditure has been well monitored for each contract and variations to the level 
of service required has been adequately controlled. 

• Monitoring of each contract is undertaken regularly and good contact is 
maintained between the Council and each contractor. 

 

2.6    Environmental Health Food Safety – Substantial Assurance: 

  
2.6.1 Audit Scope 
  
 To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and 

controls established to promote and maintain food safety within the district through 
effective registration and inspection of all food businesses, investigation of food 
complaints, enforcement of the Food Hygiene Regulations and associated legislation, 
offering advice and guidance and the promotion and administration of the Food 
Hygiene Rating Scheme. 
 

2.6.2 Summary of Findings 
 
 With the implementation of the new Food Hygiene Rating Scheme in 2011, the 

Council signed an agreement with the FSA to implement the scheme and to follow 
the ‘Brand Standard’.  Food premises are rated from 0 to 5 for their food compliance 
with legal requirements.  As a result of an inspection a rating is given and this is 
uploaded to the Food Standards Agency Website and published for the public to see. 

 
 The table below shows the ratings of food premises within the Dover district. The 

total number of premises rated below a category 3 has reduced from 40% in April 
2012 to 20% as at February 2014.  A significant amount of work is undertaken by the 
Public Protection Team (Environmental Health) to work with the food business 
operators where the rating is low. 

 

Premise Rating April 2012 April 2013 Feb 2014 

20



APPENDIX 1 

 

8 

0 4 1% 2 1% 3 1% 

1 47 7% 27 3% 22 2% 

2 42 6% 39 4% 35 4% 

3 171 26% 180 20% 136 14% 

4 189 29% 248 28% 256 26% 

5 202 31% 390 44% 519 53% 

Total no of 
premises 

655 886 971 

 
 The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• Procedure notes have been created to assist in all aspects of the food safety 
process and these are regularly reviewed to ensure that they reflect current 
working practices and legislation; 

• Comprehensive evidence and notes are recorded on M3 to provide a clear trail of 
the action carried out; and 

• Effective processes and controls have been implemented to ensure that all 
aspects of food safety are dealt with efficiently. 

 

 2.7  Insurance & Inventories of Portable Assets – Substantial/Reasonable 
Assurance. 

 
2.7.1 Audit Scope 
   
 To ensure that sufficient insurance coverage is in place for the Council to limit the 

risks that face the authority in carrying out its many and varied functions. 
 

2.7.2 Summary of Findings 
 
 Management can place Substantial Assurance on the system of internal controls in 

operation for the insurance function and Reasonable Assurance on the system of 
internal controls in operation for inventories or portable assets. 

 
Insurance 

 
 The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• The level of insurance cover was appropriate and adequate; 

• The insurance arrangements were well managed; 

• All property and land tested from the asset register was covered; 

• Claim monitoring processes and claim management was well documented; and 

• The links between the Corporate Services Officers and the Insurance Broker was 
robust. 

 
 Small scope for improvement was identified in the following areas: 
 

• A regular check by an independent employee of the physical items listed on the 
inventory was not currently carried out; and 

• The amount of detail captured within the insurance claims records could be 
improved. 

 

21



APPENDIX 1 

 

9 

Inventories of Portable Assets 
 

It was established that there are four categories of portable assets: Mobile Phones 
and Tablets, Computers and Laptops, Motor Vehicles, and Specialised Equipment 
taken away from the premises on a regular basis.  

 
The primary findings giving rise to the Reasonable Assurance opinion in this area are 
as follows: 

 

• The methods for recording changes in inventories of mobile phones, computers 
and tablets and motor vehicles was adequate; and 

• Records were up to date and accurate. 
 
 Some scope for improvement was identified in the following areas: 
 

• The links between Heads of Service and the Corporate Services Officer needed 
strengthening to capture changes in inventory for specialised equipment and 
equipment removed from the premise; and on a regular basis to ensure 
adequate cover is in place; and 

• Expectations upon the role of managers should be further clarified. 
 

2.8     Freedom of Information & Record Management -  Reasonable Assurance. 

  
2.8.1 Audit Scope 

  
 To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and 

controls established to ensure that the Council fulfils its statutory obligations 
regarding requests for information from the public under the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 (FOIA) and Environmental Information Regulations 2004(EIR) and to 
ensure the authenticity, reliability, integrity and usability of the Council’s records. 
 

2.8.2 Summary of Findings 
 

There has been a steady increase in Freedom of Information requests rising from 
107 in 2007 to 912 in the year to date.  Despite this increase the success rate for 
completions within 20 days has remained relatively static at around 88% and 
increasing in the current year to 94%. 

 

22



APPENDIX 1 

 

10 

 

  
 Management can place Reasonable Assurance on the system of internal controls in 

operation for the responses to requests for information and FOI/EIR staff awareness 
of the rules covering refusals to give information.  

 
 The primary findings giving rise to the Reasonable Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• The scheme was properly designed to comply with the Information 
Commissioner’s model scheme and subsequently approved by the Council; 

• There is clear guidance available to the public on the Internet about how to 
request information; 

• Requests are dealt with professionally, generally in a timely manner and in 
line with ICO guidance; 

• Supporting documentation for each request and response was generally 
good; and 

• Staff in the FOI/EIR team are experienced and have easy access to relevant 
guidance notes. 

 
 Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas: 

 

• The Publication Scheme hyperlinks on the Council website did not function at 
the time of the audit; and 

• Performance data was inaccurately published on the Internet. 
 

Management can also place Reasonable Assurance on the system of internal 
controls in operation for Records Management process. 

 
 The primary findings giving rise to the Reasonable Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• The Council has a Record Management Strategy (RMS) document available 
to staff; 

23



APPENDIX 1 

 

11 

• The RMS has been recently reviewed in 2013; and 

• Reminders on the need to dispose of archived material were sent to service 
managers as part of The Big Clear Up in 2013. 

 
 Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas: 
 

• Only two of the sample of six Service Managers selected as part of this audit 
have provided evidence as part of this audit that they are complying with the 
terms of the RMS surrounding the tracking and destruction of records. 

• The training records for staff show that over the past 3 years just 14 staff 
have taken the training course available through the e-learning facility. 

 

2.9    East Kent Housing Repairs & Maintenance – Reasonable Assurance. 

  
2.9.1 Audit Scope 

  
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and 
controls established to ensure that that each Councils’ housing stock is well 
maintained, providing a good level of service to Council tenants (which demonstrates 
value for money and tenant participation), in partnership with the Councils’ 
contractors and in accordance with each Councils’ policy and procedures. 
 

2.9.2 Summary of Findings 
 
 The East Kent Housing Service provides repairs and maintenance support for 16125 

rented properties and 1367 leaseholder properties utilising a Revenue budget of 
£14.5m and a Capital budget of £12.8m.  The number of individual jobs registered 
within the various databases is not directly comparable because of the way the local 
systems work; some include works done as part of the basic price per property 
contract whereas others do not.  Bearing this variable in mind the sample size from 
which testing was undertaken was in excess of 31,000 recorded jobs.  

 From the testing completed during this review most of the necessary controls of the 
systems in place are managed and achieved. There is however evidence of non-
compliance with some of the key controls around the inspection of completed jobs 
and independent validation of Performance Indicators resulting in some risk to the 
achievement of the system objectives.  

 
  The audit has looked at the service provided to East Kent Housing by the main 

responsive repairs contractor at each site and has found a number of common 
themes which affect each site equally, as well as individual site specific issues.  
Mears provided the works for three sites and during the course of the audit assumed 
responsibility for the fourth when they took over Morrison.  There are no items of a 
confidential nature which would need to be redacted when the report is circulated to 
each of the client officers and therefore it is logical to issue just the single report as it 
provides both a view on where the service is and an insight into the difficulties faced 
by EKH in utilising the current systems inherited from the local Councils. 

 
 Relevant staff have received training on the importance of complying with Financial 

Procedure Rules (FPRs) and Contract Standing Orders.  An authorised signatories 
list is available in two formats, one for managed budgets and the other for EKH 
expenditure these do not reflect accurately the current staff or their titles. A new 
procedure for obtaining quotations was drafted with different financial limits and was 
designed to enhance and strengthen normal procurement rules.  These were trialled 
but suspended pending further review. 

24



APPENDIX 1 

 

12 

 
 The most significant problem would appear to be the various databases used for 

storing repairs and maintenance data for each Council, how current the information is 
and their ability to effectively communicate with the database systems used by the 
main contractor Mears.  At present the services are operating within the constraints 
placed upon them at initial start-up and there may be interim fixes available to 
overcome these handicaps but the ultimate long term aim should be to explore the 
feasibility of a single operational database weighing the benefits which would be 
obtained against the cost of implementation.  Any new system would, logically, be 
able to hold current and all historic data and be able to communicate efficiently with 
any supplier systems. 

 
 The influence of separate identities amongst the individual Councils when EKH took 

up their role is reflected in the inconsistency of approach adopted where major works 
require tenants to be decanted.  The situation could be improved by issuing current, 
relevant guidance and advice on amounts payable. 

 
 Inspections of completed repairs are a requirement of the current maintenance 

contracts and are a valuable management aid to test the quality of works undertaken 
by the contractors.  During the reviewed period the documentation supporting the 
inspections was limited and the number of inspections undertaken was quite 
substantially below the anticipated level with one site not completing any; the lack of 
compliance with this key control exposes the overall process to significant risk.  
Whilst improvements in the inspection regime were being planned there remain a 
number of issues still to be addressed.   

 
 Customer satisfaction information on responsive repairs is collected by the main 

contractor and statistical data on performance is then supplied to EKH.  There is 
limited independent verification of satisfaction levels undertaken by EKH and 
therefore the reliability of the data could be called in to question.  Consideration 
should be given to establishing an in-house system to test the validity of the 
satisfaction levels reported.  

 
 Each service has access to a computerised system which has the facility to record 

details of all responsive repairs.  The same system is also able to hold details of the 
attributes of each property i.e. the number of bedrooms, wiring, heating, roofing, 
kitchen etc together with the date of installation and refurbishment.  The use of these 
two sets of data, if accurate, would provide a picture for each property which could 
drive and inform the planned maintenance schedule.  Neither set of data is fully up to 
date.  As a result separate spreadsheets have been developed to hold the planned 
programme.  By ensuring the accuracy of base data and using the four systems in 
place the process of planning should be enhanced and simplified. 

 
 The audit found that there is neither obvious nor consistent evidence of overcharging 

for responsive repairs work, with the exception of scaffold charges at SDC and DDC 
which at the time of the audit were under discussion with a view to obtaining refunds.  
These refunds have now been obtained.  Nevertheless, there are working practices in 
use which are not consistent with satisfactory controls.  There was evidence that 
contract clauses were being interpreted differently at separate sites, of verbal orders 
being placed and of a lack of rigor in challenging contractors’ assessment of non PPP 
works.  Approval for one contractor to spend up to £250 more per job than the base 
price without reference to EKH staff effectively doubled the price baseline.  Such 
practices create an environment in which overcharging could occur and should be 
addressed. 

 

25



APPENDIX 1 

 

13 

 The process for budgetary control is in place and practiced, however, the action taken 
to address possible overspends did not appear to be documented during the audit 
period.  In addition the known error rate for estimates was not taken into account 
when budgets were prepared. 

 
 Management Response 
 
 We believe that we have made significant progress in the management of the repairs 

service in the last 18 months, especially in regard to budget management and 
compliance with contract standing orders. It is pleasing that this is recognised in the 
findings.   

 
 Two common themes underpin a number of the other findings in the report. The 

inconsistency and variance in approach to maintenance of the four Councils and the 
overriding need for a single IT system to adequately support the maintenance 
service.  These weaknesses have been highlighted to the Councils and a detailed 
costed business case to move to a single IT system has been presented to them.  
Proposals to move to maintenance contracts that are better aligned were presented 
to the Councils in May 2013. These proposals not only would improve efficiency but 
would deliver significant savings and added value to the Councils.    

 
 Agreement by the Councils to a single IT system and to revised contracts will, we 

believe, significantly improve performance and efficiency.  We also note the report 
finds no evidence of over-charging by the contractor.  We believe that disputes with 
contractors are a recurrent and wasteful feature of a schedule of rates contracts and 
we have made proposals to the Councils that would reduce these kinds of disputes in 
future. 

 
 A number of recommendations refer to the validation of performance data provided 

by the contractor. We would question whether increasing resources to achieve this 
would represent value for money for the councils and would make a significant 
difference to the quality of service received by tenants.  We already had plans in 
place to do some verification testing of tenant satisfaction with the creation of a new 
Customer Insight function.  Checks on the quality and quantity of contractors work 
takes place through the system of post inspections.  

 
 The only outstanding performance area that could be checked is the timeliness of 

repairs.  However, it is difficult to check this data without a reliance on the contractors 
system and data they have input.  The vast majority of repairs are now carried out by 
appointment at a time agreed with the tenant and there are other monitoring 
arrangements in place for critical activities such as works to void properties.    

 

2.10   Environmental Protection – Contaminated Land, Pollution, Air and Water Quality 
– Reasonable Assurance. 

  
2.10.1 Audit Scope 

  
To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and 
controls established by the Council in the following areas of environmental protection: 

 

• Air Quality Management and Air Quality Monitoring; 

• Contaminated land; 

• Polluting Industrial Processes (Pollution prevention and control regime); 

• Bathing Water quality and 

26



APPENDIX 1 

 

14 

• Drinking Water. 
 
2.10.2 Summary of Findings 
 
 The areas reviewed in this audit (Contaminated Land, Pollution, and Air and Water 

Quality) carry out functions to ensure that land, air and water quality does not harm 
the quality of lives across the district. This is carried out by following legislation and 
having internal processes in place that assist officers in being able to meet these 
objectives.     

  
 The primary findings giving rise to the Reasonable Assurance opinion in this area are 

as follows: 
 

• There are well established environmental permitting processes and inspection 
routines; 

• The last air quality updating and screening assessment determined that a 
detailed assessment for air quality within Dover District is currently not necessary 
for any pollutant; 

• Effective air quality monitoring processes are in place; and 

• Resilient procedures are in place to send any complicated contaminated land 
issues to Swale Borough Council for them to deal with as Dover District Council 
does not have a Contaminated Land Officer in post    

 
 Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas: 
 

• The air quality management area order documentation that is on the Dover 
District Council website needs to be reviewed to ensure that all 3 AQMO`s are 
being shown. (At the time of the review the auditor could not locate the 
documentation / information for the one by the Dover Town Hall could not be 
located). and 

• The Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy need to be updated to take into 
account any changes to legislation and to ensure that procedure notes are 
reviewed. This has not been carried out since 2007 and needs to reviewed to 
include changes in legislation from April 2012 (Management were already aware 
of this issue). 

 

2.11     Cemeteries – Reasonable/Limited Assurance: 

  
2.11.1 Audit Scope 
   
 To ensure that the Council’s cemetery activities are undertaken efficiently and 

effectively in accordance with Council policy and procedures. 
 

2.11.2 Summary of Findings 
 
 The Council is the burial authority for the seven cemeteries and 22 closed 

churchyards located within the district. On average the Council deals with 
approximately 169 burials each year, which are delivered in partnership with English 
Landscapes who maintain the cemeteries and attend burials on behalf of the Council 
as part of a ten-year contract, which is due to expire in 2016. The main focus of the 
audit was on the effectiveness of the income collection arrangements and the 
adequacy of the systems and business continuity arrangements. 

 

27



APPENDIX 1 

 

15 

 From the testing completed during this review most of the necessary controls of the 
systems in place are managed and achieved which would normally lead us to 
conclude reasonable assurance in this area.  There is however an absence of 
strategic direction of the service over the medium to long term resulting in a more 
than marginal level of risk to the achievement of the system objectives this leads us 
to conclude a partially Limited Assurance opinion. 

 
 The primary findings giving rise to the Reasonable Assurance opinion are as follows: 
 

• All fees, charges and collection arrangements were examined and were correctly 
administered; 

• Processes for income collection are extremely robust; 

• The Council is compliant with all the major pieces of legislation; 

• The health and safety arrangements were adequate; and 

• Records examined were well documented, 
 
 Scope for improvement was however identified in the following key areas, and it is 

these that lead us to conclude a partially Limited Assurance opinion: 
 

• Contract monitoring processes should be reviewed; 

• The Council is cleverly finding small pockets of burial space in its cemeteries, 
which is commendable; however the lack of burial capacity within the Dover 
Cemeteries is an issue that needs to be resolved by management in order to 
provide strategic direction over the medium to long-term future of burials in the 
district; 

• The bespoke burial system has limited capability; for instance there are a 
number of issues relating to searching for burial plots and searching for named 
persons and it is unable to produce a wide variety of meaningful management 
information which could help assist with decision making; 

• The Deed of Grants issue and monitoring processes could be more robust; 

• The controls in place for identifying and dealing with non-residents within the 
Dover District could be improved; and 

• The cemeteries webpage should include a link to all the approved fees and 
charges in the interest of transparency.  

 

2.12  EK Services –  ICT Software Procurement - Limited Assurance 

 
2.12.1 Audit Scope 

 
To ensure that the procedures and internal controls established by EK Services are 
sufficient to provide the level of service required by the partner Councils with regard 
to the control and administration of software procurement and that these procedures 
are being complied with, both by officers of EK Services and the partner councils. 
  

2.12.2 Summary of Findings 
  
 Management can place Limited Assurance on the system of internal controls in 

operation. This is mainly due to the lack of readily available guidance to officers 
advising that all ICT purchases should be made via EK Services ICT team and also 
that some instances have been found of service areas purchasing their own software 
without reference to ICT which reinforces the lack of guidance comment above.  

 

28



APPENDIX 1 

 

16 

 The concern of management was that purchases of software were being made by 
individual services outside of the arrangements contained within the existing three 
way collective agreement in place for each council.  This states that ICT will “provide 
associated procurement administration including all quotations, ordering, invoicing 
and contract management”.  It is clear from this that software purchasing should be 
conducted through ICT, what is not clear is that annual licence renewals also fall 
within this category.  The collaborative arrangement for East Kent Housing is less 
comprehensive in its wording.  By purchasing outside of the agreement councils 
could find that the software is unnecessary, too expensive, unsupported or not fit for 
purpose.   

 
 The information available to staff on the intranet at each site advising on the route to 

follow for software purchasing was not clearly signposted and insufficient in content to 
ensure that purchases were made through the correct channel.   Canterbury City 
Council recognised that there may be an issue and have developed a new formal 
procedure to be adopted.  Staff were advised through a directive issued on 27 August 
2013.  It was noted that there are still insufficient links to the new guidance through 
the CCC intranet.  Generally the information available to staff across the three 
Councils and EKH is an area where some improvements are needed. 

 
Test sampling identified some examples of software purchases that had been made 
outside of the proper arrangements.  The general reasoning behind these separate 
arrangements was that ICT did not support the software and were not therefore 
involved and/or that there was only one supplier for a bespoke system.  Although the 
number of cases identified was not of sufficient quantity to confirm that the practice 
was as widespread as feared, the practice needs to be restrained and brought in to 
line with the arrangements set out in the collective agreements. 

 
 Purchases undertaken by the ICT Business Unit conformed to the financial 

procedures applicable to each authority.  Purchases made by the local service units 
similarly complied with the local financial procedure rules. 

 
 Management Response 
  
 EK Services will liaise with client officers in each authority to ensure the 

recommended changes are actioned within the specified timescales. (Head of ICT - 
EK Services). 

 

 2.13     EK Services Housing Benefit Quarterly Testing (Quarter 3 of 2013-14): 

  
2.13.1 Over the course of the 2013/14 financial year the East Kent Audit Partnership will be 

completing a sample check of council tax, rent allowance, rent rebate and Local 
Housing Allowance benefit claims to support the External Auditor’s verification work. 

  
 For the third quarter of 2013/14 financial year (October to December 2013) 20 claims 

including new and change of circumstances of each benefit type were selected by 
using Excel software to randomly select the various claims for verification. 

   
 In total 20 benefit claims were checked and of these 19 (95%) were found to have 

passed the criteria set by the former Audit Commission’s verification guidelines. One 
claim was also found to contain two data quality errors; however these have no effect 
on the subsidy claim or the amount payable to the claimant. The issues have been 
raised with the Quality Team and corrective action has been taken to amend the 
claims.   

29



APPENDIX 1 

 

17 

 
3.0 FOLLOW UP OF AUDIT REPORT ACTION PLANS: 
 

 
3.1 As part of the period’s work, three follow up reviews have been completed of those 

areas previously reported upon to ensure that the recommendations previously made 
have been implemented, and the internal control weaknesses leading to those 
recommendations have been mitigated.  Those completed during the period under 
review are shown in the following table. 
 

Service/ Topic  Original 
Assurance 

level 

Revised 
Assurance 

level 

Original 
Number 
of Recs 

No of Recs 
Outstanding 

a) 

Members’ Code of 

Conduct & 

Standards 

Arrangements 

Substantial Substantial 
H 
M 
L 

0 
2 
2 

H 
M 
L 

0 
1 
0 

b) 

Officers’ Code of 

Conduct and 

Whistleblowing  

Reasonable Substantial 
H 
M 
L 

1 
11 
1 

H 
M 
L 

1 
7 
0 

c) Data Protection 
Reasonable
/Limited 

Reasonable 

H 
M 
L 

13 
2 
0 

H 
M 
L 

6 
0 
0 

d) 

EK Services – ICT 
Network Security Substantial Substantial 

H 

M 

L 

1 

0 

2 

H 

M 

L 

1 

0 

0 

 
3.2 Details of each of the individual high priority recommendations outstanding after 

follow-up are included at Appendix 1 and on the grounds that these 
recommendations have not been implemented by the dates originally agreed with 
management, they are now being escalated for the attention of the s.151 Officer and 
Members of the Governance Committee. 
The purpose of escalating outstanding high-risk matters is to try to gain support for 
any additional resources (if required) to resolve the risk, or to ensure that risk 
acceptance or tolerance is approved at an appropriate level.   

  
4.0 WORK-IN-PROGRESS: 
 
4.1 During the period under review, work has also been undertaken on the following 

topics, which will be reported to this Committee at future meetings: Performance 
Management, Leasehold Services, Planning, Homelessness, Rent Collection and 
Debt Management, Payroll, Employee Benefits-in-Kind, Housing Benefit 
Overpayments, Housing Benefit Fraud Investigations, Business Rates, Main 
Accounting System, Debtors, and ICT Change Controls.  

 
5.0 CHANGES TO THE AGREED AUDIT PLAN: 
 
5.1 The 2013-14 Audit plan was agreed by Members at the meeting of this Committee on 

14th March 2013. 
 
5.2 The Head of the Audit Partnership meets on a regular basis with the Section 151 

Officer to discuss any amendments to the plan. Members of the Committee will be 

30



APPENDIX 1 

 

18 

advised of any significant changes through these regular update reports. Minor 
amendments have been made to the plan during the course of the year as some high 
profile projects or high-risk areas have been requested to be prioritised at the 
expense of putting back or deferring to a future year some lower risk planned 
reviews. The detailed position regarding when resources have been applied and or 
changed are shown as Appendix 3. 

 

6.0 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION: 
  
6.1 There were no other new or recently reported instances of suspected fraud or 

irregularity that required either additional audit resources or which warranted a 
revision of the audit plan at this point in time. 

 
7.0 INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE  
  
7.1 For the nine-month period to 31st December 2013, 210.96 chargeable days were 

delivered against the planned target of 270, which equates to 78.13% plan 
completion. 

  
7.2 The financial performance of the EKAP is currently on target at the present time. 
  
7.3 As part of its commitment to continuous improvement and following discussions with 

the s.151 Officer Client Group, the EKAP has improved on the range of performance 
indicators it records and measures. The performance against each of these 
indicators for Quarter 3 of 2013-14 is attached as Annex 4.  

 
7.4 The EKAP introduced an electronic client satisfaction questionnaire, which is used 

across the partnership.  The satisfaction questionnaires are sent out at the 
conclusion of each audit to receive feedback on the quality of the service.  Current 
feedback arising from the customer satisfaction surveys is featured in the Balanced 
Scorecard attached as Annex 4. 

. 
Attachments 

  
 Annex 1 Summary of High priority recommendations outstanding after follow-up. 
 Annex 2 Summary of services with Limited / No Assurances 
 Annex 3   Progress to 31st December 2013 against the agreed 2013/14 Audit Plan. 
 Annex 4   EKAP Balanced Scorecard of Performance Indicators to 31st December 

2013. 
 Annex 5    Assurance statements 
 

31



 

19 

SUMMARY OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING OR IN PROGRESS AFTER FOLLOW-UP – ANNEX 1 

Original Recommendation 
Agreed Management Action, Responsibility 

and Target Date 
Manager’s Comment on Progress Towards 

Implementation. 

Data Protection – January 2014: 

The Information and Computer Security 
Policy must be updated to include changes 
within current technology and consider 
introducing Net Consent for each member 
of staff to sign off confirming that they are 
aware of what is acceptable use of Council 
equipment.  

Agreed to be examined by Officer Working 
Group 
 
 
 
Proposed Completion Date: 30.06.13 
 
Responsibility: Officer Working Group 

A new policy is being created with EKS, 
however the responsible Officer has been off 
sick for a period of time.  They have returned 
recently and action will be taken to contact 
them to complete this task. 
 

Recommendation Outstanding with 
intent to implement 

 

 

Consideration needs to be given to how the 
Council’s IT equipment can be secured to 
prevent staff using non-authorised portable 
equipment and downloading personal data 

This can be done and can be tailored to 
machines [this one can do ‘x’, that one cannot].  
ICT can report against machines and are 
working toward a low level of monitoring [as it 
is resource intensive].  Detailed discussion with 
ICT should take place. 
 
Proposed Completion Date: June 2013 
 
Responsibility:  Technical Systems 
Manager EKS and Senior Management at 
DDC 

This is being considered as part of the ICT 
replacement project at DDC. 
 
 

Recommendation Outstanding with  
intent to implement. 

  

32



 

20 

SUMMARY OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING OR IN PROGRESS AFTER FOLLOW-UP – ANNEX 1 

Original Recommendation 
Agreed Management Action, Responsibility 

and Target Date 
Manager’s Comment on Progress Towards 

Implementation. 

Action must be taken to assist EK Services 
in compiling a comprehensive list of all 
laptops and USB memory sticks in use 
within the Council.   

EKS manage the secure memory sticks.  As 
such items are readily available from stationery 
catalogues, ICT could not police this.  This item 
should be linked to data theft above.. 
 
Proposed Completion Date: June 2013 
 
Responsibility: - Technical Systems 
Manager EKS 

As part of the Council’s ICT replacement 
project this is being considered. 
 

Recommendation Outstanding with 
 intent to implement. 

Once action has been taken to identify the 
officers with USB sticks, consideration 
should be given to labelling each one with a 
unique reference number so that they can 
be monitored and recovered when an 
officer leaves. 

Refer to above – as ICT cannot control 
procurement, we would be unable to police 
this. 
USB sticks are only one method of data theft; 
DVDs, email, printed matter, cameras and 
mobile phones are among others. 
 
Proposed Completion Date: - June 2013 
 
Responsibility:- Technical Systems 
Manager EKS 

As part of the Council’s ICT replacement 
project this is being considered. 
 

Recommendation Outstanding with 
intent to implement. 

Management must either amend the current 
policy to allow for home working using 
personal equipment or ascertain the 
number of staff that work from home 
regularly and supply them with the relevant 
equipment so that they can do this 
effectively and in compliance with the 
current policy. 

Not data protection, although agree to revisit 
policy. 
 
Proposed Completion Date:- 30.06.13 
 
Responsibility: - Officer Working Group 

This is to be included in the new policy 
currently being created with EKS. 
 

Recommendation Outstanding with  
intent to implement. 

33



 

21 

SUMMARY OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING OR IN PROGRESS AFTER FOLLOW-UP – ANNEX 1 

Original Recommendation 
Agreed Management Action, Responsibility 

and Target Date 
Manager’s Comment on Progress Towards 

Implementation. 

Where practicable action must be taken so 
that outside bodies who rent or otherwise 
occupy part of the Council building should 
only be able to access the part they use in 
and not the whole Council building.   

Not data protection, agree in principle, must 
evaluate the cost versus the risk. 
 
Proposed Completion Date:- 30.06.13 
 
Responsibility: - Officer Working Group 
 

Consideration will be given to introducing a 
clear desk policy and to add a screensaver on 
to the Council’s systems advising staff of data 
protection and physical security of personal 
information. 
 

Recommendation Outstanding with 
intent to implement. 

 

EK Services ICT Network Security – January 2014: 

Management should consider introducing a 
single comprehensive policy on network 
and information security for all partners to 
follow; this should include password control, 
remote access controls and 3rd party 
access.  Once approved this should be 
available to all staff on the appropriate 
intranet pages and new users should be 
emailed a copy or once netconsent is 
available the policy should be mandatory 
when they first log on to the system. 

 

An objective has been set to harmonise the 3 
LA policies into a common document that 
addresses the points specifically covered and 
others. 

Information Security, or rather Information 
Assurance [IA] and Governance – as this is 
wider than IT controls – is also being 
discussed with the Legal/Governance staff 
within the LAs.  This would be out of scope of 
this audit on ‘network security’ and is an LA 
responsibility supported by ICT.   

Responsibility / Completion Date 

Technical Systems Manager 

Dec 2013 

 

Follow Up Findings as at 24.01.2014 

The objective to harmonise LA policies was 
delayed by other priorities and has been rolled 
over to 2014 objectives.  A lot of work for PSN 
compliance has brought clients closer together 
operationally and this will aid the policy 
alignment; example being remote access and 
2FA tokens.  The role of SIRO within LAs has 
also been acknowledged and has allowed 
progress of related IAG work. 

Conclusion 

Progressing with intent to implement 

 

 

34



 

22 

ANNEX 2 
 

SERVICES GIVEN LIMITED / NO ASSURANCE LEVELS STILL TO BE REVIEWED 

Service 
Reported to 
Committee 

Level of 
Assurance 

Management Action Follow-up Action Due 

CSO Compliance June 2012 Limited 
On-going management action in 
progress to remedy the weaknesses 
identified. 

As part of planned audit in 2014-15 

EK Services – Software 
Licenses 

June 2013 Limited 
On-going management action in 
progress to remedy the weaknesses 
identified. 

Work in Progress – March 2014 

Absence Management  June 2013 Limited 
On-going management action in 
progress to remedy the weaknesses 
identified. 

As part of planned audit in 2014-15 

Cemeteries March 2014 
Reasonable/ 

Limited 

On-going management action in 
progress to remedy the weaknesses 
identified. 

Mid-2014 

 

35



 

23 

ANNEX 3 
PROGRESS AGAINST THE AGREED 2013-14 AUDIT PLAN. 

 
DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL: 
 

Review 
Original 
Planned 
Days 

 
Revised 
Planned 
Days 

 

Actual  
days to   
31-12-13 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

FINANCIAL SYSTEMS: 

Capital 5 5 2.46 Finalised - Substantial 

Treasury Management 5 5 3.64 Finalised - Substantial 

Main Accounting System 5 5 1.55 Work-in-Progress 

Budgetary Control 5 5 2.22 Finalised - Substantial 

Insurance and Inventories of 
Portable Assets 

12 12 16.46 
Finalised – 

Substantial/Reasonable 

RESIDUAL HOUSING SYSTEMS: 

Homelessness 10 10 0.17 Work-in-Progress 

Right to Buy 5 5 7.04 Finalised - Reasonable 

GOVERNANCE RELATED: 

FOI and Record Management 10 10 10.8 Finalised – Reasonable 

Members Code of Conduct & 
Standards Arrangements 

10 10 10.26 Finalised - Substantial 

Local Code of Corporate 
Governance 

6 6 4.97 Finalised - Substantial 

Performance Management 10 10 0.21 Work-in-Progress 

Business Continuity and Emergency 
Planning 

10 10 6.45 Finalised - Substantial 

Corporate Advice/CMT 2 2 4.62 
Work-in-Progress 
throughout 2013-14 

s.151 Meetings and support 9 9 9.18 
Work-in-Progress 
throughout 2013-14 

Governance Committee Meetings 
and Reports 

12 12 9.5 
Work-in-Progress 
throughout 2013-14 

2014-15 Audit Plan Preparation and 
Meetings 

9 9 2.06 Work-in-Progress 

CONTRACT RELATED: 

CSO Compliance 10 0 0 
Postponed to 
accommodate 
unplanned work 

Service Contract Monitoring 10 10 10.96 Finalised - Substantial 

SERVICE LEVEL: 

36



 

24 

Review 
Original 
Planned 
Days 

 
Revised 
Planned 
Days 

 

Actual  
days to   
31-12-13 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Cemeteries 10 10 11.39 
Finalised – 

Reasonable/Limited 

Coast Protection 6 6 7.97 Finalised - Substantial 

CCTV 10 10 6.65 Finalised - Substantial 

Environmental Health – Food Safety 10 10 0.34 Finalised - Substantial 

Environmental Protection – 
Contaminated Land and Air Quality 

10 10 8.11 Finalised - Reasonable 

Disabled Facilities Grants 10 10 9.02 Finalised - Substantial 

DES Project Work - Horticulture 12 6 6.19 Finalised 

Health & Wellbeing 12 0 0 
Postponed to 
accommodate 
unplanned work 

Planning 10 10 1.3 Work-in-Progress 

OTHER  

Liaison with External Auditors 3 1 0.38 
Work-in-Progress 
throughout 2013-14 

Follow-up Work 17 17 9.88 
Work-in-Progress 
throughout 2013-14 

UNPLANNED WORK  

Car Parking – under and over 
bankings 

0 15 15.16 Work-in-Progress 

Tackling Tenancy Fraud 0 5 0.49 Work-in-Progress 

FINALISATION OF 2011-12 AUDITS 

Dover Museum and VIC 15.45 Finalised - Substantial 

Recruitment & Induction 1.75 Finalised - Reasonable 

Licensing 2.77 Finalised - Reasonable 

Officers’ Code of Conduct & Whistle 
Blowing Arrangements 

1.22 Finalised - Reasonable 

Environmental Protection Service 
Requests 

0.3 Finalised - Substantial 

Port Health 

5 15 

0.99 Finalised - Substantial 

Days over delivered in 2011-12 0 0 8.86 Finalised 

EK HUMAN RESOURCES 

Payroll, SMP and SSP 5 5 0.07 Work-in-Progress 

Employee Benefits-in-Kind 5 5 0.12 Work-in-Progress 

37



 

25 

Review 
Original 
Planned 
Days 

 
Revised 
Planned 
Days 

 

Actual  
days to   
31-12-13 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

TOTAL - DOVER DISTRICT 
COUNCIL RESIDUAL DAYS  

270 270 210.96 
78.13 % complete as 
at 31st December 2013 

 

38



 

26 

 
EAST KENT HOUSING LIMITED: 
 

Review 
Original 
Planned 
Days 

Revised 
Planned 
Days 

Actual 
days to   
31-12-13 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Planned Work: 

Audit Committee/EA liaison/follow-
up 

8 7 4.77 
Work-in-Progress 
throughout 2013-14 

Rent Collection and Debt 
Management 

12 12 1.89 Work-in-Progress 

Leasehold Services 40 37 3.14 Work-in-Progress 

Sheltered Housing 20 0 0.27 Postpone until 2014-15 

Finalisation of 2012-13 Audits: 

Housing Repairs and Maintenance 9 33 33.18 Finalised - Reasonable 

Days over delivered in 2012-13 0 0 6.65 Finalised 

Total  89 89 49.9 
56.07% Complete         
as at 31-12-2013 

 
EK SERVICES: 
 

Review 
Original 
Planned 
Days 

Revised 
Planned 
Days 

Actual 
days to   
31-12-13 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Planned Work: 

Housing Benefits – 
Overpayments 

15 15 0.04 Work-in-Progress 

Housing Benefits – Fraud 
Investigation Unit 

15 15 0.09 Work-in-Progress 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 0 15 4.8 Finalised 

Housing Benefits – Quarterly 
Testing 

40 40 18.01 
Work-in-progress throughout 

2013-14 

Business Rates 30 23 22.98 Work-in-Progress 

Debtors and Rechargeable 
Works 

15 15 0.04 Work-in-Progress 

ICT – Change Controls 15 15 1.49 Work-in-progress 

ICT – Software Procurement  15 15 14.93 Finalised - Limited 

ICT – PC Controls and 15 15 0.03 Work-in-Progress 

39



 

27 

Review 
Original 
Planned 
Days 

Revised 
Planned 
Days 

Actual 
days to   
31-12-13 

Status and Assurance 
Level 

Application Controls 

Corporate/Committee 0 2 2.01 
Work-in-progress throughout 

2013-14 

Follow-up 0 5 4.56 
Work-in-progress throughout 

2013-14 

New Homes Bonus 0 0 0.34 Work-in-progress 

Finalisation of 2012-13 Audits: 

Housing Benefits and 
Assessment 

0 9 8.68 Finalised 

ICT – Network Security 0 4 4.02 Finalised 

Days under delivered in 2012-13 0 -28 -28.11 Work-in-progress 

Total  160 160 53.91 
33.69% Complete                    
as at 31-12-2013 

 
 
 

40



 

ANNEX 4   

BALANCED SCORECARD – QUARTER 3 

 

 

28 

INTERNAL PROCESSES PERSPECTIVE: 
 
 
 

 

Chargeable as % of available days  
 
 
Chargeable days as % of planned days 

CCC 
DDC 
SDC 
TDC 
EKS 
EKH 
 

         Overall 
 
 
 
Follow up/ Progress Reviews; 
 

• Issued 

• Not yet due 

• Now due for Follow Up 
    

2013-14 
Actual 

 
Quarter 3 

 
81% 

 
 
 

79% 
78% 
63% 
70% 
34% 
56% 

 
66% 

 
 
 
 
 

50 
22 
29 
 

 
 

Target 
 
 
 
 

80% 
 
 
 

75% 
75% 
75% 
75% 
75% 
75% 

 
75% 

 
 
 
 
 
- 
- 
- 
 

 

FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE: 
 
 
 
 
Cost per Audit Day (Reported 
Annually) 
 
Revised Budget November 13 
 

2013-14 
Actual 

 
 
 
 

Target 
 
 
 
 

£319.56 
 
 

£302.28 

41



 

ANNEX 4   

BALANCED SCORECARD – QUARTER 3 

 

 

29 

 
CUSTOMER PERSPECTIVE: 
 
 
 
 
Number of Satisfaction Questionnaires 
Issued; 
 
Number of completed questionnaires 
received back; 
 
 
Percentage of Customers who felt that; 
 

• Interviews were conducted in a 
professional manner 

• The audit report was ‘Good’ or 
better  

• That the audit was worthwhile. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2013-14 
Actual 

 
Quarter 3 

 
74 
 
 

41 
=55% 

 
 
 
 

100% 
 

100% 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Target 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 

90% 
 

100% 
 

 
INNOVATION & LEARNING 
PERSPECTIVE: 
 
 
 
 
Percentage of staff qualified to 
relevant technician level 
 
Percentage of staff holding a relevant 
higher level qualification 
 
Percentage of staff studying for a 
relevant professional qualification 
 
Number of days technical training per 
FTE 
 
Percentage of staff meeting formal 
CPD requirements 
 

 

                                                             

 

 

2013-14 
Actual 

 
Quarter 3 

 
 

75% 
 
 

33% 
 
 

25% 
 
 

4.43 
 
 

33% 
 
 
 

 

Target 
 
 
 
 
 

75% 
 
 

33% 
 
 

13% 
 
 

3.5 
 
 

33% 
 
 
 

42



 

 

ANNEX 5 

 30 

AUDIT ASSURANCE 
 

Definition of Audit Assurance Statements 
 
 

 Substantial Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review a sound system of control is currently being 
managed and achieved.  All of the necessary, key controls of the system are in place.  Any 
errors found were minor and not indicative of system faults. These may however result in a 
negligible level of risk to the achievement of the system objectives. 
 
Reasonable Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review most of the necessary controls of the system 
in place are managed and achieved.  There is evidence of non-compliance with some of the 
key controls resulting in a marginal level of risk to the achievement of the system objectives. 
Scope for improvement has been identified, strengthening existing controls or 
recommending new controls. 
 
Limited Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review some of the necessary controls of the system 
are in place, managed and achieved.  There is evidence of significant errors or non-
compliance with many key controls not operating as intended resulting in a risk to the 
achievement of the system objectives. Scope for improvement has been identified, 
improving existing controls or recommending new controls.  
 
No Assurance 
 
From the testing completed during this review a substantial number of the necessary key 
controls of the system have been identified as absent or weak.  There is evidence of 
substantial errors or non-compliance with many key controls leaving the system open to 
fundamental error or abuse.   The requirement for urgent improvement has been identified, 
to improve existing controls or new controls should be introduced to reduce the critical risk. 
 

43



 

 DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL                                             
 
 REPORT OF THE HEAD OF AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
 
 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 20 MARCH 2014 
 
 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014-15 
 
 Recommendations 
 

Members are asked to consider and adopt the Internal Audit 2014-15 plan 
of work 

 
Contact Officer: Mrs C Parker, extension 2160 

 
1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 The purpose of the Council’s Governance Committee is to provide 

independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework 
and the associated control environment, independent review of the Authority’s 
financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the 
Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment, and to 
oversee the financial reporting process. 

 
1.2 To assist the Committee meet its terms of reference with regard to the internal 

control environment reports are regularly produced on the work and remit of 
Internal Audit. The purpose of this report is to consider for adoption the East 
Kent Audit Partnership Audit Plan of work for the forthcoming year. 

 
2.0 Audit plan 2014-15 
 
2.1 The Audit Plan for the year 2014 to 2015 is attached as Annex A and has 

been produced from an audit software database (APACE) maintained by the 
EKAP which records our risk assessments on each service area based upon 
previous audit experience, criticality, financial risk, risk of fraud and corruption 
etc.  

 
2.2 The plan has then been modified to reflect emerging risks and opportunities 

identified by the Chief Executive, Directors, and the Council’s corporate plans.  
 
2.3 Additionally, the plan is based upon a formal risk assessment that seeks to 

ensure that all areas of the Council’s operations are reviewed within a three-
year cycle of audits. In order to provide Members with assurance that internal 
audit resources are sufficient to give effective coverage across all areas of the 
Authority's operations, a three-year strategic plan has been included. 

  
2.4 To comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the agreed audit 

plan should cover a fixed period of no more than 1 year. Members are being 
asked to approve the 2014-15 plan at the present time and the 2015-16 plan 
(modified as necessary) will be presented for consideration in March 2015 
and similarly the 2016-17 plan will be presented for consideration in March 
2016. The purpose of showing an indicative 2015-16 and 2016-17 plan at this 
time is to provide Members with assurance that internal audit resources are 
sufficient to provide effective coverage across all areas of the Authority's 
operations within a rolling cycle. 

Agenda Item No 6

44



 

 
2.5 The plan has been prepared in consultation with the Directors and the 

Council’s Statutory S151 Officer. The plan is also designed to meet the 
requirements expected by the External Auditor for ensuring key controls are 
in place for its fundamental systems.  This Committee is also part of the 
consultation process, and its views on the plan of work for 2014-15 are 
sought to ensure that the Council has an effective internal audit of its activities 
and Members receive the level of assurance they require. 

 
3.0 Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion of the 2014-15 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
3.1 This report is presented to Members by the Council’s Director of Finance 

whose s.151 responsibility it is to maintain an effective internal audit plan. In 
the interests of openness and transparency and in order to enable Members 
to make an informed decision on the internal audit plan presented for their 
approval consideration should also be given to the opinion of the Head of 
Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the plan. 

 
3.2 In the professional opinion of the Head of the East Kent Audit Partnership the 

draft 2014-15 internal plan presented for Members’ consideration represents 
an effective internal audit plan which ensures reasonable coverage of the vast 
majority of the Council’s operations within a three year period. The Head of 
the East Kent Audit Partnership recommends to Members the approval of the 
2014-15 internal audit plan. 

 
4.0 Recommendations 
 
4.1 That Members approve the Council’s Internal Audit Plan for 2014/15 
 
5.0 Background Papers 
 

• Internal Audit Annual Plan 2013/14 - Previously presented to and approved at 
the March 2013 Governance Committee meeting. 

 

• Internal Audit working papers - Held by the East Kent Audit Partnership. 

 

6.0 Resource Implications 
  
 There are no additional financial implications arising directly from this report.  

The costs of the audit work have been met from the Financial Services 
2014/15 budget. 

 
7.0 Consultation Statement 
 
 Not Applicable. 
 
8.0 Impact on Corporate Objectives and Corporate Risks 
 
 The recommendations arising from each individual internal audit review are 

designed to strengthen the Council’s corporate governance arrangements, 
controls framework and risk management arrangements, as well as 
contributing to the provision of economic, efficient and effective services to 
the resident of the District. 

 

45



 

 Attachments 
  
Annex A Dover District Council draft 2014-15 Internal Audit Plan & draft 

3 year strategic Internal Audit Plan 2014-17 
 
 CHRISTINE PARKER 
 Head of Audit Partnership   
 

The officer to whom reference should be made concerning inspection of the background 
papers is the Head of Audit Partnership, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover, Kent CT16 3PJ.  
Telephone:  (01304) 821199, Extension 2160. 

46



 
 

 

47



Dover District Council 

Internal Audit Plan 2014-15

 3 Year Strategic Plan

Annexe C

2014-15

Quarter 

Prioritised 

for

2015-16 2016-17 

Planned 

Days
2014-15

Planned 

Days

Planned 

Days

Capital 2013-14 Substantial 5

Treasury Management 2013-14 Substantial 5

Car Parking and PCNs 2012-13 Reasonable 10 3 10

Bank Reconciliation 2012-13 Substantial 5 5

Creditors and CIS 2012-13 Reasonable 10 3 10

Main Accounting System 2013-14 Substantial 10

Income 2012-13 Substantial 10 3 10

Budgetary Control 2013-14 Substantial 10

VAT 2012-13 Reasonable

Insurance and Inventories of Portable Assets 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 10

Residual Housing Systems:

Homelessness 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 10

Housing Allocations 2012-13 Substantial 10

Right to Buy 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 5

HRA Business Plan 2010-11 Limited 10 4

Governance Related:

Data Protection; 2012-13 Reasonable/ Limited 10

Asset Management 2009-10 Reasonable 10 2

Members’ Code of Conduct, Register of 

Interests, Gifts & Hospitality (incl. The Bribery 

Act) and Standards Arrangement

2013-14 Substantial 10

Officers’ Code of Conduct, Gifts & Hospitality 

(incl. the Bribery Act) and Whistle Blowing 

Arrangements

2012-13 Substantial 10

Local Code of Corporate Governance 2013-14 Substantial 7

Equality and Diversity 2008-09 Reasonable

Performance Management/Validation 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 10

Anti-Money Laundering 2011-12 Substantial 5 1

Fraud Resillience Review New Area To be Assessed 10 2

Complaints Monitoring 2011-12 Reasonable/Limited 10 1

Partnerships and Shared Service Monitoring 2011-12 Reasonable 10 2

Scheme of Officer Delegations 2007-08 Substantial

Climate Change 2009-10 Reasonable

Business Continuity & Emergency Planning 2013-14 Substantial 10

Corporate/Governance and Audit Committee 2013-14 N/A 32 1 to 4 32 32

Risk Management 2012-13 Reasonable 10

Liaison with the External Auditors 2013-14 N/A 2 1 to 4 2 2

Previous Year Work in Progress b/fwd 2013-14 N/A 5 1 5 5

Follow-up 2013-14 N/A 17 1 to 4 17 17

CSO Compliance 2011-12 Limited 10 1

Service Contract Monitoring 2013-14 Substantial 10

Receipt and Opening of Tenders 2010-11 Reasonable 6 2

Other:

Contract Audits:

10

Procurement 2010-11 Limited 10

Freedom of Information and Information 

Management.
2013-14 2013-14 WIP

Plan Area
Year last 

audited

Previous Assurance 

level

Financial:

48



Dover District Council 

Internal Audit Plan 2014-15

 3 Year Strategic Plan

Annexe C

2014-15

Quarter 

Prioritised 

for

2015-16 2016-17 

Planned 

Days
2014-15

Planned 

Days

Planned 

Days

Plan Area
Year last 

audited

Previous Assurance 

level

Financial:

Cemeteries & Crematoria 2013-14 Reasonable/Limited 10

Child Protection/DBS 2011-12 Reasonable 10 4

Community Safety 2011-12 Substantial 10 4

Coast Protection 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 6

CCTV 2013-14 Substantial 10

Dog Warden Service and Enforcement 2012-13 Reasonable 10

Election Management and Electoral 

Registration
2011-12 Substantial 10

Environmental Health – Environmental 

Protection Service Requests
2012-13 Substantial 10

Environmental Health - Food Safety 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 10

Environmental Health – Public Health Burials 2010-11 Substantial 6

Environmental Health - Port Health 2012-13 Substantial 10

Environmental Health – Pest Control 2011-12 Reasonable 10 1

Environmental Health – Health and Safety at 

Work
2012-13 Substantial 10

Environmental Health - Environmental 

Protection (Contaminated Land, Air Quality 

Mngmt & Monitoring, Polution Prevention, 

Bathing and Drinking Water).

2013-14 2013-14 WIP 6

Licensing 2012-13 Reasonable 10

Towards a Digital Future New Area To be Assessed 18 1 to 4

Events Management 2009-10 To be Assessed

Grounds Maintenance 2011-12 Reasonable 10

Disabled Facilities Grants 2013-14 Substantial 10

HMO Licensing Pre 2004 To be Assessed 10 1

Land Charges 2011-12 Reasonable 10 3

Museums and VICs 2012-13 Substantial 13

Let Properties and Concessions 2012-13 Reasonable 10

Members’ Allowances and Expenses 2012-13 Substantial 10

Planning (including s.106 agreements) 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 10

Building Control 2010-11 Reasonable 10 4

Sports and Leisure 2012-13 Substantial/ Reasonable 10

Waste Management and Street Cleansing 2011-12 Substantial 10 2 10

Whitecliffs Countryside Partnership* and Up on 

the Downs Partnership
2011-12* Reasonable* 10 3

Youth Development Strategy 2009-10 Substantial 5

Recruitment 2012-13 Reasonable 5

Payroll, SMP and SSP 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 5 1 to 4 5 5

Post Entry Training Pre-2004-05 To be Assessed

Appraisal System Pre-2004-05 To be Assessed 5

Relocation expenses Pre-2004-05 To be Assessed

Employee Benefits-in-Kind 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 5

270 270 270

2

Service Level:

Human Resources

Reasonable2011-12 5

Absence Management, Annual Leave and Flexi 

Leave
2011-12 Limited 5 1

Employee Health, Safety and Welfare

Employee Allowances and Expenses 2011-12 Reasonable 5

Total Planned Days

49



Dover District Council 

Internal Audit Plan 2014-15

 3 Year Strategic Plan

Annexe C

2014-15

Quarter 

Prioritised 

for

2015-16 2016-17 

Planned 

Days
2014-15

Planned 

Days

Planned 

Days

Plan Area
Year last 

audited

Previous Assurance 

level

Financial:Shared Service Audit Plans:

Housing Benefits - Payments 2012-13 Substantial 15 1 15

Housing Benefits - Overpayments 2011-12 Substantial 15

Housing Benefits – Fraud Investigations Unit 2011-12 Reasonable 15

Housing Benefits – Admin & Assessment 2010-11 Substantial 15 2 15

Business Rates 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 30

Customer Services/Gateway 2011-12 Reasonable 15 1 15

Debtors and Rechargeable Works 2011-12 Reasonable 15

Corporate/Audit Plan/Follow-up 2013-14 N/A 9 1 to 4 9 9

ICT – Change Controls 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 12

ICT – File Security 2007-08 Reasonable 12 2

ICT – Network Security 2012-13 Reasonable 12

ICT – Procurement and Disposal 2013-14 Limited 12

ICT – Internet and e-mail 2011-12 Reasonable 12 2

ICT – Management and Finance 2011-12 Reasonable 12

ICT – Physical and Environment 2011-12 Reasonable 12 4

ICT – Software Licensing 2012-13 Limited 12

ICT – PC Controls and Application Controls 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 12

160 160 160

Governance Arrangements 2011-12 Reasonable 15

Audit Ctte/EA Liaison/Follow-up 2013-14 N/A 8 1 to 4 8 8
Rent Accounting, Collection and Debt 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 30

Repairs and Maintenance 2013-14 Reasonable 40

Leasehold Services 2013-14 2013-14 WIP 27
Health and Safety (Fire, Gas etc) 2011-12 Reasonable 17 1
Sheltered and Supported Housing (including Pre 2004-05 To be Assessed 30 2

Void Property Management 2010-11 Reasonable 15 4

Tenancy and Estate Management 2012-13 Reasonable 32

Total East Kent Housing Planned Days:
80 80 80

40

30

EK Services (Note: Benefit work beyond 2013-14 subject to actual date of Welfare reform implementation):

East Kent Housing (ALMO):

1 to 4 40

Total EK Services Planned Days:

Council Tax 2012-13 Substantial 30 3

Housing Benefits – Quarterly Testing 2013-14 N/A 40

3Interfaces with Finance and ICT Systems 2011-12 Substantial 10

50



DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL                                             
 
 REPORT OF THE HEAD OF AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
 
 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 20 MARCH 2014 
 
 INTERNAL AUDIT SELF-ASSESSMENT 
 
 Recommendations 
 

Members note the content of the report and the actions required to work 
towards full compliance with the PSIAS 

 
Contact Officer: Mrs C Parker, extension 2160 

 
1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 From 1st April 2013 the EKAP has been working to the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards (PSIAS), defined as the proper practice for Internal audit in 
the UK Public Sector. A mandatory local government sector-specific 
application note issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy (CIPFA) supplements the Standards. 

 
1.2 Previously the East Kent Audit Partnership worked to fulfil the requirements of 

the CiPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in the UK 2006. Members will 
recall that a self-assessment was carried out annually and any improvement 
actions would be noted in the Effectiveness of Internal Audit Review 
conducted by your s.151 Officer. Our level of compliance with professional 
standards was also reported on our Balance Scorecard of Performance 
Indicators.  

 
1.3 The last detailed independent External Assessment of how well EKAP 

complied with the then CiPFA Code was conducted by the Audit Commission 
in 2009-10. That review found some minor housekeeping improvements, 
which were all successfully addressed. 

 
2. Self-Assessment Against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
 
2.1 The Head of the Audit Partnership has undertaken a self-assessment to 

demonstrate the extent to which the service complies with the PSIAS (and 
supplementary application note) and to identify any areas where further work 
was required to demonstrate compliance.  

 
2.2 This review, therefore notes the changes from the previous to the new 

standard and the resultant action plan addresses the areas that are required 
before the EKAP can accurately use the phrase “conforms with the 
International Standard for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing”. 

 
2.3 The PSIAS are broken down into two main areas 
 

• Attribute Standards address the characteristics of organisations 
performing the Internal Audit activities.  

 
Standard 1000 – Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 
Standard 1100 – Independence and Objectivity 

Agenda Item No 7

51



Standard 1200 – Proficiency and Due Professional Care 
Standard 1300 – Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

 

• Performance Standards describe the nature of Internal Audit activities 
and provide quality criteria against which the performance of these 
services can be evaluated.  

 
Standard 2000 – Managing the Audit Activity 
Standard 2100 – Nature of Work 
Standard 2200 – Engagement Planning 
Standard 2300 – Performing the Engagement 
Standard 2400 – Communicating Results 
Standard 2500 – Monitoring Progress 
Standard 2600 – Communicating the Acceptance of Risks. 
 

2.4 The Action Plan records those improvements required to comply with the new 
standard. The self-assessment therefore concludes that EKAP compiles in all 
other areas. A full copy of the PSIAS can be downloaded free at; 

 
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards 
 
3. Next Steps 

 
3.1 The progress towards achieving the improvement actions contained in the 

Action Plan shown as Annex 1 will be reported in the annual report brought to 
the Committee in June. Additionally, the new standards only require an Audit 
Charter, so an updated Charter incorporating the (currently separate) Audit 
Strategy will also be presented to the June Meeting. 

 
4.0 Recommendations 
 
4.1 That Members note the content of the report and the actions required to work 

towards full compliance with the PSIAS. 
 
5.0 Background Papers 
 

• PSIAS 

• CIPFA Local Government Application Note 

• CIPFA Checklist for Self-Assessment 

• IIA Checklist for Self-Assessment. 

 

6.0 Resource Implications 
  
 There are no additional financial implications arising directly from this report.  

The costs of the audit work have been met from the Financial Services 
2014/15 budget. 

 
7.0 Consultation Statement 
 
 Not Applicable. 
 
8.0 Impact on Corporate Objectives and Corporate Risks 
 

52



 The internal audit process is designed to strengthen the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements, controls framework and risk management 
arrangements, as well as contributing to the provision of economic, efficient 
and effective services to the resident of the District. 

 
 Attachments 

  
Annex 1 Action Plan for the Self-Assessment against the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  
 
 
CHRISTINE PARKER 
Head of Audit Partnership   
 

The officer to whom reference should be made concerning inspection of the 
background papers is the Head of Audit Partnership, White Cliffs Business Park, 
Dover, Kent CT16 3PJ.  Telephone:  (01304) 821199, Extension 2160. 
 

53



Annex 1 
Improvement Actions Required for EKAP to  “conform with the International Standard for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 

 

PSIAS Reference PSIAS Name Action Required 

1110 Organisational Independence • Update the Audit Charter to reflect that the Head of Audit has direct access to the 
Chair of the Audit Committee should this be ever required. 

• Confirm annually that EKAP is organisationally independent.  

• Remind IA Staff of their ethical responsibilities. 

• Ensure the HoA’s performance appraisal is reviewed and signed off by Chief 
Executive and feedback sought from the Chair of the Audit Committee. 

1111 Direct Interaction with the 
‘Board’ (=Audit Committee). 

• Consider the need to meet in private at least annually with the Chair of the Audit 
Committee. 

1311  Internal Assessments • Improve the internal quality assessment in accordance with the new requirements; 
specifically to capture more evidence of the assessments done and include budget 
information in the annual report. 

1312 External Assessments • Ensure an external assessment is carried out in the next four years.  Look into a 
joint procurement exercise with Kent Audit Group.  

• Establish a champion/sponsor to oversee the process. 

• Agree the approach, scope and budget for the External Assessment with the Audit 
Committee.  

2000 Managing the IA Activity • General tidy up on files including ensuring compliance with the Document Retention 
Scheme and disposal of old files. 

• Investigate how our software APACE can do more for us, including updating the 
Audit Universe and Risk scores held. 

• Better evidence reasons for over and underspends on time budgets against 
individual reviews as recorded on APACE. 

• Combine the former Audit Charter and the Strategy, and update the Charter  

 

54



Dover District Council 

Subject: TREASURY MANAGEMENT QUARTER THREE REPORT 

Meeting and Date: Governance −−−− 20 March 2014 

Report of: Director of Finance, Housing & Community 

Portfolio Holder: Corporate Resources and Performance 

Purpose of the report: To provide details of the Council’s treasury management for the 
quarter ended 31 December 2013 (Q3) and an update of activity to 
date. 

Recommendation: That the report is received 

 

1. Summary 

As at 31 December 2013, the Council’s in-house investments (approximately £6.5m 
or 33% of total investments) and investments with the investment managers, Investec 
(approximately £12.9m or 67% of total investments) are currently outperforming their 
benchmark1.  The total interest received for the quarter is £59k, which means that 
income for the year-to-date is in line with budget.  With deposit interest rates offered 
continuing to drop, and Investec currently under-performing against the budget, this 
position may change by the end of the year.    

The Council has remained within its Treasury Management and Prudential Code 
guidelines during the period.  

2. Introduction and Background 

CIPFA (the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) issued the 
revised Code of Practice for Treasury Management in November 2009: it 
recommends that members should be updated on treasury management activities at 
least twice a year, but preferably quarterly. This report therefore ensures this council 
is implementing best practice in accordance with the Code. 

 
In order to comply with the CIPFA code referred to above, but minimise the resource 
requirements in producing this report, a brief summary is provided below, and 
Appendix 1 contains a full report from the Council’s Treasury Management Advisers, 
Capita. 
 
Council adopted the 2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy on 6 March 2013 as 
part of the 2013/14 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan.   
 

3. Annual investment strategy 

The investment portfolio as at the end of December is attached at Appendix 2.  Since 
the end of quarter two, the Investec deposits with various banks have all matured 
(exceeding £10m) and the majority have been reinvested with the same institutions 
for periods of three or six months.  An in-house deposit with Lloyds also matured 
(£3m) and has been reinvested with Lloyds for 12 months.   

                                                
1
 The “benchmark” is the interest rate against which performance is assessed. DDC use the London 
Inter-Bank Bid Rate or LIBID, as its benchmark.  

Agenda Item No 8

55



A further update is attached at Appendix 4.  There is a temporary increase in 
cashflow funds from 31st December 2013 (£19.9m – see Appendix 2) to 28th February 
2014 (£24.2m – see Appendix 4), but this will reduce when the precepts are paid on 
17th March (£4m approx.) and the PWLB loan repayment on 28th March (£2.3m 
approx.). 

 
The investment manager, Investec, has returned lower rates than those achieved 
through in-house investments.  Investec have continued to be used as they are able 
to offer a wider spread of our counter party risks and use of additional financial 
instruments (e.g. gilts).  A review will be undertaken to assess whether to keep the 
same level of investments with Investec, transfer additional investments back 
in-house or investigate alternative options. 
 

4. Economic background  

 The report attached contains information up to the end of December 2013; since then 
we have received the following update from Capita (please note that their reference 
to Q4 is based on calendar years): 

 
UK GDP 

 
The second estimate of Q4 GDP provided further reassurance that the economic 
recovery is becoming better balanced and is therefore set to last. As was widely 
expected, the initial estimate of a 0.7% quarterly rise in GDP was left unrevised. And 
while GDP is now thought to have grown by 1.7%, rather than 1.8%, in 2013 as a 
whole, this small revision does little to change the overall picture. Meanwhile, the 
expenditure breakdown of Q4 GDP showed that the recovery has become less 
dependent on the consumer. The recent improvement in many surveys of firms’ 
investment intentions suggests that the economy’s supply potential will continue to 
expand in response to stronger demand. This indicates that the recovery is unlikely to 
cause inflation to pick up and, as a result, suggests that the MPC may be able to 
leave interest rates on hold for longer than the year or so currently anticipated by the 
markets. At the same time, the recovery in consumer spending seems unlikely to 
fizzle out either. Further gains in employment, easing credit constraints and a return 
to rising real pay should provide firm foundations for a further pick-up in spending in 
2014. 

 

UK Retail Sales & Public Finances 
 

The sharp monthly drop in retail sales volumes in January is unlikely to herald the 
start of a consumer spending slowdown. Meanwhile, the fiscal consolidation remains 
on track despite January’s disappointingly small budget surplus. While January’s 
1.5% monthly fall in retail sales volumes was the biggest drop seen since April 2012 
and was larger than the 1% decline anticipated by the consensus, it should not cause 
concern. A fall back in sales volumes after their hefty 2.5% monthly rise in December 
had always looked likely. 

 
Meanwhile, January’s public finances were a little weaker than expected. Usually the 
public finances return to surplus in January as it is a bumper month for corporation 
and income tax receipts. However, the underlying budget surplus (which excludes the 
temporary effects of financial interventions and Royal Mail and APF transfers) was 
just £4.7bn this year, somewhat smaller than the £6bn attained last year. 

 

56



UK Labour data/MPC minutes 
 

The latest labour market data showed that there is still plenty of spare capacity in the 
job market. Since the minutes of February’s MPC meeting confirmed that the 
Committee is committed to eliminating most of the slack in the economy before 
tightening policy, the first rise in interest rates still appears to be some way off. 
Employment rose by a strong 193,000 in the three months to December. However, 
the workforce also expanded rapidly over the same period, so unemployment fell by 
just 125,000. This brought the unemployment rate down from 7.6% in the three 
months to September to 7.2% in the three months to December. The minutes of 
February’s MPC meeting showed that all Committee members were content to 
support the new form of forward guidance set out in the recent Inflation Report. 
Although there was not a formal vote on the new communications, the minutes were 
notable for the absence of any major disagreements amongst the members. 

 
UK CPI 

 
January’s consumer prices figures showed that inflationary pressures are continuing 
to ease steadily and so presented another reason to be upbeat about the outlook for 
GDP growth this year. CPI inflation fell from 2% in December to 1.9%, the first 
reading below the MPC’s 2% target since November 2009. While January’s figure 
matched our forecast, it was the fifth consecutive month that inflation has undershot 
the consensus forecast. The drop was largely down to a fall in core inflation from 
1.7% to 1.6%, reflecting very generous discounting over the January sales period. A 
smaller contribution to inflation from energy prices, as petrol prices fell and the first 
utility company dropped its prices to reflect the Government’s recent cuts to 
environmental levies, also helped. 
 

  
5. Interest Rates 

Following the release of the latest Bank of England inflation report (February) Capita 
has updated its interest rate forecast and now expects the base rate to increase in 
the fourth quarter of 2015 rather than the second quarter of 2016, which is different to 
the table in Appendix 1 which is stated based on the previous inflation report.  

 

6. New Borrowing 

The Council’s borrowing portfolio is attached at Appendix 3.  No new borrowing was 
undertaken during the quarter. 

 

7. Debt Rescheduling 

At this time it is not of benefit to the Council to consider rescheduling of its long-term 
debt, as advised by Capita. 

 

8. Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 

The Council has operated within the treasury limits and Prudential Indicators and in 
compliance with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices. 

57



9. Iceland update 

The Icelandic Supreme Court found in favour of UK local authorities and other UK 
wholesale depositors last year.  This judgement meant that UK local authorities’ 
claims were recognised as deposits with priority status over other creditors' claims 
and that they would be paid first when it comes to getting their money back.   

The winding up board published details of LBI’s (formerly Landsbanki) financial 
position as at 31 December 2012. This showed that LBI’s assets, including partial 
payments already made in respect of priority claims were greater than the sum of the 
priority claims. It was therefore considered likely that UK local authorities would 
eventually recover 100% of their deposits.  However, the value recovered would 
fluctuate due to currency valuations as the sums are being paid in sterling, US 
dollars, Euros and Icelandic Kroner, leading to uncertainty about the amount 
collectible over a prolonged period.  Therefore, DDC has now sold at auction the 
balance of its claim, and the matter is now concluded. DDC has received 97% of the 
original £1 million deposit and, as the estimated impairment (shortfall) had previously 
been provided in the statement of accounts to 31st March 2013, there should be no 
further material adverse impact on the General Fund balances. 

 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Capita treasury management report for quarter three 

Appendix 2 – Investment portfolio as at 31 December 2013 

Appendix 3 – Borrowing portfolio as at 31 December 2013 

Appendix 4 – Investment portfolio as at 31 January 2014 (Investec) and 28 February 
2014 (In-House) 

 

 

10. Background Papers 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 2013/14 – 2015/16 

 

 

Contact Officer:  Stuart Groom, extension 2072 

58



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 

Treasury Management Update 

Quarter Ended 31st December 2013 

The CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice for Treasury Management 

recommends that members be updated on treasury management activities regularly (TMSS, annual and 

midyear reports). This report therefore ensures this Council is implementing best practice in accordance with 

the Code. 

1. Economic Background 

• After strong UK growth of 0.7% in quarter 2 and 0.8% in quarter 3, it appears that UK 

GDP is likely to have grown at an even faster pace in quarter 4 of 2013. Forward surveys 

are also very encouraging in terms of strong growth and there are positive indications 

that recovery is broadening away from reliance on consumer spending and the housing 

market into construction, manufacturing, business investment and exporting.  This 

strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster towards the threshold 

of 7%, set by the MPC before it said it would consider any increases in Bank Rate, than 

it expected last August when that threshold was initially set.  Accordingly, markets are 

expecting a first increase in early 2015 though recent comments from MPC members 

have emphasised they would want to see strong growth well established, and an 

increase in real incomes, before they would consider raising Bank Rate. 

• Also encouraging has been a sharp fall in inflation (CPI) to 2.1% in November and 

forward indications are that inflation will continue to be subdued.  The return to strong 

growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase in Government debt by £73bn 

over the next five years, as announced in the Autumn Statement, and fostered 

optimism for achieving a balance in the cyclically adjusted budget within five years, a 

year earlier than previously forecast. 

• The big news in financial markets was that the Federal Reserve, in December, felt 

sufficiently confident  that the premise for strong growth had been established in 

America that it could start to taper its asset purchases by reducing them by $10bn per 

month from January 2014. These encouraging growth scenarios in the USA and UK led 

to a sharp jump up, in December, in short dated gilts; this, accordingly, impacted 5 and 

10 year PWLB rates. 

59



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 

Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17

Bank rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25%

5yr PWLB rate 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.40%

10yr PWLB rate 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.80% 3.90% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50%

25yr PWLB rate 4.40% 4.50% 4.50% 4.60% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00% 5.10% 5.10% 5.10% 5.10%

50yr PWLB rate 4.40% 4.50% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00% 5.10% 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% 5.20%

2. Interest Rate Forecast 

The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following forecast: 

Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts in late November, 

after the Bank of England’s latest quarterly Inflation Report. This latest forecast now 

includes a first increase in Bank Rate in quarter 2 of 2016 (previously quarter 3) and reflects 

greater caution as to the speed with which the MPC will start increasing Bank Rate than the 

current expectations of financial markets.   

SUMMARY OUTLOOK 

Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and slowest 

recovery in recent history.  However, growth has rebounded during 2013 to surpass all 

expectations, propelled by recovery in consumer spending and the housing market,  

Forward surveys are currently very positive in indicating that growth prospects are also 

strong for 2014, not only in the UK economy as a whole, but in all three main sectors, 

services, manufacturing and construction. This is very encouraging as  there does need to 

be a significant rebalancing of the economy away from consumer spending to construction, 

manufacturing, business investment and exporting in order for this start to recovery to 

become more firmly established. One drag on the economy is that wage inflation continues 

to remain significantly below CPI inflation so disposable income and living standards are 

under pressure, although income tax cuts have ameliorated this to some extent. Labour 

productivity must improve significantly before increases in pay rates are warranted.  With 

regard to the US, the main world economy, it faces similar debt problems to those of the 

UK, but thanks to reasonable growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the 

annual government deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much 

damage to growth, although labour force participation rates remain lower than ideal.    

As for the Eurozone, concerns have subsided considerably in 2013.  However, sovereign 

debt difficulties have not gone away and major concerns could return in respect of any 

countries that do not dynamically address fundamental issues of low growth, international 

uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the economy (as Ireland has done).  

It is, therefore, possible over the next few years that levels of government debt to GDP 

ratios could continue to rise to levels that could result in a loss of investor confidence in the 

financial viability of such countries.  This could mean that sovereign debt concerns have not 

disappeared but, rather, have only been postponed.  

60



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 

3. Annual Investment Strategy 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2013/14, which includes the 

Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 06/03/13.  It sets out the 

Council’s investment priorities as being: 

• Security of capital; 

• Liquidity; and 

• Yield. 

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on investments 

commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity.  In the current economic climate 

it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cashflow needs, but 

also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months, with highly credit rated 

financial institutions, using our suggested creditworthiness approach, including sovereign 

credit rating and Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay information. 

Officers can confirm that the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were 

not breached during the quarter ended 31st December 2013. 

Investment rates available in the market have continued at historically low levels and have 

fallen further during the quarter as a result of the Funding for Lending Scheme.  Additional 

funds were available on a temporary basis, and the level of funds available was mainly 

dependent on the timing of precept payments, receipt of grants and progress on the Capital 

Programme. The Council holds £19m core cash balances for investment purposes (i.e. funds 

available for more than one year). 

Investment performance for quarter ended 31st December 2013 

 

A

s

l

l

As illustrated, the Council outperformed the benchmark by 34 basis points.   The Council’s 

budgeted investment return for 2013/14 is £260k, and performance for the year to date is 

in line with the budget. However, this figure excludes unrealised losses of £60k at 31th 

December, mainly relating to gilts, which are subject to market fluctuations during the 

remainder of the year that may increase or reduce such potential losses, as well as realised 

losses of £5k. 

4. New Borrowing 

No borrowing was undertaken during the quarter. 

The 25 year PWLB target rate for new long term borrowing for the quarter remained at 

4.40%, borrowing rates are detailed below. 

Benchmark Benchmark Return Council Performance Investment Interest Earned 

7 day  0.35% 0.69% £59k 

61



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

25 Year Target 1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

PWLB certainty rates, quarter ended 31st December 2013 

  1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Low 1.08% 2.23% 3.35% 4.16% 4.18% 

Date 17/12/2013 31/10/2013 31/10/2013 30/10/2013 30/10/2013 

High 1.23% 2.78% 3.90% 4.47% 4.43% 

Date 27/12/2013 30/12/2013 30/12/2013 27/12/2013 27/12/2013 

Average 1.13% 2.43% 3.59% 4.32% 4.31% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Borrowing in advance of need.   

This Council has not borrowed in advance of need during the quarter ended 31st December 

2013 and has no intention to borrow in advance in 2013/14.   

5. Debt Rescheduling 

Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited in the current economic climate and 

following the increase in the margin added to gilt yields which has impacted PWLB new 

62



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 

borrowing rates since October 2010.  No debt rescheduling was undertaken during the 

quarter. 

6. Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 

It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 

borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential Indicators are included in 

the approved TMSS.  

During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the treasury and 

prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 

in compliance with the Council's Treasury Management Practices.  The prudential and 

treasury Indicators are shown below. 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators as at 31st December 2013 

 

 Treasury Indicators 
2013/14 Budget 

£’000 

Quarter 3 Actual 

£’000 

Authorised limit for external debt 113,500 113,500 

Operational boundary for external debt 108,000 108,000 

   

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing  -  

upper and lower limits 
  

Under 12 months 2,100 2,100 

12 months to 2 years 3,022 3,022 

2 years to 5 years 6,489 6,489 

5 years to 10 years 12,272 12,272 

10 years and above 71,190 71,190 

   

Capital Expenditure 10,035 
3.526 

(YTD) 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 98,223 98,223 

63



Investec Funds as at 31/12/13 - In-house as at 31/12/13 APPENDIX 2

Organisation Type of investment Current rating Maturity date Market yield % Book cost Government Options available

Sovereign Debt rating

Investec Investments

Nationwide Building Socitety Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 19/05/14 0.510 300,000 UK - Gov 'AA+'

Svenska Handelsbanken Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 30/05/14 0.550 1,500,000 Sweden - Gov 'AAA'

Nordea Group Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 08/01/14 0.380 1,200,000 Sweden - Gov 'AAA'

Nova Scotia Certificate of deposit A/F1/1 03/03/14 0.410 2,350,000 Canada - Gov 'AA+'

Deutsche Bank Certificate of deposit A+/F1+/1 14/02/14 0.500 2,500,119 Germany - Gov 'AAA'

Commonwealth Bank Certificate of deposit AA/F1+/1 20/03/14 0.440 1,200,000 Australia - Gov 'AAA'

Nordea Group Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 19/02/14 0.390 1,300,000 Sweden - Gov 'AAA'

10,350,119

United Kingdom Commercial Paper 16/06/14 0.390 299,462

United Kingdom Gilt 22/07/18 1.910 1,919,321

United Kingdom Commercial Paper 27/05/14 0.380 199,650

Rabobank Deposit 02/12/14 0.200 60,029

GBP cash - settled balance 103,521

GBP cash - outstanding settlements

12,932,103

In-house Investments - Portfolio Duration

Landsbanki Islands Term deposit Not rated by sector 26/11/08 6.170 447,758 Iceland - Gov 'BBB-' 364 days - Repayment received £499,514.61

Lloyds Term deposit A/F1/1 17/12/14 0.980 3,000,000 UK - Gov 'AA+' 364 days

BOS Bond A/F1/1 07/11/14 0.980 1,000,000 UK - Gov 'AA+' 364 days

Lloyds Term deposit A/F1/1 30/01/14 0.750 2,000,000 UK - Gov 'AA+' 182 days

6,447,758

Total Portfolio 19,379,860

Cashflow Call Accounts/MMF (as at 31/12/13) Rate

DMA 0

Global Treasury Fund 55,106 0.33%

SIBA 4,615,993 0.50%

SIBA SEEDA 55,541 0.50%

SIBA HCA 47,306 0.50%

SIBA ASDA 10,998 0.50%

Santander 4,987,691 0.80%

BoS 5,078,782 0.40%

Barclays 5,028,190 0.62%

Abbey 1

Total Cash flow 19,879,608

Total Portfolio and Cashflow 39,259,468

64



Dover District Council Borrowing - 2013/14 APPENDIX 3

Interest Date Loan Date Loan Repayment Loan Principal Interest Principal Annual Lender Type of loan

Type Taken Matures Dates Number Balance Rate Repaid Interest

Out 01-Apr-13 % 2013/14 2013/14

Fixed 02/10/97 02/10/57 APR-OCT 479961 1,000,000 6.75 67,500 PWLB Principal due on maturity

Fixed 28/05/97 28/05/57 MAY-NOV 479542 2,000,000 7.38 147,500 PWLB Principal due on maturity

Fixed 23/08/46 23/06/26 JUNE-DEC 131582 602 2.50 44.64 15 PWLB Equal installment of principal

Fixed 27/09/46 27/06/26 JUNE-DEC 131583 113 2.50 8.40 3 PWLB Equal installment of principal

Fixed 16/11/01 30/09/26 SEPT-MAR 486237 1,000,000 4.75 47,500 PWLB Principal due on maturity

Variable 16/12/02 16/12/42 JUNE-DEC NA 3,000,000 4.75 142,500 KA Finanz AG Repayable if called by bank

Fixed 26/03/12 26/03/42 SEPT-MAR 499853 88,633,727 3.18 1,898,227.02 2,803,581 PWLB Annuity

Fixed 01/05/12 01/11/27 MAY-NOV 121,934 0.00 8,709.60 0 Lawn Tennis Association Interest free 

Fixed 01/03/11 31/12/14 MAR-SEP 9,289 0.00 6,192.50 0 Salix Interest free 

95,765,665 1,913,182 3,208,598

65



Investec Funds as at 31/1/14 - In-house as at 28/2/14 APPENDIX 4

Organisation Type of investment Current rating Maturity date Market yield % Book cost Government Options available

Sovereign Debt rating

Investec Investments

National Australia Bank Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 19/05/14 0.510 300,000 Australia - Gov 'AAA'

Svenska Handelsbanken Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 30/05/14 0.490 1,500,000 Sweden - Gov 'AAA'

Nordea Group Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 09/04/14 0.470 1,200,000 Sweden - Gov 'AAA'

Nova Scotia Certificate of deposit A/F1/1 03/03/14 0.440 2,350,000 Canada - Gov 'AA+'

Deutsche Bank Certificate of deposit A+/F1+/1 14/02/14 0.500 2,500,119 Germany - Gov 'AAA'

Commonwealth Bank Certificate of deposit AA/F1+/1 20/03/14 0.480 1,200,000 Australia - Gov 'AAA'

Nordea Group Certificate of deposit AA-/F1+/1 19/02/14 0.420 1,300,000 Sweden - Gov 'AAA'

10,350,119

United Kingdom Commercial Paper 16/06/14 0.410 299,462

United Kingdom Gilt 22/07/18 1.660 1,919,321

United Kingdom Commercial Paper 27/05/14 0.410 199,650

Rabobank Deposit 03/02/14 0.350 150,032

Nova Scotia Deposit 03/02/14 0.200 10,002

GBP cash - settled balance 17,018

GBP cash - outstanding settlements 0

12,945,603

In-house Investments - Portfolio Duration

Lloyds Term deposit A/F1/1 17/12/14 0.980 3,000,000 UK - Gov 'AA+' 364 days

BOS Bond A/F1/1 07/11/14 0.980 1,000,000 UK - Gov 'AA+' 364 days

Lloyds Term deposit A/F1/1 30/07/14 0.700 2,000,000 UK - Gov 'AA+' 182 days

6,000,000

Total Portfolio 18,945,603

Cashflow Call Accounts/MMF (as at 28/2/14) Rate

DMA 0

Global Treasury Fund 555,106 0.33%

SIBA 8,453,493 0.50%

SIBA SEEDA 55,541 0.50%

SIBA HCA 47,306 0.50%

SIBA ASDA 10,998 0.50%

Santander 4,994,472 0.80%

BoS 5,082,289 0.40%

Barclays 5,028,190 0.62%

Abbey 1

Total Cash flow 24,227,395

Total Portfolio and Cashflow 43,172,998

66



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

C
ertificatio

n
 rep

o
rt 2012/

13

fo
r D

o
ver D

istrict C
o

u
n

cil

Y
e

a
r e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

1
7

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

E
m

ily
 H

ill

A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
 D
ire
c
to
r

T
0
2
0
 7
7
2
8
 3
2
5
8

E
 
e
m
ily
.h
ill@

u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

D
a

n
ie

l W
o

o
d

c
o

c
k

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t M

a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
1
2
9
3
 5
5
4
 1
2
2

E
 
d
a
n
ie
l.w

o
o
d
c
o
c
k
@
u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

Agenda Item No 9

67



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

2

C
o
n
ten

ts

S
e
c
tio

n
P
a
g
e

1.
E
xecu

tive su
m
m
ary

3

2.
R
esu

lts o
f o

ur certificatio
n
 w
o
rk 

6

A
p
p
en
d
ices

A
    D

etails o
f claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s certified

 fo
r 2012/

13
9

B
    A

ctio
n
 p
lan

10

C
    F

ees
11

68



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

S
e
c
tio

n
 1

:
E
xecu

tive su
m
m
ary

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

tiv
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
R

e
s

u
lts

 o
f o

u
r c

e
rtific

a
tio

n
 w

o
rk

69



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

4

E
xecu

tive su
m
m
ary

E
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

In
tro

d
u

c
tio

n
W
e are req

u
ired

 to
 certify certain

 o
f th

e claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s su

b
m
itted

 b
y D

o
ver 

D
istrict C

o
u
n
cil (th

e C
o
u
n
cil). T

h
is certificatio

n
 typ

ically takes p
lace six to

 n
in
e 

m
o
n
th
s after th

e claim
 p
erio

d
 an

d
 rep

resen
ts a fin

al b
u
t im

p
o
rtan

t p
art o

f th
e 

p
ro
cess to

 co
n
firm

 th
e C

o
u
n
cil's en

titlem
en
t to

 fu
n
d
in
g.

W
e h

ave certified
 th

ree claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s fo

r th
e fin

an
cial year 2012/

13 relatin
g 

to
 exp

en
d
itu

re o
f £

83.3 m
illio

n
. 

T
h
is rep

o
rt su

m
m
arises o

u
r o

verall assessm
en
t o

f th
e C

o
u
n
cil’s m

an
agem

en
t 

arran
gem

en
ts in

 resp
ect o

f th
e certificatio

n
 p
ro
cess an

d
 d
raw

s atten
tio

n
 to

 
sign

ifican
t m

atters in
 relatio

n
 to

 in
d
ivid

u
al claim

s.

A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

te
x

t to
 c

e
r
tific

a
tio

n
 

A
rran

gem
en
ts fo

r certificatio
n
 are p

rescrib
ed
 b
y th

e A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
, w

h
ich

 
agrees th

e sco
p
e o

f th
e w

o
rk w

ith
 each

 relevan
t go

vern
m
en
t d

ep
artm

en
t o

r 
agen

cy, an
d
 issu

es au
d
ito

rs w
ith

 a C
ertificatio

n
 In

stru
ctio

n
 (C

I) fo
r each

 sp
ecific 

claim
 o
r retu

rn
. 

O
u
r ap

p
ro
ach

 to
 certificatio

n
 w
o
rk, th

e ro
les an

d
 resp

o
n
sib

ilities o
f th

e vario
u
s 

p
arties in

vo
lved

 an
d
 th

e sco
p
e o

f th
e w

o
rk w

e p
erfo

rm
 w
ere set o

u
t in

 o
u
r 

C
ertificatio

n
 P
lan

 issu
ed
 to

 th
e C

o
u
n
cil o

n
 26 S

ep
tem

b
er 2013.

K
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 

A
 su

m
m
ary o

f all claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s su

b
ject to

 certificatio
n
 is p

ro
vid

ed
 at 

A
p
p
en
d
ix A

. T
h
e key m

essages fro
m
 o
u
r certificatio

n
 w
o
rk are su

m
m
arised

 in
 

th
e tab

le b
elo

w
 an

d
 set o

u
t in

 d
etail in

 th
e n

ext sectio
n
 o
f th

e rep
o
rt.

A
sp
ect

o
f 

certifica
tio
n
 

a
rra
n
g
em
en
ts

K
ey M

essa
g
es

R
A
G
ra
tin
g

S
u
b
m
issio

n
 &
 

certifica
tio
n

T
h
e m

ajo
rity o

f th
e claim

s w
ere 

su
b
m
itted

 to
 au

d
it o

n
 tim

e an
d

all claim
s w

ere certified
 b
efo

re th
e 

req
u
ired

 d
ead

lin
e.

�

A
M

B
E

R

A
ccu

ra
cy
o
f cla

im
 

fo
rm
s su

b
m
itted

 to
 

th
e a
u
d
ito
r 

(in
clu
d
in
g
 

a
m
en
d
m
en
ts &

 

q
u
a
lifica

tio
n
s

M
in
o
r am

en
d
m
en
ts w

ere m
ad
e to

 all 
th
ree claim

s, w
ith

 th
e H

o
u
sin

g
an
d
 

C
o
u
n
cil T

ax B
en
efit claim

 b
ein

g 
q
u
alified

.

�

A
M

B
E

R

S
u
p
p
o
rtin

g
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
ers

S
u
p
p
o
rtin

g
w
o
rkin

g p
ap
ers fo

r th
e 

th
ree claim

s certified
 w
ere fo

u
n
d
 to

 
b
e accu

rate an
d
 o
fficers p

ro
vid

ed
 

th
ese in

 a tim
ely m

an
n
er.

�

G
R

E
E

N

70



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

5

E
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

T
h

e
 w

a
y
 fo

rw
a

rd
 

W
e set o

u
t reco

m
m
en
d
atio

n
s to

 ad
d
ress th

e key m
essages ab

o
ve an

d
 o
th
er 

fin
d
in
gs arisin

g fro
m
 o
u
r certificatio

n
 w
o
rk at A

p
p
en
d
ix B

.

Im
p
lem

en
tatio

n
 o
f th

e agreed
 reco

m
m
en
d
atio

n
s w

ill assist th
e C

o
u
n
cil in

 
co
m
p
ilin

g accu
rate an

d
 tim

ely claim
s fo

r certificatio
n
. T

h
is w

ill red
u
ce th

e risk o
f 

p
en
alties fo

r late su
b
m
issio

n
, p

o
ten

tial rep
aym

en
t o

f gran
t an

d
 ad

d
itio

n
al fees.

A
c
k

n
o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
W
e w

o
u
ld
 like to

 take th
is o

p
p
o
rtu

n
ity to

 th
an
k th

e C
o
u
n
cil an

d
 E
ast K

en
t 

S
ervices o

fficers fo
r th

eir assistan
ce an

d
 co

-o
p
eratio

n
 d
u
rin

g th
e co

u
rse o

f th
e 

certificatio
n
 p
ro
cess.

G
ra
n
t T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P

F
eb
ru
a
ry 2014

71



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

S
e
c
tio

n
 2

:
R
esu

lts o
f o

u
r certificatio

n
 w
o
rk

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

tiv
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
R

e
s

u
lts

 o
f o

u
r c

e
rtific

a
tio

n
 w

o
rk

72



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

7

R
esu

lts o
f o

u
r certificatio

n
 w
o
rk

R
e
s
u
lts

 o
f o

u
r c

e
rtific

a
tio

n
w

o
rk

K
e
y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s

W
e h

ave certified
 th

ree claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s fo

r th
e fin

an
cial year 2012/

13 relatin
g 

to
 exp

en
d
itu

re o
f £

83.3 m
illio

n
. 

T
h
e C

o
u
n
cil's p

erfo
rm

an
ce in

 p
rep

arin
g claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s is su

m
m
arised

 b
elo

w
.  

H
o
w
ever, it sh

o
u
ld
 b
e n

o
ted

 th
at th

e n
u
m
b
er o

f claim
s ch

an
gin

g b
etw

een
 years 

im
p
acts o

n
 th

e d
irectio

n
 o
f travel. 

T
h
is an

alysis o
f p

erfo
rm

an
ce sh

o
w
s th

at:

•
A
ll claim

s w
ere am

en
d
ed
 d
u
rin

g 2012/
13 co

m
p
ared

 to
 o
n
ly o

n
e in

 2011/
12.

•
A
lth

o
u
gh

 th
e d

irectio
n
 o
f travel ap

p
ears to

 h
ave w

o
rsen

ed
, th

is is m
ain

ly 
cau

sed
 b
y th

e red
u
ctio

n
 in

 th
e n

u
m
b
er o

f claim
s in

 2012/
13.

D
etails o

f th
e certificatio

n
 o
f all claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s are in

clu
d
ed
 at A

p
p
en
d
ix A

.

S
ig

n
ific

a
n

t fin
d

in
g

s
 

O
u
r w

o
rk h

as id
en
tified

 th
e fo

llo
w
in
g issu

es in
 relatio

n
 to

 th
e m

an
agem

en
t 

arran
gem

en
ts an

d
 certificatio

n
 o
f in

d
ivid

u
al gran

t claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s: 

•
In
 relatio

n
 to

 th
e N

atio
n
al N

o
n
-d
o
m
estic R

ates retu
rn
, d

eferrals testin
g 

h
igh

ligh
ted

 a p
rio

r year d
eferral th

at sh
o
u
ld
 h
ave b

een
 rem

o
ved

 fro
m
 th

e claim
. 

T
h
e C

o
u
n
cil review

ed
 all d

eferrals an
d
 fo

u
n
d
 fu

rth
er p

rio
r year d

eferrals w
h
ich

 
w
ere b

een
 rem

o
ved

 fro
m
 th

e claim
 co

rrectly.

R
eco

m
m
en
d
atio

n
s fo

r im
p
ro
vem

en
t are in

clu
d
ed
 in

 th
e actio

n
 p
lan

 at A
p
p
en
d
ix B

C
e

r
tific

a
tio

n
 fe

e
s

T
h
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 set an

 in
d
icative scale fee fo

r gran
t claim

 certificatio
n
 

b
ased

 o
n
 2010/

11 certificatio
n
 fees fo

r each
 au

d
ited

 b
o
d
y.  T

h
e in

d
icative scale fee 

fo
r th

e C
o
u
n
cil fo

r 2012/
13 is £

26,450.

D
u
e to

 th
e cyclical testin

g req
u
irem

en
ts o

f th
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 w
h
ereb

y 
d
etailed

 testin
g is req

u
ired

 every th
ree years, th

e actu
al fee ch

arged
 to

 th
e C

o
u
n
cil 

fo
r 2012/

13 w
as £

28,667, w
h
ich

 is an
 in

crease o
f £

2,217.  T
h
is in

crease h
as b

een
 

agreed
 w
ith

 b
o
th
 o
fficers an

d
 th

e A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
.  O

verall, th
e fee h

as 
red

u
ced

, o
n
 a like-fo

r-like b
asis, b

y 37%
 co

m
p
ared

 to
 2010/

11.

P
erfo

rm
an
ce 

m
ea
su
re

T
a
rg
et

A
ch
ievem

en
t 

in
 2012/

13

A
ch
ievem

en
t 

in
 2011/

12

D
irectio

n
 

o
f tra

vel

N
o
.

%
N
o
.

%

N
u
m
b
er

o
f 

claim
s

3
4

C
laim

s su
b
m
itted

o
n
 tim

e
100%

2
67

3
75

C
laim

s certified
o
n
 tim

e
100%

3
100

4
100

C
laim

s certified
 

w
ith

 am
en
d
m
en
t

0%
3

100
1

25

C
laim

s certified
 

w
ith

q
u
alificatio

n
0%

1
33

1
25

73



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

8

A
p

p
en

d
ices

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

74



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

9

A
p
p
en
d
ix A

: D
etails o

f claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s certified

 fo
r 2012/

13

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

C
la
im

o
r re

tu
rn

V
a
lu

e
A
m

e
n
d
e
d
?

A
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t
(£

)
Q
u
a
lifie

d
?

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

P
o
o
lin

g o
f h

o
u
sin

g cap
ital receip

ts 
£
1
.2

5
m

Y
es

(6
8
0
) (red

u
ctio

n
)

N
o

N
atio

n
al n

o
n
-d

o
m

estic rates retu
rn

£
3
2
.8

m
Y

es
(6

,9
2
2
) (red

u
ctio

n
)

N
o

H
o
u
sin

g an
d
 C

o
u
n
cil T

ax B
en

efit
£
4
9
.3

m
Y

es
£
0

Y
es

A
lth

o
u
gh

th
e claim

 fo
rm

 w
as am

en
d
ed

 th
ere w

as n
o
 

im
p
act o

n
 th

e am
o
u
n
t o

f su
b
sid

y p
ayab

le to
 th

e C
o
u
n
cil.

75



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

1
0

A
p
p
en
d
ix B

: A
ctio

n
 p
lan

P
rio

rity
H
ig
h

-
S

ig
n
ific

a
n
t e

ffe
c
t o

n
 a

rra
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

M
e
d
iu
m

–
S

o
m

e
 e

ffe
c
t o

n
 a

rra
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

L
o
w

-
B

e
s
t p

ra
c
tic

e

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

R
e
c

N
o
.

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
tio

n
P
rio

rity
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t re

sp
o
n
se

Im
p
le
m

e
n
ta
tio

n
d
a
te
 &

 re
sp

o
n
sib

ility

1
T
h
e C

o
u
n
cil sh

o
u
ld

 rev
iew

 p
rio

r year d
eferrals 

o
n
 an

 an
n
u
al

b
asis to

 en
su

re th
at "o

ld
" d

eferrals 

are co
rrectly exclu

d
ed

 fro
m

 th
e claim

 fo
rm

.

M
ed

iu
m

T
h
e p

ro
cess o

f ch
eck

in
g d

eferred
 acco

u
n
ts h

as b
een

 ad
d
ed

 to
 

o
u
r an

n
u
al year en

d
 testin

g p
ro

cess.

M
arch

 2
0
1
4

In
co

m
e M

an
ager (E

K
S
)

2
W

h
ere reco

n
ciliatio

n
 d

ifferen
ces arise b

etw
een

 

b
en

efit p
aid

 an
d
 b

en
efit gran

ted
 th

e lo
w

er figu
re 

sh
o
u
ld

 b
e ap

p
lied

 to
 each

 in
d
iv

id
u
al claim

 typ
e.

M
ed

iu
m

A
greed

A
lread

y
im

p
lem

en
ted

O
p
eratio

n
al S

u
p
p
o
rt M

an
ager (E

K
S
)

76



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

1
1

A
p
p
en
d
ix C

: F
ees

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

C
la
im

 o
r re

tu
rn

2
0
11/

12
 a
c
tu

a
l 

fe
e
 (£

)

2
0
11/

12
 fe

e
 (£

) 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 4
0
%

 

re
d
u
c
tio

n

2
0
12

/
13

 

in
d
ic
a
tive

 

fe
e

(£
)

2
0
12

/
13

 a
c
tu

a
l 

fe
e
 (£

)

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 y
e
a
r 

o
n

y
e
a
r (£

)
E
x
p
la
n
a
tio

n
 fo

r sig
n
ific

a
n
t va

ria
n
c
e
s

P
o
o
lin

g
 o
f h

o
u
sin

g
 c
a
p
ita

l re
c
e
ip

ts
822

493
500

1,016
523

R
esu

lts fro
m
 ad

d
itio

n
al (P

art B
) testin

g b
ein

g req
u
ired

 in
 

2012/
13 in

 lin
e w

ith
 th

e cyclical ap
p
ro
ach

 req
u
ired

 

u
n
d
er A

u
d
it
C
o
m
m
issio

n
 gu

id
an
ce.

N
a
tio

n
a
l n

o
n
-d

o
m

e
stic

 ra
te
s 

re
tu

rn
1,327

796
910

2,611
1,815

R
esu

lts fro
m
 ad

d
itio

n
al (P

art B
) testin

g b
ein

g req
u
ired

 in
 

2012/
13 in

 lin
e w

ith
 th

e cyclical ap
p
ro
ach

 req
u
ired

 

u
n
d
er A

u
d
it
C
o
m
m
issio

n
 gu

id
an
ce.

H
o
u
sin

g
 b

e
n
e
fits su

b
sid

y
 c
la
im

30,700
18,420

25,040
25,040

6,863

T
h
e 2012/

13
in
d
icative fee w

as b
ased

 o
n
 th

e 2010/
11 

fee less 40%
 an

d
 th

ere w
as a greater level o

f ad
d
itio

n
al 

testin
g req

u
ired

 in
 2010/

11 th
an
 in

 2011/
12.  In

 

co
m
p
ariso

n
 to

 2010/
11 o

n
 w
h
ich

 th
e 2012/

13 au
d
it fee 

is b
ased

, a 37%
 red

u
ctio

n
 h
as b

een
 ach

ieved
 o
n
 a like-

fo
r-like b

asis.

H
o
u
sin

g
 re

ve
n
u
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t su

b
sid

y
982

589
-

-
-

N
o
t
req

u
ired

 to
 b
e au

d
ited

 in
 2012/

13

T
o
ta
l

33,831
20,298

26,450
28,667

9,201

77



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork report for D
over D

istrict C
ouncil

©
 2013 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

. A
ll rights reserved. 

'G
rant T

hornton' m
eans G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

, a lim
ited 

liability
partnership. 

G
rant T

hornton is a m
em

ber firm
 of G

rant T
hornton Internation

al Ltd 
(G

rant
T

hornton International). R
eferences to 'G

rant T
hornton' are 

to the brand under w
hich the G

rant T
hornton m

em
ber firm

s operate 
and refer to one or m

ore m
em

ber firm
s, as the context requires. 

G
rant T

hornton International and the m
em

ber firm
s are not a 

w
orldw

ide partnership. S
ervices are delivered independe

ntly by 
m

em
ber firm

s, w
hich are not responsible for the services or activities 

of one another. G
rant T

hornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

g
ran

t-th
o
rn
to
n
.co

.u
k

78



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

G
ran

t certificatio
n

 w
o

rk
 p

lan

fo
r D

o
ver D

istrict C
o

u
n

cil

Y
e

a
r
 e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

r
c

h
 2

0
1

4

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

E
m

ily
 H

ill

A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
 D
ire

c
to
r

T
0
2
0
 7
7
2
8
 3
2
5
8

E
e
m
ily
.h
ill@

u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

D
a
n

ie
l W

o
o

d
c
o

c
k

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t M

a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
1
2
9
3
 5
5
4
 1
2
2

E
d
a
n
ie
l.w

o
o
d
c
o
c
k
@
u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

Agenda Item No 10

79



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

2

C
o
n
ten

ts

S
e
c
tio

n
P
a
g
e

1.
O
u
r ap

p
ro
ach

 to
 gran

t certificatio
n
 w
o
rk

3

A
p
p
en
d
ix A

  S
u
m
m
ary o

f exp
ected

 claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s fo

r th
e year en

d
ed
 31 M

arch
 2014

7

80



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

3

O
u
r ap

p
ro
ach

 to
 g
ran

t certificatio
n
 w
o
rk

In
tro

d
u
c
tio

n

V
ario

u
s gran

t-p
ayin

g b
o
d
ies req

u
ire extern

al certificatio
n
 o
f claim

s fo
r gran

t o
r 

su
b
sid

y an
d
 retu

rn
s o

f fin
an
cial in

fo
rm

atio
n
.  

T
h
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 m

akes certificatio
n
 arran

gem
en
ts w

ith
 gran

t-p
ayin

g b
o
d
ies, 

in
clu

d
in
g co

n
firm

in
g w

h
ich

 claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s req

u
ire certificatio

n
 an

d
 issu

in
g 

certificatio
n
 in

stru
ctio

n
s.  T

h
ese in

stru
ctio

n
s are tailo

red
 to

 each
 sch

em
e an

d
 set 

o
u
t th

e sp
ecific p

ro
ced

u
res to

 b
e ap

p
lied

 in
 exam

in
in
g th

e claim
 o
r retu

rn
.  T

h
e 

A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 agrees th

e d
ead

lin
e fo

r su
b
m
issio

n
 o
f each

 claim
 b
y au

th
o
rities 

an
d
 th

e d
ead

lin
e fo

r certificatio
n
 b
y au

d
ito

rs.

A
s th

e C
o
u
n
cil's ap

p
o
in
ted

 extern
al au

d
ito

r, w
e u

n
d
ertake gran

t certificatio
n
 w
o
rk 

actin
g as an

 agen
t o

f th
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
.

C
e
rtific

a
tio

n
 a

rra
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

T
h
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
's certificatio

n
 arran

gem
en
ts are d

esign
ed
 to

 b
e 

p
ro
p
o
rtio

n
ate to

 th
e claim

 o
r retu

rn
. T

h
e arran

gem
en
ts fo

r 2013/
14 are:

•
fo
r claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s b

elo
w
 £
125,000, certificatio

n
 b
y u

s is n
o
t req

u
ired

, 
regard

less o
f an

y statu
to
ry certificatio

n
 req

u
irem

en
t o

r an
y certificatio

n
 

req
u
irem

en
t set o

u
t in

 gran
t term

s an
d
 co

n
d
itio

n
s

•
fo
r claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s ab

o
ve £

125,000 an
d
 b
elo

w
 £
500,000, w

e are req
u
ired

 to
 

p
erfo

rm
 lim

ited
 tests to

 agree en
tries o

n
 th

e claim
 o
r retu

rn
 to

 u
n
d
erlyin

g 
reco

rd
s, b

u
t are n

o
t req

u
ired

 to
 u
n
d
ertake an

y testin
g o

f th
e eligib

ility o
f 

exp
en
d
itu

re o
r d

ata

•
fo
r claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s o

ver £
500,000, w

e are req
u
ired

 to
 assess th

e co
n
tro

l 
en
viro

n
m
en
t fo

r th
e p

rep
aratio

n
 o
f th

e claim
 o
r retu

rn
 an

d
 d
ecid

e w
h
eth

er 
o
r n

o
t to

 p
lace relian

ce o
n
 it.  W

h
ere relian

ce is p
laced

 o
n
 th

e co
n
tro

l 
en
viro

n
m
en
t, w

e are req
u
ired

 to
 u
n
d
ertake lim

ited
 tests to

 agree en
tries o

n
 

th
e claim

 o
r retu

rn
 to

 u
n
d
erlyin

g reco
rd
s b

u
t n

o
t to

 u
n
d
ertake an

y testin
g o

f 
th
e eligib

ility o
f exp

en
d
itu

re o
r d

ata.  W
h
ere relian

ce is n
o
t p

laced
 o
n
 th

e 
co
n
tro

l en
viro

n
m
en
t, w

e are req
u
ired

 to
 u
n
d
ertake all th

e tests in
 th

e 
relevan

t certificatio
n
 in

stru
ctio

n
 an

d
 u
se o

u
r assessm

en
t o

f th
e co

n
tro

l 
en
viro

n
m
en
t to

 in
fo
rm

 d
ecisio

n
s o

n
 th

e level o
f testin

g req
u
ired

.

In
 d
eterm

in
in
g w

h
eth

er w
e p

lace relian
ce o

n
 th

e co
n
tro

l en
viro

n
m
en
t, w

e 
co
n
sid

er o
th
er w

o
rk w

e h
ave u

n
d
ertaken

 o
n
 th

e C
o
u
n
cil's fin

an
cial led

ger an
d
 

an
y o

th
er relevan

t system
s, an

d
 m

ake ap
p
ro
p
riate u

se o
f relevan

t in
tern

al au
d
it 

w
o
rk w

h
ere p

o
ssib

le.

H
o
w
ever, d

u
e to

 th
e cyclical testin

g req
u
irem

en
ts o

f th
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 , w

e 
are req

u
ired

 to
 co

m
p
lete d

etailed
 testin

g is req
u
ired

 every th
ree years in

 an
y 

even
t.

81



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

4

R
o
le

 o
f a

ll p
a
rtie

s

T
h
e tab

le b
elo

w
 su

m
m
arises th

e resp
ective ro

les an
d
 resp

o
n
sib

ilities o
f th

e p
arties 

in
vo

lved
 in

 th
e certificatio

n
 p
ro
cess.

T
h
e C

o
u
n
cil’s ro

le in
 set o

u
t in

 m
o
re d

etail b
elo

w
:

•
th
e H

ead
 o
f F

in
an
ce is resp

o
n
sib

le fo
r en

su
rin

g th
at su

p
p
o
rtin

g acco
u
n
tin

g 
reco

rd
s are su

fficien
t to

 d
o
cu
m
en
t th

e tran
sactio

n
s fo

r w
h
ich

 claim
s are 

m
ad
e.  T

h
ese reco

rd
s sh

o
u
ld
 b
e m

ain
tain

ed
 in

 acco
rd
an
ce w

ith
 p
ro
p
er 

p
ractices an

d
 kep

t u
p
 to

 d
ate, in

clu
d
in
g reco

rd
s o

f in
co
m
e an

d
 exp

en
d
itu

re 
in
 relatio

n
 to

 claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s

•
th
e C

o
u
n
cil sh

o
u
ld
 ascertain

 th
e req

u
irem

en
ts o

f sch
em

es at an
 early stage to

 
allo

w
 th

o
se resp

o
n
sib

le fo
r in

cu
rrin

g eligib
le exp

en
d
itu

re to
 assess w

h
eth

er it 
falls w

ith
in
 th

e sch
em

e ru
les an

d
 to

 ad
vise th

o
se resp

o
n
sib

le fo
r co

m
p
ilin

g 
claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s to

 co
n
firm

 an
y en

titlem
en
t

•
th
e C

o
u
n
cil sh

o
u
ld
 en

su
re all d

ead
lin

es fo
r in

terim
 an

d
 fin

al claim
s are m

et 
to
 avo

id
 san

ctio
n
s an

d
 p
en
alties fro

m
 gran

t p
ayin

g b
o
d
ies

•
gran

t-p
ayin

g b
o
d
ies u

su
ally req

u
ire th

e C
o
u
n
cil’s certificate to

 b
e given

 b
y an

 
ap
p
ro
p
riate sen

io
r o

fficer.  T
h
is is typ

ically th
e D

irecto
r o

f F
in
an
ce, H

o
u
sin

g 
an
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity o

r an
 o
fficer au

th
o
rised

 b
y w

ritten
 d
elegated

 p
o
w
ers

•
th
e C

o
u
n
cil sh

o
u
ld
 m

o
n
ito

r arran
gem

en
ts w

ith
 an

y th
ird

 p
arties in

vo
lved

 in
 

th
e certificatio

n
 p
ro
cess.

P
a
rty

R
o
le &

resp
o
n
sib

ility

G
ran

t p
ayin

g b
o
d
y

S
ets co

n
d
itio

n
s o

f gran
t an

d
 d
ead

lin
e fo

r 
su
b
m
issio

n
 fo

r p
re-certified

 an
d
 certified

 claim
s

A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
Issu

es certificatio
n
 in

stru
ctio

n
s fo

r au
d
ito

r w
o
rk

C
o
u
n
cil

S
u
b
m
its claim

s fo
r certificatio

n
 to

 th
e A

p
p
o
in
ted

 
A
u
d
ito

r w
ith

in
 gran

t p
ayin

g b
o
d
y su

b
m
issio

n
 

d
ead

lin
es

A
p
p
o
in
ted

A
u
d
ito

r
C
ertifies claim

s in
 acco

rd
an
ce w

ith
 A
u
d
it 

C
o
m
m
issio

n
 certificatio

n
 in

stru
ctio

n
s an

d
 w
ith

in
 

certificatio
n
 d
ead

lin
es

82



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

5

C
la

im
s
 h

is
to

ry

T
h
e m

o
st sign

ifican
t claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s in

 2012/
13 w

ere:
•

h
o
u
sin

g an
d
 co

u
n
cil tax b

en
efit claim

•
n
atio

n
al n

o
n
-d
o
m
estic rates retu

rn
•

p
o
o
lin

g o
f h

o
u
sin

g cap
ital receip

ts 

D
u
e to

 ch
an
ges in

 go
vern

m
en
t fu

n
d
in
g, th

ere are a n
u
m
b
er o

f sch
em

es th
at eith

er 
fin

ish
ed
 in

 2012/
13 o

r w
h
ere fu

n
d
in
g is n

o
 lo

n
ger rin

g-fen
ced

.  F
o
r th

e C
o
u
n
cil 

th
is m

ean
s th

at th
ere w

ill b
e n

o
 certificatio

n
 u
n
d
er th

e A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 regim

e 
o
f th

e fo
llo

w
in
g sch

em
es th

is year:
•

co
u
n
cil tax b

en
efit (p

revio
u
sly p

art o
f th

e h
o
u
sin

g an
d
 co

u
n
cil tax b

en
efit 

claim
)

•
n
atio

n
al n

o
n
-d
o
m
estic rates retu

rn

O
u
r c

e
rtific

a
te

F
o
llo

w
in
g o

u
r w

o
rk o

n
 each

 claim
 o
r retu

rn
, w

e issu
e o

u
r certificate.  T

h
e w

o
rd
in
g 

o
f th

is d
ep
en
d
s o

n
 th

e level o
f w

o
rk p

erfo
rm

ed
 as set o

u
t ab

o
ve, statin

g eith
er th

e 
claim

 o
r retu

rn
 is in

 acco
rd
an
ce w

ith
 th

e u
n
d
erlyin

g reco
rd
s, o

r th
e claim

 o
r retu

rn
 

is fairly stated
 an

d
 in

 acco
rd
an
ce w

ith
 th

e relevan
t term

s an
d
 co

n
d
itio

n
s.  O

u
r 

certificate also
 states th

at th
e claim

 h
as b

een
 certified

:

•
w
ith

o
u
t q

u
alificatio

n
•

w
ith

o
u
t q

u
alificatio

n
 b
u
t w

ith
 agreed

 am
en
d
m
en
ts in

co
rp
o
rated

 b
y th

e C
o
u
n
cil 

o
r

•
w
ith

 a q
u
alificatio

n
 letter (w

ith
 o
r w

ith
o
u
t agreed

 am
en
d
m
en
ts in

co
rp
o
rated

 b
y 

th
e C

o
u
n
cil).

W
h
ere a claim

 is q
u
alified

 b
ecau

se th
e C

o
u
n
cil h

as n
o
t co

m
p
lied

 w
ith

 th
e strict 

req
u
irem

en
ts set o

u
t in

 th
e certificatio

n
 in

stru
ctio

n
, th

ere is a risk th
at gran

t-
p
ayin

g b
o
d
ies w

ill retain
 fu

n
d
in
g claim

ed
 b
y th

e C
o
u
n
cil o

r claw
 b
ack fu

n
d
in
g 

w
h
ich

 h
as alread

y b
een

 p
ro
vid

ed
 o
r h

as n
o
t b

een
 retu

rn
ed
.  

In
 ad

d
itio

n
, w

h
ere claim

s o
r retu

rn
s req

u
ire am

en
d
m
en
t o

r are q
u
alified

, th
is 

in
creases th

e tim
e taken

 to
 u
n
d
ertake th

is w
o
rk, w

h
ich

 m
ay im

p
act o

n
 th

e 
certificatio

n
 fee.

C
e
rtific

a
tio

n
 w

o
rk

 fe
e
s

T
h
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 set an

 in
d
icative fee fo

r gran
t claim

 certificatio
n
 b
ased

 
o
n
 2011/

12 actu
al certificatio

n
 fees fo

r each
 co

u
n
cil.  T

h
e in

d
icative fee fo

r th
e 

C
o
u
n
cil is £

19,200.  T
h
is fee m

ay b
e su

b
ject to

 revisio
n
 b
y th

e A
u
d
it 

C
o
m
m
issio

n
 as certificatio

n
 o
f co

u
n
cil tax b

en
efit is n

o
 lo

n
ger req

u
ired

 as p
art 

o
f th

e H
o
u
sin

g B
en
efit S

u
b
sid

y sch
em

e. T
h
e fee is b

ased
 o
n
 th

e fo
llo

w
in
g 

assu
m
p
tio

n
s:

•
th
ere w

ill b
e n

o
 ch

an
ge in

 th
e sco

p
e o

f o
u
r w

o
rk d

u
e to

 th
e co

n
tro

l 
en
viro

n
m
en
t in

 p
lace d

u
rin

g th
e year

•
th
e C

o
u
n
cil p

ro
vid

es ad
eq
u
ate w

o
rkin

g p
ap
ers to

 su
p
p
o
rt each

 en
try in

 th
e 

claim
/
retu

rn
•

th
e C

o
u
n
cil’s staff are availab

le to
 d
eal w

ith
 o
u
r q

u
eries in

 a tim
ely m

an
n
er 

an
d
 p
ro
vid

e su
ch
 exp

lan
atio

n
s an

d
 su

p
p
o
rtin

g evid
en
ce n

ecessary to
 su

p
p
o
rt 

en
tries.

W
h
ere th

ere is an
y sign

ifican
t variatio

n
 fro

m
 th

ese assu
m
p
tio

n
s,  w

e w
ill d

iscu
ss 

a variatio
n
 to

 th
e in

d
icative scale fee w

ith
 th

e C
o
u
n
cil an

d
 th

e A
u
d
it 

C
o
m
m
issio

n
.

T
h
e C

o
u
n
cil h

as id
en
tified

 all claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s req

u
irin

g certificatio
n
 an

d
 th

is 
in
fo
rm

atio
n
 is in

co
rp
o
rated

 in
to
 A
p
p
en
d
ix A

 to
 th

is p
lan

.

83



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

6

A
d
m

in
is

tra
tio

n

W
h
en
 each

 exp
ected

 claim
 o
r retu

rn
 is co

m
p
leted

, a co
p
y o

f th
e sign

ed
 claim

 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e sen

t to
 E
m
ily H

ill at th
e fo

llo
w
in
g ad

d
ress:

G
ra

n
t T

h
o
rn

to
n
 U

K
 L

L
P

G
ra

n
t T

h
o
rn

to
n
 H

o
u
se

M
elto

n
 S
treet

E
u
sto

n
 S
q
u
a
re

L
o
n
d
o
n

N
W

1 2E
P

•
T
h
e o

rig
in

a
l
claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s sh

o
u
ld
 b
e retain

ed
 b
y th

e C
o
u
n
cil.

•
If ad

d
itio

n
al claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s are id

en
tified

 b
y eith

er u
s o

r th
e C

o
u
n
cil th

ey 
w
ill b

e in
co
rp
o
rated

 in
to
 th

e ap
p
en
d
ix in

 th
is p

lan
•

A
ll claim

s an
d
 retu

rn
s listed

 in
 A
p
p
en
d
ix A

 sh
o
u
ld
 b
e sen

t to
 u
s, even

 if 
b
elo

w
 th

e d
e m

in
im

is lim
it so

 th
at w

e can
 co

n
firm

 th
at n

o
 certificatio

n
 is 

req
u
ired

.  W
e are req

u
ired

 to
 rep

o
rt th

e valu
e o

f th
ese claim

s to
 th

e A
u
d
it 

C
o
m
m
issio

n
 in

 o
u
r an

n
u
al certificatio

n
 rep

o
rt. 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 th

e
 c

e
rtific

a
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 –

o
u
r ro

le

•
W
e in

ten
d
 to

 certify all claim
s an

d
 retu

rn
s in

 acco
rd
an
ce w

ith
in
 th

e 
d
ead

lin
es set b

y th
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
.  If w

e receive an
y claim

s after 
th
e C

o
u
n
cil's su

b
m
issio

n
 d
ead

lin
e, w

e w
ill en

d
eavo

u
r to

 certify th
em

 
w
ith

in
 th

e A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
 d
ead

lin
e b

u
t, w

h
ere th

is is n
o
t p

o
ssib

le, 
w
ith

in
 th

ree m
o
n
th
s fro

m
 receip

t
•

A
 co

p
y o

f each
 certified

 claim
 o
r retu

rn
 w
ill b

e sen
t to

 th
e relevan

t 
n
am

ed
 co

n
tact w

h
en
 th

e certificatio
n
 p
ro
cess is co

m
p
lete, alo

n
g w

ith
 a 

co
p
y o

f 
th
e q

u
alificatio

n
 letter, w

h
ere ap

p
licab

le
•

C
o
p
ies o

f th
e certificatio

n
 in

stru
ctio

n
s can

 b
e p

ro
vid

ed
 o
n
 req

u
est

•
W
e exp

ect to
 co

m
p
lete th

e certificatio
n
 o
f all claim

s b
y late 2014 an

d
 

w
ill issu

e a gran
t certificatio

n
 rep

o
rt h

igh
ligh

tin
g an

y issu
es th

at n
eed

 to
 

b
e b

ro
u
gh

t to
 th

e C
o
u
n
cil’s atten

tio
n
. 

84



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

7

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
:  S

u
m
m
ary o

f ex
p
ected

 claim
s &

 retu
rn
s fo

r th
e year en

d
ed
 3
1
 

M
arch

 2
0
1
4

C
la
im

 (C
I referen

ce)
A
u
th

o
rity 

d
ea

d
lin

e *
*

C
ertifica

tio
n

d
ea

d
lin

e *
*

C
la
im

 certified
 

in
 p

rio
r
yea

r

P
rio

r yea
r o

u
tco

m
e

H
o
u
sin

g b
en
efits su

b
sid

y (B
E
N
01) *

30/
04/

14
30/

11/
14

Y
es 

C
laim

 q
u
alified

an
d
 

am
en
d
ed
 

P
o
o
lin

g o
f h

o
u
sin

g cap
ital receip

ts (C
F
B
06)

28/
06/

14
27/

09/
14

Y
es

C
laim

 am
en
d
ed

*    N
o
 certificatio

n
 o
f co

u
n
cil tax b

en
efit is req

u
ired

 in
 2013/

14

**  In
d
icative d

ead
lin
es o

n
ly –

fin
al d

ead
lin
es to

 b
e co

n
firm

ed
 b
y th

e A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n

85



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

  |  C
ertification w

ork plan  |  M
arch 2014

©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

. A
ll rights reserved. 

'G
rant T

hornton' m
eans G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

, a lim
ited 

liability
partnership. 

G
rant T

hornton is a m
em

ber firm
 of G

rant T
hornton Internation

al Ltd 
(G

rant
T
hornton International). R

eferences to 'G
rant T

hornton' are 
to the brand under w

hich the G
rant T

hornton m
em

ber firm
s operate 

and refer to one or m
ore m

em
ber firm

s, as the context requires. 
G
rant T

hornton International and the m
em

ber firm
s are not a 

w
orldw

ide partnership. S
ervices are delivered independe

ntly by 
m
em

ber firm
s, w

hich are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. G

rant T
hornton International does not provide 

services to clients. 

g
ran

t-th
o
rn
to
n
.co

.u
k

86



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   

G
o
vern

an
ce C

o
m

m
ittee U

p
d

ate

fo
r D

o
ver D

istrict C
o

u
n

cil

Y
e

a
r
 e

n
d

 3
1

 M
a

r
c

h
 2

0
1

4

0
5

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

E
m

ily
 H

ill

A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
 D
ire

c
to
r

T
0
2
0
 7
7
2
8
 3
2
5
8

E
e
m
ily
.h
ill@

u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

D
a
n

ie
l W

o
o

d
c
o

c
k

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t M

a
n
a
g
e
r

T
0
1
2
9
3
 5
5
4
 1
2
2

E
d
a
n
ie
l.w

o
o
d
c
o
c
k
@
u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

Agenda Item No 11

87



T
h

e co
n

ten
ts o

f th
is rep

o
rt relate o

n
ly to

 th
e m

atters w
h

ich
 h

av
e co

m
e to

 o
u
r atten

tio
n

, 

w
h

ich
 w

e b
eliev

e n
eed

 to
 b

e rep
o

rted
 to

 yo
u
 as p

art o
f o

u
r au

d
it p

ro
cess.  It is n

o
t a 

co
m

p
reh

en
siv

e reco
rd

 o
f all th

e relev
an

t m
atters, w

h
ich

 m
ay b

e su
b

ject to
 ch

an
ge, an

d
 in

 

p
articu

lar w
e can

n
o

t b
e h

eld
 resp

o
n

sib
le to

 yo
u
 fo

r rep
o

rtin
g all o

f th
e risk

s w
h

ich
 m

ay affect 

yo
u
r b

u
sin

ess o
r an

y w
eak

n
esses in

 yo
u
r in

tern
al co

n
tro

ls.  T
h

is rep
o

rt h
as b

een
 p

rep
ared

 

so
lely fo

r yo
u
r b

en
efit an

d
 sh

o
u
ld

 n
o

t b
e q

u
o

ted
 in

 w
h
o

le o
r in

 p
art w

ith
o

u
t o

u
r p

rio
r w

ritten
 

co
n

sen
t. W

e d
o

 n
o

t accep
t an

y resp
o

n
sib

ility fo
r an

y lo
ss o

ccasio
n

ed
 to

 an
y th

ird
 p

arty actin
g, 

o
r refrain

in
g fro

m
 actin

g o
n

 th
e b

asis o
f th

e co
n

ten
t o

f th
is rep

o
rt, as th

is rep
o

rt w
as n

o
t 

p
rep

ared
 fo

r, n
o

r in
ten

d
ed

 fo
r, an

y o
th

er p
u
rp

o
se.

.

88



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
33

C
o
n
ten
ts

S
e
c
tio
n

P
a
g
e

In
tro

d
u
c
tio
n

4

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
t 0

5
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4

5

E
m
e
rg
in
g
 is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

L
o
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t g

u
id
a
n
c
e
 

7

G
ra
n
t T

h
o
rn
to
n

9

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
it is

s
u
e
s
 

1
2

89



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
44

In
tro
d
u
ctio

n

T
h
is
 p
a
p
e
r p

ro
v
id
e
s
 th

e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
itte

e
 w
ith
 a
 re

p
o
rt o

n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 in
 d
e
liv
e
rin
g
 o
u
r re

s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
 a
s
 y
o
u
r e

x
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
ito
rs
.  T

h
e
 

p
a
p
e
r a

ls
o
 in
c
lu
d
e
s
:

•
a
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f e
m
e
rg
in
g
 n
a
tio
n
a
l is

s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 th

a
t m

a
y
 b
e
 re

le
v
a
n
t to

 y
o
u
 a
s
 a
 D
is
tric

t C
o
u
n
c
il

•
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s
 in
 re

s
p
e
c
t o
f th

e
s
e
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 is
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 th

e
 C
o
m
m
itte

e
 m
a
y
 w
is
h
 to

 c
o
n
s
id
e
r.

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f th

e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
itte

e
 c
a
n
 fin

d
 fu
rth

e
r u

s
e
fu
l m

a
te
ria

l o
n
 o
u
r w

e
b
s
ite
 w
w
w
.g
ra
n
t-th

o
rn
to
n
.c
o
.u
k
, w

h
e
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
e
c
tio
n
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 to

 o
u
r w

o
rk
 in
 th

e
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r. H

e
re
 y
o
u
 c
a
n
 d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
 c
o
p
ie
s
 o
f o
u
r p

u
b
lic
a
tio
n
s
 –

'L
o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 2
0
1
3
',

'T
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
 tip

p
in
g
 p
o
in
t?
', 'T

h
e
 m
ig
ra
tio
n
 o
f p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
', 'T

h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 in
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
it a

g
e
n
d
a
', 'P

re
p
a
rin
g
 fo
r th

e
 fu
tu
re
', 'S

u
rv
iv
in
g
 th

e
 

s
to
rm

: h
o
w
 re

s
ilie

n
t a

re
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
?
'

If y
o
u
 w
o
u
ld
 lik

e
 fu

rth
e
r in

fo
rm

a
tio
n
 o
n
 a
n
y
 ite

m
s
 in
 th

is
 b
rie

fin
g
, o
r w

o
u
ld
 lik

e
 to

 re
g
is
te
r w

ith
 G
ra
n
t T

h
o
rn
to
n
 to
 re

c
e
iv
e
re
g
u
la
r e

m
a
il u

p
d
a
te
s
 

o
n
 is
s
u
e
s
 th

a
t a
re
 o
f in

te
re
s
t to

 y
o
u
, p

le
a
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t e
ith
e
r y
o
u
r E

n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t L
e
a
d
 o
r A

u
d
it M

a
n
a
g
e
r.

E
m
ily
 H
ill, E

n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t L
e
a
d
, T

 0
2
0
 7
7
2
8
 3
2
5
8
, M

 0
7
8
8
0
 4
5
6
 1
8
4
 E
m
ily
.h
ill@

u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

D
a
n
ie
l W

o
o
d
c
o
c
k
, A

u
d
it M

a
n
a
g
e
r, T

 0
1
2
9
3
 5
5
4
 1
2
2
, D

a
n
ie
l.w

o
o
d
c
o
c
k
@
u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

90



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
55

P
ro
g
ress at 0

5
 M
arch

 2
0
1
4

W
o
rk

P
la
n
n
e
d
 d
a
te

C
o
m
p
le
te
?

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
0
1
3
-1
4
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 A
u
d
it P

la
n

W
e
 a
re
 re

q
u
ire
d
 to
 is
s
u
e
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it 

p
la
n
 to

 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
s
e
ttin

g
 o
u
t o
u
r p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

in
 o
rd
e
r to

 g
iv
e
 a
n
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's

2
0
1
3
-1
4
 

fin
a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
.

2
0
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4

Y
e
s

In
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 th

e
 a
g
e
n
d
a

In
te
rim

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it 

O
u
r in

te
rim

 fie
ld
w
o
rk
 v
is
it in

c
lu
d
e
s
:

•
u
p
d
a
tin
g
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
 o
f th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's

 c
o
n
tro

l 

e
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
t

•
u
p
d
a
tin
g
o
u
r
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f fin

a
n
c
ia
l s
y
s
te
m
s

•
re
v
ie
w
 o
f In

te
rn
a
l A

u
d
it re

p
o
rts

 o
n
 c
o
re
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l 

s
y
s
te
m
s

•
e
a
rly
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 is
s
u
e
s

•
e
a
rly

s
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
 te
s
tin
g

•
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 V
a
lu
e
 fo

r M
o
n
e
y
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
.

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 to

 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4

O
n
-g
o
in
g

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
lre
a
d
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 u
p
d
a
tin
g
 o
u
r re

v
ie
w
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
tro

l e
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 o
u
r u

n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

th
e
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l s
y
s
te
m
s
, s
u
b
je
c
t to

 a
 re

v
ie
w
 o
f IT

 

c
o
n
tro

ls
.

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
u
r in

itia
l ris

k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t fo

r 

th
e
 V
a
lu
e
 fo

r M
o
n
e
y
 C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
.

T
h
e
 a
u
d
it te

a
m
 is
 o
n
 s
ite
 fro

m
 3
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 fo

r tw
o
 

w
e
e
k
s
 to

 c
o
m
p
le
te
 th
e
 re

m
a
in
d
e
r o

f th
e
 in
te
rim

 

fie
ld
w
o
rk

2
0
1
3
-1
4
 fin

a
l a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
u
d
it

In
c
lu
d
in
g
:

•
a
u
d
it o

f th
e
 2
0
1
3
-1
4
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

•
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 th

e
C
o
u
n
c
il's

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

•
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 V
a
lu
e
 fo

r M
o
n
e
y
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
.

J
u
ly
 to

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

N
o
t n

e
e
d
e
d

91



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
66

P
ro
g
ress at 0

5
 M
arch

 2
0
1
4

W
o
rk

P
la
n
n
e
d
 d
a
te

C
o
m
p
le
te
?

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

V
a
lu
e
 fo
r M

o
n
e
y
 (V
fM
) c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

T
h
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 o
f o
u
r w

o
rk
 to

 in
fo
rm

 th
e
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 V
fM
 

c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 c
o
m
p
ris
e
s
:

•
T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
 h
a
s
 p
ro
p
e
r a

rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 in
 p
la
c
e
 

fo
r s
e
c
u
rin
g
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l re

s
ilie

n
c
e
.

•
T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
 h
a
s
 p
ro
p
e
r a

rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 fo
r 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 h
o
w
 it s

e
c
u
re
s
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
, e
ffic

ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 

e
ffe

c
tiv
e
n
e
s
s
.

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 to

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 2

0
1
4

O
n
-g
o
in
g

O
th
e
r a
re
a
s
 o
f w

o
rk
 

G
ra
n
t
C
e
rtific

a
tio
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 2

0
1
3

Y
e
s

T
h
e
 G
ra
n
t C

e
rtific

a
tio
n
 w
o
rk
 fo

r 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

w
ith
 th

e
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 re

p
o
rt b

e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 to

 th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
itte

e
 o
n
 2
0
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
.

O
th
e
r a
c
tiv
ity
 u
n
d
e
rta
k
e
n

L
ia
is
o
n
m
e
e
tin
g
 w
ith
 th

e
 D
ire
c
to
r o

f F
in
a
n
c
e
, H

o
u
s
in
g
 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 a
n
d
 th

e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f F

in
a
n
c
e

2
3
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4

Y
e
s

92



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
77

C
o
u
n
cils ch

o
o
sin
g th

eir au
d
ito
rs o

n
e step

 clo
ser

L
o
c
a
l
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

L
o
c
a
l A
u
d
it a

n
d
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ility

 A
c
t 

T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l A

u
d
it a

n
d
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ility

 A
c
t re

c
e
iv
e
d
 R
o
y
a
l A

s
s
e
n
t o
n
 3
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
2
0
1
4
. 

K
e
y
 p
o
in
ts
:

•
th
e
 A
c
t m

a
k
e
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 fo

r th
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f th

e
 A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
o
n
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
;

•
a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 w
o
rk
e
d
 th

ro
u
g
h
 to
 tra

n
s
fe
r re

s
id
u
a
l A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 re

s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
 to

 n
e
w
  o

rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
;

•
th
e
re
 w
ill b

e
 a
 n
e
w
 fra

m
e
w
o
rk
 fo
r lo

c
a
l p
u
b
lic
 a
u
d
it d

u
e
 to

 s
ta
rt  w

h
e
n
 th

e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
's
 c
u
rre

n
t c
o
n
tra

c
ts
 w
ith
 a
u
d
it s

u
p
p
lie
rs
 e
n
d
 in
 

2
0
1
6
/1
7
, o
r p

o
te
n
tia
lly
 2
0
1
9
/2
0
 if a

ll th
e
 c
o
n
tra

c
ts
 a
re
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
;

•
th
e
 N
a
tio
n
a
l A

u
d
it O

ffic
e
 w
ill b

e
 re

s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 fo

r th
e
 c
o
d
e
s
 o
f a
u
d
it p

ra
c
tic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
, w

h
ic
h
 s
e
t o
u
t th

e
 w
a
y
 in
 w
h
ic
h
 a
u
d
ito
rs
 a
re
 to
 

c
a
rry

 o
u
t th

e
ir fu

n
c
tio
n
s
;

•
L
o
c
a
l A

u
th
o
rity

's
 w
ill ta

k
e
 re

s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
 fo

r c
h
o
o
s
in
g
 th

e
ir o

w
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
ito
rs
; 

•
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 b
o
d
ie
s
 (a

c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
c
y
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l b
o
d
ie
s
) w

ill re
g
is
te
r a

u
d
it firm

s
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
ito
rs
 a
n
d
 w
ill  b

e
 re

q
u
ire
d
 to
 h
a
v
e
 

ru
le
s
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
tic
e
s
 in
 p
la
c
e
 th

a
t c
o
v
e
r th

e
 e
lig
ib
ility

 o
f firm

s
 to
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 a
s
 lo
c
a
l a
u
d
ito
rs
;

•
L
o
c
a
l A

u
th
o
rity

's
 w
ill b

e
 re

q
u
ire
d
 to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 a
u
d
ito
r p

a
n
e
l  w

h
ic
h
 m

u
s
t a
d
v
is
e
 th

e
 a
u
th
o
rity

 o
n
 th

e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f a
n
 in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
la
tio
n
s
h
ip
 w
ith
 th

e
 lo
c
a
l a
u
d
ito
r a

p
p
o
in
te
d
 to

 a
u
d
it its

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
;

•
e
x
is
tin
g
 rig

h
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 in
s
p
e
c
tio
n
 o
f d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, th

e
 rig

h
t to

 m
a
k
e
 a
n
 o
b
je
c
tio
n
 a
t a
u
d
it a

n
d
 fo

r d
e
c
la
rin
g
 a
n
 ite

m
 o
f a
c
c
o
u
n
t u
n
la
w
fu
l a
re
 

in
 lin

e
 w
ith
 c
u
rre

n
t a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
;

•
tra

n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 g
iv
e
 c
itiz

e
n
s
 th

e
 rig

h
t to

 film
 a
n
d
 tw

e
e
t fro

m
 a
n
y
 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t b
o
d
y
 m

e
e
tin
g
.

Is
s
u
e
s
 to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r/c

h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s
:

•
H
a
v
e
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 th

e
 im

p
lic
a
tio
n
s
 o
f th

e
 L
o
c
a
l A

u
d
it a

n
d
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ility

 A
c
t fo

r th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's

 fu
tu
re
 e
x
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
it 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
?

93



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
88

H
elp
in
g th

e H
igh
 S
treet

L
o
c
a
l
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

S
u
p
p
o
rt fo

r U
K
 h
ig
h
 s
tre
e
ts
 

O
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 6

, 2
0
1
3
 th

e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
itie

s
 S
e
c
re
ta
ry
 s
e
t o
u
t a
 £
1
 b
illio

n
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 o
f s
u
p
p
o
rt fo

r U
K
 h
ig
h
 s
tre

e
ts
, th

e
 s
ta
te
d
 o
b
je
c
tiv
e
s
b
e
in
g
 

to
:

•
s
u
p
p
o
rt b

u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 p
riv
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r to

 h
a
v
e
 a
 g
re
a
te
r s
ta
k
e
 in
 th

e
ir h

ig
h
 s
tre

e
ts
;

•
m
a
k
e
 it e

a
s
ie
r to

 d
iv
e
rs
ify
 to

w
n
 c
e
n
tre

s
;

•
e
n
s
u
re
 to
w
n
 c
e
n
tre

s
 re

m
a
in
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 to

 v
is
ito
rs
;

•
p
ro
m
o
te
 th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f te

c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 to

 m
o
d
e
rn
is
e
 to
w
n
 c
e
n
tre

s
.

K
e
y
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f th

e
 s
tra

te
g
y
 in
c
lu
d
e
:

•
a
 £
1
,0
0
0
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t in

 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 fo
r re

ta
il p

re
m
is
e
s
 w
ith
 a
 ra

te
a
b
le
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f u
p
 to

 £
5
0
,0
0
0
 –
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
h
o
p
s
, p
u
b
s
, c
a
fé
 a
n
d
 

re
s
ta
u
ra
n
ts
;

•
c
a
p
p
in
g
 th

e
 R
e
ta
il P

ric
e
 In

d
e
x
 (R

P
I) in

c
re
a
s
e
 in
 b
ills

 to
 2
%
 in
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
;

•
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 th

e
 d
o
u
b
lin
g
 o
f S

m
a
ll B

u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
s
 re

lie
f to

 A
p
ril 2

0
1
5
;

•
a
 re

o
c
c
u
p
a
tio
n
 re

lie
f fo

r 1
8
 m

o
n
th
s
 w
ith
 a
 5
0
%
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t fo

r n
e
w
 o
c
c
u
p
a
n
ts
 o
f re

ta
il p

re
m
is
e
s
 e
m
p
ty
 fo
r a

 y
e
a
r o

r m
o
re
;

•
a
s
s
is
tin
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
h
 flo

w
 b
y
 a
llo
w
in
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 to

 p
a
y
 th

e
ir b

ills
 o
v
e
r 1

2
 m

o
n
th
s
 (ra

th
e
r th

a
n
 1
0
)

Is
s
u
e
s
 to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r/c

h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s
:

•
H
a
s
 th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 th
e
 lo
c
a
l e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 im

p
a
c
t o
f th

e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 th

e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
itie

s
 S
e
c
re
ta
ry
?

•
H
a
s
 th

e
 D
ire
c
to
r o

f F
in
a
n
c
e
, H

o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
  th

e
 im

p
a
c
t o
f th

e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 o
n
 th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's

 fin
a
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
?

94



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
99

7
9
%
 o
f C

o
u
n
cils an

ticip
ate T

ip
p
in
g P
o
in
t so

o
n

G
ra
n
t T
h
o
rn
to
n

2
0
1
6
 tip

p
in
g
p
o
in
t?
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 th
e
 c
u
rre

n
t

T
h
is
 re

p
o
rt h

ttp
://w

w
w
.g
ra
n
t-th

o
rn
to
n
.c
o
.u
k
/G
lo
b
a
l/P
u
b
lic
a
tio
n
_
p
d
f/L
G
-F
in
a
n
c
ia
l-R
e
s
ilie

n
c
e
-2
0
1
6
-tip

p
in
g
-p
o
in
t.p
d
f
is
 th

e
 th
ird
 in
 

a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l s
e
rie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
e
th
e
r E

n
g
lis
h
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 h
a
v
e
 th

e
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
in
 p
la
c
e
 to

 e
n
s
u
re
 th
e
ir s

u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l 

fu
tu
re
.

L
o
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 h
a
v
e
 s
o
 fa

r m
e
t th

e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 o
f p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r b

u
d
g
e
t re

d
u
c
tio
n
s
. H

o
w
e
v
e
r, s

o
m
e
 a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
re
 p
re
d
ic
tin
g
re
a
c
h
in
g
 

tip
p
in
g
 p
o
in
t, w

h
e
n
 th

e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 b
e
c
o
m
e
s
 a
c
u
te
 a
n
d
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l fa

ilu
re
 is
 a
 re

a
l ris

k
. B

a
s
e
d
 o
n
 o
u
r re

v
ie
w
 o
f fo

rty
 p
e
r c

e
n
t o
f
th
e
 s
e
c
to
r, th

is
 

re
p
o
rt s

h
o
w
s
 th

a
t s
e
v
e
n
ty
 n
in
e
 p
e
r c
e
n
t o
f lo

c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
n
tic
ip
a
te
 s
o
m
e
 fo
rm

 o
f tip

p
in
g
 p
o
in
t in

 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 o
r 2

0
1
6
/1
7
. 

O
u
r re

p
o
rt ra

te
s
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 in
 fo

u
r a

re
a
s
 -
k
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f fin

a
n
c
ia
l p
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
, s
tra

te
g
ic
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l p
la
n
n
in
g
, fin

a
n
c
ia
l g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l c
o
n
tro

l. It a
ls
o
 id
e
n
tifie

s
 a
 s
e
rie
s
 o
f p
o
te
n
tia
l ‘tip

p
in
g
 p
o
in
t s
c
e
n
a
rio
s
’ s
u
c
h
 a
s
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 n
o
 lo
n
g
e
r
b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 to

 m
e
e
t 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 re

s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
 to

 d
e
liv
e
r a

 ra
n
g
e
 o
f s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

O
u
r re

p
o
rt a

ls
o
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t s
o
m
e
 o
f th

e
 k
e
y
 p
rio
ritie

s
 fo

r lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 in
 re

s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 to
 th
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 o
f re

m
a
in
in
g
 fin

a
n
c
ia
lly

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
. 

T
h
is
 in
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 re

le
n
tle
s
s
 fo

c
u
s
 o
n
 g
e
n
e
ra
tin
g
 a
d
d
itio

n
a
l s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f re

v
e
n
u
e
 in
c
o
m
e
, a
n
d
 im

p
ro
v
in
g
 e
ffic

ie
n
c
y
 th
ro
u
g
h
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

s
tra

te
g
ic
 p
a
rtn

e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 w
id
e
r re

-o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
.

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s

•
O
u
r re

p
o
rt in

c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
tic
e
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 to

 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
e
n
io
r m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 w
ith
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f k
e
y
 tip

p
in
g
 

p
o
in
t ris

k
s
. H

a
s
 th

e
 D
ire
c
to
r o

f F
in
a
n
c
e
, H

o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 th
e
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
t a
n
d
 re

p
o
rte

d
 it to

 th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m
m
itte

e
?

•
T
h
e
 re

p
o
rt a

ls
o
 in
c
lu
d
e
s
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
tic
e
 c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 in
 s
tra

te
g
ic
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l p
la
n
n
in
g
, fin

a
n
c
ia
l g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l c
o
n
tro

l.
H
a
s
 th

e
 

D
ire
c
to
r o

f F
in
a
n
c
e
, H

o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 re

v
ie
w
e
d
 th

e
s
e
 c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r th

e
re
 is
 s
c
o
p
e
 to

 a
d
o
p
t th

e
s
e
?

95



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
1
0
1
0

A
ltern

ative D
elivery M

o
d
els –

are yo
u
 m
ak
in
g th

e m
o
st o

f th
em
?

G
ra
n
t T
h
o
rn
to
n

A
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
m
o
d
e
ls
 in
 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t

T
h
is
re
p
o
rt: h

ttp
://w

w
w
.g
ra
n
t-th

o
rn
to
n
.c
o
.u
k
/e
n
/P
u
b
lic
a
tio
n
s
/2
0
1
4
/R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
-to

-th
e
-c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
-a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
-d
e
liv
e
ry
-m

o
d
e
ls
-in

-lo
c
a
l-

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t/
d
is
c
u
s
s
e
s
 th
e
 m

a
in
 a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
ls
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 to

 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t. T

h
e
s
e
 a
re
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 o
u
r re

c
e
n
t c
lie
n
t s
u
rv
e
y
 

a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 w
ith
 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t c
lie
n
ts
. It a

im
s
 to

 a
s
s
is
t o
th
e
rs
 a
s
 th

e
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 th

e
ir o

p
tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 im

p
le
m
e
n
t in

n
o
v
a
tio
n

s
tra

te
g
ie
s
.

L
o
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t h
a
s
 in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 th

e
 v
a
rie
ty
 a
n
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
ls
 it u

s
e
s
 in
 re

c
e
n
t y
e
a
rs
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
n
tra

c
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rtn

e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
ith
 o
th
e
r p

u
b
lic
 b
o
d
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
riv
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r o

rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
, a
s
 w
e
ll a

s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
w
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r a

n
d
 n
o
n
-p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 

e
n
titie

s
. W

ith
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l a
u
s
te
rity

 s
e
t to

 c
o
n
tin
u
e
, it is

 im
p
o
rta

n
t th

a
t lo

c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 c
o
n
tin
u
e
 in
n
o
v
a
tin
g
, if th

e
y
 a
re
 to
 re

m
a
in
 fin

a
n
c
ia
lly
 

re
s
ilie

n
t a

n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 b
e
tte

r q
u
a
lity

 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t re

d
u
c
e
d
 c
o
s
t.

T
h
is
 re

p
o
rt is

 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 b
rie
f c
lie
n
t s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 w
ith
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
rity

 c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
:

•
O
u
tlin

e
s
 th
e
 m

a
in
 a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
ls
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 to

 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s

•
A
im
s
 to

 a
s
s
is
t o

th
e
r a

u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
s
 th

e
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 th

e
ir o

p
tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 im

p
le
m
e
n
t in

n
o
v
a
tio
n
 s
tra

te
g
ie
s
 

•
C
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f ris

k
.

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n

•
O
u
r re

p
o
rt in

c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 s
u
m
m
a
ris
in
g
 h
o
w
 p
u
b
lic

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 th

ro
u
g
h
 a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls
. 

H
a
s
 th

e
 A
u
th
o
rity

 re
v
ie
w
e
d
 th

e
s
e
 c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r th

e
re
 a
re
 s
im
ila
r o

p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 to

 it?

•
O
u
r re

p
o
rt in

c
lu
d
e
s
 th

re
e
 s
h
o
rt c

h
e
c
k
lis
ts
 o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rtin

g
 in
n
o
v
a
tio
n
 in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
, s
e
ttin

g
 u
p
 a
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s
 th
a
t

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
s
k
 o
ffic

e
rs
 w
h
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
rin
g
 th

e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f a
 n
e
w
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
l. A

re
 th
e
 c
h
e
c
k
lis
ts
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt 

o
f th

e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 A
u
th
o
rity

's
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
tra

te
g
y
?

96



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
1
1
1
1

W
elfare refo

rm
s –

w
h
at yo

u
 th
in
k
 o
f it so

 far?

G
ra
n
t T
h
o
rn
to
n

R
e
a
p
in
g
 th
e
 b
e
n
e
fits

: firs
t im

p
re
s
s
io
n
s
 o
f th

e
 im

p
a
c
t o
f w

e
lfa
re
 re
fo
rm
. 

T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
tia
l s
c
o
p
e
 o
f th

is
 to

p
ic
 is
 b
ro
a
d
, s
o
 o
u
r re

p
o
rt fo

c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 th

e
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
ria
l a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f w

e
lfa
re
 re

fo
rm

. T
h
is
 in
v
o
lv
e
s
:

•
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 th
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 c
u
rre

n
tly
 fa

c
in
g
 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
tio
n
s
 in
 re

g
a
rd
 to
 w
e
lfa
re
 re

fo
rm

 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
o
in
g
 to

 m
e
e
t th

is
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 in
 te

rm
s
 o
f s
tra

te
g
y
, p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
.

•
R
e
p
o
rtin

g
 o
n
 th

e
 e
a
rly
 in
d
ic
a
tio
n
s
 o
f e
ffe

c
tiv
e
n
e
s
s
 fo
llo
w
in
g
 th

e
 im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f th

e
s
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 im

p
a
c
t o
f re

fo
rm

.

•
P
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
a
rly
 in
s
ig
h
t in

to
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 fa

c
in
g
 th
e
s
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 in
 th

e
 n
e
a
r fu

tu
re
.

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 p
u
lle
d
 to

g
e
th
e
r in

fo
rm

a
tio
n
 fro

m
 a
 v
a
rie
ty
 o
f s
o
u
rc
e
s
, in

c
lu
d
in
g
 o
u
r re

g
u
la
r c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
tio
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 th
e
 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
in
g
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
tio
n
s
 in
 E
n
g
la
n
d
.

W
e
 fo
u
n
d
 th
a
t:

•
In
 g
e
n
e
ra
l, o

rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 v
e
ry
 a
c
tiv
e
 in
 e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
ith
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
u
ttin

g
 in
 p
la
c
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 to
 im

p
le
m
e
n
t s
p
e
c
ific

 re
fo
rm

s
. A

 m
in
o
rity

 o
f o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 d
id
 n
o
t fu

lly
 e
x
p
lo
it a

ll th
e
 o
p
tio
n
s
 o
p
e
n
 to

 th
e
m
 in
 

p
re
p
a
rin
g
 fo
r re

fo
rm

.

•
S
o
 fa

r, th
e
 in
d
ic
a
tio
n
 is
 th

a
t th

e
 im

p
a
c
t o
f re

fo
rm

 e
x
p
e
rie

n
c
e
d
 b
y
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rtn

e
rs
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 e
ffe

c
tiv
e
ly
. T

h
is
 m

a
y
 

b
e
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 th

e
 fu
ll im

p
a
c
t h
a
s
 n
o
t y
e
t b
e
e
n
 fe

lt. S
o
m
e
 w
o
rry

in
g
 s
ig
n
s
 a
re
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
, in

c
lu
d
in
g
 ris

in
g
 re

n
ta
l a
rre

a
rs
, h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

re
lia
n
c
e
 o
n
 fo

o
d
 b
a
n
k
s
, w

h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 b
e
 lin

k
e
d
 to

 th
e
 re

fo
rm

s
.

•
L
o
o
k
in
g
 a
h
e
a
d
, fu

rth
e
r re

fo
rm

s
, s
u
c
h
 a
s
 th

e
 im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l c
re
d
it a

n
d
 th

e
 m

o
v
e
 to
 d
ire
c
t p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 p
re
s
e
n
t s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t 

u
n
c
e
rta

in
tie
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 o
v
e
r th

e
 n
e
x
t fe

w
 y
e
a
rs
.

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s

•
H
a
s
 th

e
 D
ire
c
to
r o

f F
in
a
n
c
e
, H

o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 k
e
p
t m

e
m
b
e
rs
 in
fo
rm

e
d
 o
f p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
ith
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r e

n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

to
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 to
 im

p
le
m
e
n
t s
p
e
c
ific

 re
fo
rm

s
?

•
W
h
a
t im

p
a
c
t a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t is

 th
e
 A
u
th
o
rity

 c
a
rry

in
g
 o
u
t o
n
 c
o
u
n
c
il ta

x
 lo
c
a
lis
a
tio
n
, th

e
 b
e
n
e
fit c

a
p
 a
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fit, th

e
 s
p
a
re

ro
o
m
 

s
u
b
s
id
y
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to
 th
e
 S
o
c
ia
l F

u
n
d
?

•
D
o
e
s
 th

e
 A
u
th
o
rity

 h
a
v
e
 a
 p
la
n
 in
 p
la
c
e
 o
r in

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t fo

r th
e
 in
tro

d
u
c
tio
n
 o
f u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l c
re
d
it?

97



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
1
2
1
2

R
evalu

in
g yo

u
r assets –

clarificatio
n
 o
f acco

u
n
tin
g gu

id
an
ce

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
it
is
s
u
e
s

P
ro
p
e
rty
, p
la
n
t a
n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t v
a
lu
a
tio
n
s
 

T
h
e
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 C
o
d
e
 h
a
s
 c
la
rifie

d
 th

e
 re

q
u
ire
m
e
n
ts
 fo
r v
a
lu
in
g
 p
ro
p
e
rty

, p
la
n
t a

n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 n
o
w
 s
ta
te
s
 e
x
p
lic
itly

 th
a
t re

v
a
lu
a
tio
n
s
 

m
u
s
t b
e
 's
u
ffic

ie
n
tly
 re

g
u
la
r to

 e
n
s
u
re
 th

a
t th

e
 c
a
rry

in
g
 a
m
o
u
n
t d
o
e
s
 n
o
t d
iffe

r m
a
te
ria
lly
 fro

m
 th
a
t w

h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 u
s
in
g
 th
e
 

fa
ir v

a
lu
e
 a
t th

e
 e
n
d
 o
f th

e
 re

p
o
rtin

g
 p
e
rio
d
.' T

h
is
 m

e
a
n
s
 th
a
t a
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
rity

 w
ill n

e
e
d
 to

 s
a
tis
fy
 its

e
lf th

a
t th

e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f a
s
s
e
ts
 in
 its

 

b
a
la
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
t is

 n
o
t m

a
te
ria
lly
 d
iffe

re
n
t fro

m
 th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t th

a
t w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 b
y
 a
 fu

ll v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 c
a
rrie

d
 o
u
t o
n
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
. T

h
is
 is
 lik

e
ly
 

to
 b
e
 a
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t in

c
lu
d
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
tio
n
 o
f: 

•
th
e
 c
o
n
d
itio

n
 o
f th

e
 a
u
th
o
rity

's
 p
ro
p
e
rty

 p
o
rtfo

lio
 a
t 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

•
th
e
 re

s
u
lts
 o
f re

c
e
n
t re

v
a
lu
a
tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t th

is
 m
ig
h
t m

e
a
n
 fo

r th
e
 v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 o
f p
ro
p
e
rty

 th
a
t h
a
s
 n
o
t b
e
e
n
 re

c
e
n
tly
 v
a
lu
e
d
 

•
g
e
n
e
ra
l in

fo
rm

a
tio
n
 o
n
 m

a
rk
e
t p
ric
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 

•
th
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
tio
n
 o
f m

a
te
ria
lity

 in
 its

 w
id
e
s
t s
e
n
s
e
 -
w
h
e
th
e
r a

n
 is
s
u
e
 w
o
u
ld
 in
flu
e
n
c
e
 th

e
 v
ie
w
 o
f a
 re

a
d
e
r o

f th
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
d
e
 a
ls
o
 fo

llo
w
s
 th

e
 w
o
rd
in
g
 in
 IA

S
1
6
 m

o
re
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 in
 th

e
 re

q
u
ire
m
e
n
ts
 fo
r v
a
lu
in
g
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 o
f a
s
s
e
ts
: 

•
ite
m
s
 w
ith
in
 a
 c
la
s
s
 o
f p
ro
p
e
rty

, p
la
n
t a

n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t a
re
 to

 b
e
 re

v
a
lu
e
d
s
im
u
lta
n
e
o
u
s
ly
 to

 a
v
o
id
 s
e
le
c
tiv
e
 re

v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 o
f a
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 th

e
 

re
p
o
rtin

g
 o
f a
m
o
u
n
ts
 in
 th

e
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 th
a
t a
re
 a
 m

ix
tu
re
 o
f c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
s
 a
s
 a
t d
iffe

re
n
t d
a
te
s
 

•
a
 c
la
s
s
 o
f a
s
s
e
ts
 m
a
y
 b
e
 re

v
a
lu
e
d
o
n
 a
 ro

llin
g
 b
a
s
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 re

v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 o
f th

e
 c
la
s
s
 o
f a
s
s
e
ts
 is
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
ith
in
 a
 s
h
o
rt p

e
rio
d
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 th

e
 re

v
a
lu
a
tio
n
s
 a
re
 k
e
p
t u
p
 to

 d
a
te
. 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 d
e
b
a
te
 o
n
 w
h
a
t is

 a
 s
h
o
rt p

e
rio
d
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r a

s
s
e
ts
 th
a
t h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
fin
e
d
 a
s
 c
la
s
s
e
s
 fo

r v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s

s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 d
is
c
lo
s
e
d
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 in
 th

e
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
. T

h
e
s
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
tio
n
s
 a
re
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 to

 th
e
 re

q
u
ire
m
e
n
t th

a
t th

e
 c
a
rry

in
g
 

v
a
lu
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t d
iffe

r m
a
te
ria
lly
 fro

m
 th
e
 fa

ir v
a
lu
e
. H

o
w
e
v
e
r, w

e
 w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t a

u
d
ito
rs
 to
 re

p
o
rt to

 th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 w
ith
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
, 

fo
r a

 m
a
te
ria
l a
s
s
e
t c
la
s
s
: 

•
a
ll a

s
s
e
ts
 w
ith
in
 th

e
 c
la
s
s
 a
re
 n
o
t a

ll v
a
lu
e
d
 in
 th

e
 s
a
m
e
 y
e
a
r 

•
th
e
 c
la
s
s
 o
f a
s
s
e
t is

 n
o
t d
is
c
lo
s
e
d
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 in
 th

e
 p
ro
p
e
rty

, p
la
n
t a

n
d
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t n
o
te
. 

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n

•
H
a
s
 y
o
u
r D

ire
c
to
r o

f F
in
a
n
c
e
, H

o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 c
o
n
s
u
lte
d
 y
o
u
 o
n
  th

e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f v
a
lu
a
tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 fo

r d
is
c
lo
s
in
g
 

in
fo
rm

a
tio
n
 a
b
o
u
t c
la
s
s
e
s
 o
f a
s
s
e
ts
?
 

98



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
1
3
1
3

E
stim

atin
g th

e im
p
act o

f b
u
sin
ess rate ap

p
eals

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
a
n
d
 a
u
d
it is

s
u
e
s

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 ra
te
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 

L
o
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
re
 lia

b
le
 fo

r s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l a
p
p
e
a
ls
 a
g
a
in
s
t b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 ra

te
s
. T

h
e
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
, th

e
re
fo
re
, re

c
o
g
n
is
e
 a
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 fo

r
th
e
ir b

e
s
t 

e
s
tim

a
te
 o
f th

e
 a
m
o
u
n
t th

a
t b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 o
v
e
rc
h
a
rg
e
d
 u
p
 to

 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
.

H
o
w
e
v
e
r, th

e
re
 a
re
 p
ra
c
tic
a
l d
iffic

u
ltie

s
 w
h
ic
h
 m

e
a
n
 th

a
t m

a
k
in
g
 a
 re

lia
b
le
 e
s
tim

a
te
 fo
r th

e
 to

ta
l a
m
o
u
n
t th

a
t h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 o
v
e
rc
h
a
rg
e
d
 is
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
: 

•
th
e
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 is
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 th

e
 V
a
lu
a
tio
n
 O
ffic

e
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 (V

O
A
) a

n
d
 s
o
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
re
 re

lia
n
t o

n
 th

e
 in
fo
rm

a
tio
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

to
 th
e
m
 b
y
 th

e
 V
O
A

•
s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 o
v
e
rc
h
a
rg
e
d
 b
u
t n
o
t y
e
t m

a
d
e
 a
n
 a
p
p
e
a
l. 

W
e
 w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t lo

c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
: 

•
to
 w
o
rk
 w
ith
 th

e
 V
O
A
to
 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 th
a
t th

e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 th
e
 in
fo
rm

a
tio
n
 th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 

•
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
, to

 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 a
 m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 fo

r e
s
tim

a
tin
g
 a
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 to

 a
p
p
ly
 th

is
 m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tly

•
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
e
a
ls
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
: 

-
to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r th

e
 e
x
te
n
t to

 w
h
ic
h
 a
 re

lia
b
le
 e
s
tim

a
te
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 (fo

r e
x
a
m
p
le
, in

 re
la
tio
n
 to

 m
a
jo
r b

u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
) 

-
to
 re

c
o
g
n
is
e
 a
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
h
e
re
 a
 re

lia
b
le
 e
s
tim

a
te
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

-
to
 d
is
c
lo
s
e
 a
 c
o
n
tin
g
e
n
t lia

b
ility

 w
h
e
re
 a
 re

lia
b
le
 e
s
tim

a
te
 c
a
n
n
o
t b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

-
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 ra

tio
n
a
le
 to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt th

e
ir ju

d
g
e
m
e
n
t th

a
t a
 re

lia
b
le
 e
s
tim

a
te
 c
a
n
n
o
t b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

•
to
 re

v
is
it th

e
 e
s
tim

a
te
 w
ith
 th

e
 la
te
s
t in

fo
rm

a
tio
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 im

m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 b
e
fo
re
 th
e
 a
u
d
it o

p
in
io
n
 is
 is
s
u
e
d
.

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s
:

•
Is
 y
o
u
r a

u
th
o
rity

 c
o
n
fid
e
n
t o
f o
b
ta
in
in
g
 th

e
 in
fo
rm

a
tio
n
 it n

e
e
d
s
 fro

m
 th
e
 V
O
A
?
 

•
H
a
s
 y
o
u
r a

u
th
o
rity

 re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
h
e
re
 it is

 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 to

 m
a
k
e
 a
 re

lia
b
le
 e
s
tim

a
te
?
 H
a
s
 a
 ro

b
u
s
t m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
?
 

•
H
a
s
 y
o
u
r a

u
th
o
rity

 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
 ro

b
u
s
t ra

tio
n
a
le
 w
h
e
re
 it h

a
s
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 it c

a
n
n
o
t m

a
k
e
 a
 re

lia
b
le
 e
s
tim

a
te
?
 Is
 it p

la
n
n
in
g
 to

 d
is
c
lo
s
e
 a
 

c
o
n
tin
g
e
n
t lia

b
ility

?
 

•
Is
 y
o
u
r a

u
th
o
rity

 p
la
n
n
in
g
 to

 re
v
is
it its

 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tin
g
e
n
t lia

b
ility

 b
e
fo
re
 th
e
 a
u
d
it o

p
in
io
n
 is
 is
s
u
e
d
?
 

99



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
1
4
1
4

A
cco

u
n
tin
g fo

r p
en
sio
n
s

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
a
n
d
 a
u
d
it is

s
u
e
s

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 fo
r a
n
d
 fin

a
n
c
in
g
 th
e
 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t p
e
n
s
io
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
s
ts

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 is
s
u
e
s
 

T
h
e
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 C
o
d
e
 fo

llo
w
s
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 to
 IA

S
1
9
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 th
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 re

q
u
ire
m
e
n
ts
 fo
r d

e
fin
e
d
 b
e
n
e
fit p

e
n
s
io
n
 lia

b
ilitie

s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

th
o
s
e
 a
ris
in
g
 fro

m
 th
e
 lo
c
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t p
e
n
s
io
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 (L

G
P
S
). T

h
is
 is
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 in
 a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 w
ill a

p
p
ly
 re

tro
s
p
e
c
tiv
e
ly
. 

T
h
e
 m
a
in
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
e
 e
x
p
e
c
t to

 s
e
e
 a
re
: 

•
a
 re

a
llo
c
a
tio
n
 o
f a
m
o
u
n
ts
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 in
 th

e
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 in
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t (C

IE
S
) 

•
m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
s
. 

W
e
 d
o
 n
o
t e
x
p
e
c
t c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
t ite

m
s
 (th

e
 n
e
t p
e
n
s
io
n
 lia

b
ility

 a
n
d
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 re

s
e
rv
e
 b
a
la
n
c
e
). T

h
is
 m

e
a
n
s
 th
a
t w

h
ils
t w

e
 

w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t th

e
 C
IE
S
 to

 b
e
 re

s
ta
te
d
, a
 th

ird
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
t is

 n
o
t re

q
u
ire
d
. A

c
tu
a
rie
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 w
ith
 th

e
 

in
fo
rm

a
tio
n
 th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 to

 p
re
p
a
re
 th
e
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
, in

c
lu
d
in
g
 re

s
ta
te
d
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
tiv
e
s
. 

F
in
a
n
c
in
g
 is
s
u
e
s
 

T
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t to

 b
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 to
 th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l fu

n
d
 in
 a
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l y
e
a
r is

 th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t th

a
t is

 p
a
y
a
b
le
 fo

r th
a
t fin

a
n
c
ia
l y
e
a
r a

s
 s
e
t
o
u
t in

 th
e
 

a
c
tu
a
ry
's
 ra

te
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 c
e
rtific

a
te
. S

o
m
e
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
rin
g
 p
a
y
in
g
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 fu

n
d
 c
o
n
trib

u
tio
n
s
 e
a
rly
 in
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 fo

r 

a
 d
is
c
o
u
n
t b

u
t n
o
t c
h
a
rg
in
g
 th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l fu

n
d
 u
n
til la

te
r. 

L
o
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 m
u
s
t b
e
 s
a
tis
fie
d
 th
a
t th

e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 to
 th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l fu

n
d
 in
 a
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l y
e
a
r a

re
 th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 fo

r
th
a
t y
e
a
r. 

W
h
e
re
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
rin
g
 m
a
k
in
g
 e
a
rly
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
, w

e
 w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t th

e
m
 to
 o
b
ta
in
 le
g
a
l a
d
v
ic
e
 (e

ith
e
r in

te
rn
a
lly

o
r

e
x
te
rn
a
lly
) to

 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 th
a
t a
re
 c
h
a
rg
e
a
b
le
 to
 th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l fu

n
d
. W

e
 w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t th

is
 to

 in
c
lu
d
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
tio
n
 o
f: 

•
th
e
 a
c
tu
a
ry
's
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 th

e
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 th
a
t a
re
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 b
y
 th

e
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
rity

 in
to
 th
e
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 fu

n
d
 

•
th
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t b
e
tw
e
e
n
 th

e
 a
c
tu
a
ry
 a
n
d
 th

e
 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
rity

 a
s
 to

 w
h
e
n
 th

e
s
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 to
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

•
th
e
 w
o
rd
in
g
 in
 th

e
 ra

te
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 c
e
rtific

a
te
 s
e
ttin

g
 o
u
t w

h
e
n
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 a
re
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 fo

r e
a
c
h
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l y
e
a
r. 

F
o
r e

x
a
m
p
le
, if a

 lo
c
a
l a
u
th
o
rity

 a
g
re
e
s
 to
 m
a
k
e
 a
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t to

 th
e
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 fu

n
d
 in
 a
 s
in
g
le
 y
e
a
r a

n
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
s
 to
 c
h
a
rg
e
 th
is
 a
m
o
u
n
t to

 th
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l fu

n
d
 o
v
e
r a

 th
re
e
-y
e
a
r p

e
rio
d
, w

e
 w
o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t th

e
 ra

te
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 c
e
rtific

a
te
 to
 s
h
o
w
, u

n
a
m
b
ig
u
o
u
s
ly
, th

a
t th

e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 

p
a
y
a
b
le
 is
 s
p
re
a
d
 o
v
e
r th

e
 th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 

100



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
1
5
1
5

A
cco

u
n
tin
g fo

r p
en
sio
n
s

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
a
n
d
 a
u
d
it is

s
u
e
s

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s
:

•
Is
 y
o
u
r lo

c
a
l a
u
th
o
rity

 c
o
n
fid
e
n
t o
f g

e
ttin

g
 th
e
 in
fo
rm

a
tio
n
 fro

m
 its

 a
c
tu
a
ry
 to
 m
e
e
t th

e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 in
 th

e
 re

q
u
ire
m
e
n
ts
 fo
r a

c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 fo
r th

e
 

L
G
P
S
(in
c
lu
d
in
g
 re

s
ta
tin
g
 th
e
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
tiv
e
s
)?
 

•
If y

o
u
r a

u
th
o
rity

 is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
rin
g
 m

a
k
in
g
 a
n
 e
a
rly
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t to

 th
e
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 fu

n
d
, h
a
s
 it s

e
t o
u
t a
 re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 a
rg
u
m
e
n
t fo

r h
o
w
 it
p
ro
p
o
s
e
s
 

to
 c
h
a
rg
e
 th
is
 a
m
o
u
n
t to

 th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l fu

n
d
?
 Is
 th
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rte

d
 b
y
 le
g
a
l a
d
v
ic
e
?
 

101



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   
1
6
1
6

C
h
an
g
es to

 th
e p
u
b
lic serv

ices p
en
sio
n
 sch

em
e

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
it
is
s
u
e
s

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to
 th
e
 L
o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t P
e
n
s
io
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e

T
h
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 B
ill re

c
e
iv
e
d
 R
o
y
a
l A

s
s
e
n
t in

 A
p
ril 2

0
1
3
, b

e
c
o
m
in
g
 th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 A
c
t 2
0
1
3
 (‘th

e
 A
c
t’).

T
h
e
 A
c
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 fo

r n
e
w
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 to
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 in
 E
n
g
la
n
d
, W

a
le
s
 &
 S
c
o
tla
n
d
.  C

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t re

g
u
la
tio
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

la
id
 to

 in
tro

d
u
c
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to
 th
e
 L
G
P
S
 in
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 W

a
le
s
 fro

m
 1
s
t A

p
ril 2

0
1
4
. (T

h
e
 re

g
u
la
tio
n
s
 fo
r th

e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 in
 S
c
o
tla
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t y
e
t 

b
e
e
n
 la
id
 a
n
d
 w
ill o

n
ly
 im

p
a
c
t fro

m
 1
 A
p
ril 2

0
1
5
). 

T
h
e
s
e
 in
tro

d
u
c
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
:

•
a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 fro

m
 a
 fin

a
l s
a
la
ry
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 to
 a
 c
a
re
e
r a

v
e
ra
g
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e

•
in
tro

d
u
c
tio
n
 o
f a
 5
0
/5
0
 o
p
tio
n
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 c
a
n
 c
h
o
o
s
e
 to

 re
d
u
c
e
 th
e
ir c

o
n
trib

u
tio
n
s
 b
y
 5
0
%
 to
 re

c
e
iv
e
 5
0
%
 le
s
s
 b
e
n
e
fit

•
c
a
lc
u
la
tio
n
 o
f c
o
n
trib

u
tio
n
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
c
tu
a
l s
a
la
ry
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 le
a
d
 to

 s
o
m
e
 s
ta
ff w

ith
 irre

g
u
la
r p

a
tte

rn
s
 o
f w

o
rk
in
g
 m

o
v
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

c
o
n
trib

u
tio
n
 ra

te
 b
a
n
d
in
g
s
 o
n
 a
 re

g
u
la
r b

a
s
is
 

•
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 in
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 c
o
n
trib

u
tio
n
 ra

te
s
 a
n
d
 b
a
n
d
in
g
s

•
tra

n
s
itio

n
a
l p
ro
te
c
tio
n
 fo
r p

e
o
p
le
 re

tirin
g
 w
ith
in
 1
0
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 1
 A
p
ril 2

0
1
4
 (fu

rth
e
r re

g
u
la
tio
n
s
 a
re
 s
till a

w
a
ite
d
.

T
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 im

p
lic
a
tio
n
s
 fo

r a
ll e

m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 in
v
o
lv
e
d
 in
 th

e
 L
G
P
S
 in
tro

d
u
c
in
g
 re

q
u
ire
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to
 th
e
ir p

a
y
ro
ll s

y
s
te
m
s
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 

p
e
n
s
io
n
 c
o
n
trib

u
tio
n
s
 a
re
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 c
o
rre

c
tly
. T

h
is
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t im

p
lic
a
tio
n
s
 fo

r a
d
m
in
is
te
rin
g
 a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
w
ith
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r h

o
w
 th

e
y
 w
ill o

b
ta
in
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r th

e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
n
e
s
s
 o
f c
o
n
trib

u
tio
n
s
 g
o
in
g
 fo
rw
a
rd
s
 s
in
c
e
 th

e
 c
a
lc
u
la
tio
n
s
 a
re
 

m
o
re
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 g
o
in
g
 fo

rw
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 le
s
s
 p
re
d
ic
ta
b
le
. In

 a
d
d
itio

n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 re

q
u
ire
d
 to
 p
e
n
s
io
n
 a
d
m
in
is
tra

tio
n
/p
a
y
m
e
n
t s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 m

u
c
h
 m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 in
d
iv
id
u
a
l p
e
n
s
io
n
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 fo
r a

ll m
e
m
b
e
rs
 to
 e
n
s
u
re
 th
e
 c
o
rre

c
t p
a
y
m
e
n
t o
f fu

tu
re
 

p
e
n
s
io
n
s
.

T
h
e
 A
c
t a

ls
o
 re

q
u
ire
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to
 th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
lth
o
u
g
h
 re

g
u
la
tio
n
s
 fo
r th

e
 L
G
P
S
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t y
e
t b
e
e
n
 la
id
 fo

r th
e
s
e
 a
n
d
 th

e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 in
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 to

 b
e
 im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 u
n
til 1

 A
p
ril 2

0
1
5
. 

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 q
u
e
s
tio
n
s

•
Is
 th
e
 a
u
th
o
rity

 a
w
a
re
 o
f th

e
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 re

q
u
ire
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 th

e
ir im

p
a
c
t o
n
 its

 c
u
rre

n
t p
a
y
ro
ll s

y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
?

•
Is
 th
e
 a
u
th
o
rity

 ta
k
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
 a
c
tio
n
 to

 e
n
s
u
re
 im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f th

e
 re

q
u
ire
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to
 its

 p
a
y
ro
ll s

y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 b
y
 1
 A
p
ril 

2
0
1
4
?

•
H
a
s
 th

e
 a
u
th
o
rity

 lia
is
e
d
 w
ith
 th

e
 a
d
m
in
is
te
rin
g
 a
u
th
o
rity

 o
v
e
r a

n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 th
e
y
 m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 in
 th

e
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
v
e
r th

e

c
o
m
p
le
te
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f  c

o
n
trib

u
tio
n
s
?

102



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   

©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

. A
ll rights reserved. 

'G
rant T

hornton' m
eans G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

, a lim
ited 

liability
partnership. 

G
rant T

hornton is a m
em

ber firm
 of G

rant T
hornton Internation

al Ltd 
(G

rant
T
hornton International). R

eferences to 'G
rant T

hornton' are 
to the brand under w

hich the G
rant T

hornton m
em

ber firm
s operate 

and refer to one or m
ore m

em
ber firm

s, as the context requires. 
G
rant T

hornton International and the m
em

ber firm
s are not a 

w
orldw

ide partnership. S
ervices are delivered independe

ntly by 
m
em

ber firm
s, w

hich are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. G

rant T
hornton International does not provide 

services to clients. 

g
ran

t-th
o
rn
to
n
.co

.u
k

103



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

T
h

e A
u
d

it P
lan

fo
r D

o
ver D

istrict C
o

u
n

cil

Y
e

a
r e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

0
5

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

E
m
ily
 H
ill

A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
 D
ire

c
to
r

T
 0
2
0
 7
7
2
8
 3
2
5
8

E
 e
m
ily
.h
ill@

u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

D
a
n
ie
l W

o
o
d
c
o
c
k

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t M

a
n
a
g
e
r

T
 0
1
2
9
3
 5
5
4
 1
2
2

E
 d
a
n
ie
l.w

o
o
d
c
o
c
k
@
u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

M
a
rk
 T
h
o
m
a
s

In
-c
h
a
rg
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
t

T
0
1
2
9
3
 5
5
4
 1
0
7

E
m
a
rk
.th

o
m
a
s
@
u
k
.g
t.c
o
m

Agenda Item No 12

104



T
h
e
co
n
ten

ts
o
f
th
is
rep

o
rt

relate
o
n
ly

to
th
e
m
atters

w
h
ich

h
av
e
co
m
e
to

o
u
r
atten

tio
n
,

w
h
ich

w
e
b
eliev

e
n
eed

to
b
e
rep

o
rted

to
yo
u
as

p
art

o
f
o
u
r
au
d
it
p
ro
cess.

It
is

n
o
t
a

co
m
p
reh

en
siv

e
reco

rd
o
f
all

th
e
relev

an
t
m
atters,

w
h
ich

m
ay

b
e
su
b
ject

to
ch
an
ge,

an
d
in

p
articu

lar
w
e
can

n
o
t
b
e
h
eld

resp
o
n
sib

le
to

yo
u
fo
r
rep

o
rtin

g
all

o
f
th
e
risk

s
w
h
ich

m
ay

affect

th
e
C
o
u
n
cil

o
r
an
y
w
eak

n
esses

in
yo
u
r
in
tern

al
co
n
tro

ls.
T
h
is
rep

o
rt
h
as

b
een

p
rep

ared
so
lely

fo
r
yo
u
r
b
en
efit

an
d
sh
o
u
ld

n
o
t
b
e
q
u
o
ted

in
w
h
o
le

o
r
in

p
art

w
ith

o
u
t
o
u
r
p
rio

r
w
ritten

co
n
sen

t.
W
e
d
o
n
o
t
accep

t
an
y
resp

o
n
sib

ility
fo
r
an
y
lo
ss
o
ccasio

n
ed

to
an
y
th
ird

p
arty

actin
g
,

o
r
refrain

in
g
fro

m
actin

g
o
n
th
e
b
asis

o
f
th
e
co
n
ten

t
o
f
th
is
rep

o
rt,

as
th
is
rep

o
rt
w
as

n
o
t

p
rep

ared
fo
r,
n
o
r
in
ten

d
ed

fo
r,
an
y
o
th
er

p
u
rp
o
se.

105



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

C
o
n
ten

ts

S
e

c
tio

n

1.
U
n
d
erstan

d
in
g yo

ur b
usin

ess

2.
D
evelo

p
m
en
ts relevan

t to
 yo

u
r b

u
sin

ess an
d
 th

e au
d
it

3.
O
u
r au

d
it ap

p
ro
ach

4.
A
n
 au

d
it fo

cu
sed

 o
n
 risks

5.
S
ign

ifican
t risks id

en
tified

6.
O
th
er risks                                                                                                      

7.
R
esu

lts o
f in

terim
 w
o
rk

8.
V
alu

e fo
r M

o
n
ey

9.
L
o
gistics an

d
 o
ur team

10.
F
ees an

d
 in

d
ep
en
d
en

ce

11.
C
o
m
m
u
n
icatio

n
 o
f au

d
it m

atters w
ith

 th
o
se ch

arged
 w
ith

 go
vern

an
ce

A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s

A
.

A
ctio

n
 p
lan

106



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

U
n
d
erstan

d
in
g yo

u
r b
u
sin
ess

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
/o

p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s

1
.

R
e
d
u
c
tio

n
 in

 fu
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l 

p
o
s
itio

n

•
S
in
c
e
 th

e
 C
h
a
n
c
e
llo
r's
 A
u
tu
m
n
 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
t in

 2
0
1
0
, c

e
n
tra

l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 re

d
u
c
in
g
 y
e
a
r o

n
 y
e
a
r. 

•
T
h
is
 p
o
s
e
s
 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 to

 th
e
 

a
u
th
o
rity

 in
 b
a
la
n
c
in
g
 its

 b
u
d
g
e
t in

 

c
u
rre

n
t a

n
d
 fu

tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
, p

a
rtic

u
la
rly
 

s
in
c
e
 th

e
 a
d
d
itio

n
a
l s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 re

v
ie
w
 in
 

2
0
1
3
.

2
.

L
o
c
a
l g

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t re

fo
rm

s

•
T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t F

in
a
n
c
e
 A
c
t 

2
0
1
2
 in
tro

d
u
c
e
d
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 to
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt a

rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
  a

n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

ra
te
 re

te
n
tio
n
.

•
T
h
e
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 in
c
re
a
s
e
 th

e
 c
o
u
n
c
il's

 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 to

 fin
a
n
c
e
 ris

k
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

a
 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t im

p
a
c
t o
n
 th

e
 a
u
th
o
rity

's
 

fu
n
d
in
g
.O

u
r re

s
p
o
n
s
e

W
e
 w
ill re

v
ie
w
:

•
h
o
w
 in
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 a
s
s
u
m
p
tio
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 in
to
 th

e
 m

e
d
iu
m
 

te
rm

 fin
a
n
c
ia
l p
la
n
; a

n
d

•
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 in
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
rin

g
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
la
n
s
.

W
e
 w
ill 

re
v
ie
w
:

•
h
o
w
 th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il h

a
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 th

e
 ris

k
s
 

a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 a
tta

c
h
e
d
 to

 th
e
 n
e
w
 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 fo

r c
o
u
n
c
il ta

x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 ra

te
 re

te
n
tio
n
 fo

r 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
; a

n
d

•
h
o
w
 th

e
  im

p
a
c
t o
f th

e
 re

fo
rm

s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 in
to
 th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's

 m
e
d
iu
m
 

te
rm

 fin
a
n
c
ia
l p
la
n
.

W
e
 w
ill 

re
v
ie
w
:

•
h
o
w
 th

e
 b
e
n
e
fits

 o
f s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
a
rtn

e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

m
o
n
ito
re
d
; 

•
a
n
y
 n
e
w
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 m

a
d
e
 w
ith
in
 th

e
 

s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
; a

n
d

•
th
e
 e
x
te
n
t to

 w
h
ic
h
 th

e
 a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
  c
o
s
t 

re
d
u
c
tio
n
s
 fro

m
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
.

In
 p
lan

n
in
g o

u
r au

d
it w

e n
eed

 to
 u
n
d
erstan

d
 th

e ch
allen

ges an
d
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ities th

e C
o
u
n
cil is facin

g.  W
e set o

u
t a su

m
m
ary o

f o
u
r u

n
d
erstan

d
in
g b

elo
w
.

3
.

P
a
rtic

ip
a
tio

n
 in

 s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

•
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il h

a
s
 c
o
m
m
itte

d
 to
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
ith
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rin

g
 a
u
th
o
ritie

s
 in
 re

c
e
n
t y
e
a
rs
.

•
T
h
e
s
e
 in
c
lu
d
e
 E
a
s
t K

e
n
t H

o
u
s
in
g
, E

a
s
t 

K
e
n
t S

e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 K
e
n
t C

o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
a
y
ro
ll s

e
rv
ic
e
s
 .

107



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

D
evelo

p
m
en
ts relevan

t to
 yo

u
r b
u
sin
ess an

d
 th
e au

d
it

In
 p
lan

n
in
g o

u
r au

d
it w

e also
 co

n
sid

er th
e im

p
act o

f key d
evelo

p
m
en
ts in

 th
e secto

r an
d
 take acco

u
n
t o

f n
atio

n
al au

d
it req

u
irem

en
ts as set o

u
t in

 th
e C

o
d
e o

f A
u
d
it P

ractice 
('th

e co
d
e') an

d
 asso

ciated
 gu

id
an
ce.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts

1
.F
in
a
n
c
ia
l re

p
o
rtin

g

�
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 to

 th
e
 C
IP
F
A
 C
o
d
e
 

o
f P

ra
c
tic
e
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

c
la
rific

a
tio
n
 o
f re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 P
ro
p
e
rty

, P
la
n
t a

n
d
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t v
a
lu
a
tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 fo

r P
e
n
s
io
n
 F
u
n
d
 

c
o
s
ts

�
N
e
w
 a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 

re
q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 fo

r b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

ra
te
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 fo

r 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 ra

te
 a
p
p
e
a
ls

2
. L

e
g
is
la
tio

n

�
L
o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t F

in
a
n
c
e
 

s
e
ttle

m
e
n
t 

�
W
e
lfa
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 A
c
t  2

0
1
2

�
L
o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t F

in
a
n
c
e
 

A
c
t 2

0
1
2

3
. C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

�
A
n
n
u
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t (A

G
S
)

�
E
x
p
la
n
a
to
ry
 fo

re
w
o
rd

5
. F

in
a
n
c
ia
l P

re
s
s
u
re
s

�
M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

w
ith
 le
s
s
 re

s
o
u
rc
e

�
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t s
a
v
in
g
s
 

p
la
n
s

6
. O

th
e
r re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts

�
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il is

 re
q
u
ire

d
 to

 

s
u
b
m
it a

 W
h
o
le
 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t A

c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
a
c
k
 

o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 a
u
d
it 

o
p
in
io
n
 

�
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il c

o
m
p
le
te
s
 g
ra
n
t 

c
la
im
s
 a
n
d
 re

tu
rn
s
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

a
u
d
it c

e
rtific

a
tio
n
 is
 re

q
u
ire

d

O
u
r re

s
p
o
n
s
e

�
W
e
 w
ill e

n
s
u
re
 th

a
t th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il c

o
m
p
lie
s
 w
ith
 th

e
 

re
q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 o
f th

e
 C
IP
F
A
 

C
o
d
e
 o
f P

ra
c
tic
e
 th

ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
 te

s
tin
g

�
W
e
 w
ill d

is
c
u
s
s
 th
e
 im

p
a
c
t o
f 

a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 fo

r th
e
 n
e
w
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 ra

te
s
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's

 m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 

fo
r e

s
tim

a
tin
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
.

�
W
e
 w
ill d

is
c
u
s
s
 th
e
 im

p
a
c
t o
f 

th
e
 le
g
is
la
tiv
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
ith
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il th

ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 

re
g
u
la
r m

e
e
tin
g
s
 w
ith
 s
e
n
io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t a

n
d
 th

o
s
e
 

c
h
a
rg
e
d
 w
ith
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
, 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 v
ie
w
 w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ria

te

�
W
e
 w
ill c

o
n
s
id
e
r h

o
w
 th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il h

a
s
 re

fle
c
te
d
 th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t o
f th

e
s
e
 in
 th

e
 

m
e
d
iu
m
 te
rm

 fin
a
n
c
ia
l p
la
n
 in
 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

R
e
s
ilie

n
c
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt o

f o
u
r V

fM
 

c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

�
W
e
 w
ill re

v
ie
w
 th

e
 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 in
 p
la
c
e
 fo

r th
e
 

p
ro
d
u
c
tio
n
 o
f th

e
 A
G
S

�
W
e
 w
ill re

v
ie
w
 th

e
 A
G
S
  a

n
d
 

th
e
 e
x
p
la
n
a
to
ry
 fo

re
w
o
rd
 to

 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r w

h
e
th
e
r th

e
y
 a
re
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t w

ith
 o
u
r 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e

�
W
e
 w
ill re

v
ie
w
 th

e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's

 

p
e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t th

e
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 b
u
d
g
e
t, in

c
lu
d
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
tio
n
 o
f p

e
rfo

rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t th

e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
la
n

�
W
e
 w
ill u

n
d
e
rta

k
e
 a
 re

v
ie
w
 

o
f F

in
a
n
c
ia
l R

e
s
ilie

n
c
e
 a
s
 

p
a
rt o

f o
u
r V

fM
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

�
W
e
 w
ill c

a
rry

 o
u
t w

o
rk
 o
n
 th

e
 

W
G
A
 p
a
c
k
 in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
ith
 re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts

�
W
e
 w
ill c

e
rtify

 g
ra
n
t c
la
im
s
 

a
n
d
 re

tu
rn
s
 in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
ith
 A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

re
q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts

108



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

D
e
v
is
e
 a
u
d
it s

tra
te
g
y

(p
la
n
n
e
d
 c
o
n
tro
l re

lia
n
c
e
?
)

O
u
r au

d
it ap

p
ro
achG

lo
b
a
l a

u
d
it te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

E
n
s
u
re

s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

ith
 In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a
l 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d
itin

g
 (IS

A
s
)

C
re

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 ta

ilo
rs

 

a
u
d
it p

ro
g
ra

m
s

S
to

re
s
 a

u
d
it

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tro

ls

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

th
e
 e
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 th
e
 e
n
tity

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t’s
 

fo
c
u
s

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s

E
v
a
lu
a
tin
g
 th
e
 

y
e
a
r’s
 re
s
u
lts

In
h
e
re
n
t 

ris
k
s

S
ig
n
ific
a
n
t 

ris
k
s

O
th
e
r

ris
k
s

M
a
te
ria
l 

b
a
la
n
c
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

�
T
e
s
t c
o
n
tro
ls

�
S
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
 

a
n
a
ly
tic
a
l 

re
v
ie
w

�
T
e
s
ts
 o
f d
e
ta
il

�
T
e
s
t o
f d
e
ta
il

�
S
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
 

a
n
a
ly
tic
a
l 

re
v
ie
w

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

C
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
d
 re
p
o
rt

G
e
n
e
ra
l a
u
d
it p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

ID
E

A

E
x
tra
c
t 

y
o
u
r d
a
ta

R
e
p
o
rt o

u
tp
u
t 

to
 te
a
m
s

A
n
a
ly
s
e
 d
a
ta
 

u
s
in
g
 re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
u
d
it p

la
n
 to
 

o
b
ta
in
 re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 th
a
t th

e
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 

a
s
 a
 w
h
o
le
 a
re
 fre

e
 

fro
m
 m
a
te
ria
l 

m
is
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 

p
re
p
a
re
d
 in
 a
ll 

m
a
te
ria
l
a
re
s
p
e
c
ts
 

w
ith
 th
e
 C
IP
F
A
 C
o
d
e
 

o
f P
ra
c
tic
e
 

fra
m
e
w
o
rk
 u
s
in
g
 o
u
r 

g
lo
b
a
l m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 

a
n
d
 a
u
d
it s

o
ftw

a
re

N
o

te
:

a
.

A
n

 ite
m

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

m
a

te
ria

l to
 th

e
 fin

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

if, th
ro

u
g

h
 its

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 o

r n
o

n
-

d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
, th

e
 fin

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

 lo
n

g
e

r s
h

o
w

 a
 tru

e
 a

n
d

 

fa
ir v

ie
w

.

109



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

S
ign

ifican
t risk

s id
en
tified

'S
ign

ifican
t risks o

ften
 relate to

 sign
ifican

t n
o
n
-ro

u
tin

e tran
sactio

n
s an

d
 ju

d
gm

en
tal m

atters. N
o
n
-ro

u
tin

e tran
sactio

n
s are tran

sactio
n
s th

at are u
n
u
su
al, eith

er d
u
e to

 size o
r 

n
atu

re, an
d
 th

at th
erefo

re o
ccu

r in
freq

u
en
tly. Ju

d
gm

en
tal m

atters m
ay in

clu
d
e th

e d
evelo

p
m
en
t o

f acco
u
n
tin

g estim
ates fo

r w
h
ich

 th
ere is sign

ifican
t m

easu
rem

en
t 

u
n
certain

ty' (IS
A
 315). 

In
 th

is sectio
n
 w
e o

u
tlin

e th
e sign

ifican
t risks o

f m
aterial m

isstatem
en
t w

h
ich

 w
e h

ave id
en
tified

.  T
h
ere are tw

o
 p
resu

m
ed
 sign

ifican
t risks w

h
ich

 are ap
p
licab

le to
 all au

d
its 

u
n
d
er au

d
itin

g stan
d
ard

s (In
tern

atio
n
al S

tan
d
ard

s o
n
 A
u
d
itin

g –
IS
A
s)  w

h
ich

 are listed
 b
elo

w
:

S
ig
n
ific

a
n
t ris

k
D
e
s
c
rip
tio
n

S
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
 a
u
d
it p

ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

T
h
e
re
v
e
n
u
e
 c
y
c
le
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 

fra
u
d
u
le
n
t tra

n
s
a
c
tio
n
s

U
n
d
e
r IS

A
 2
4
0
 th
e
re
 is
a
 p
re
s
u
m
e
d
 ris
k
 th
a
t re

v
e
n
u
e
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 m
is
s
ta
te
d
 d
u
e
 to
 th
e
 im
p
ro
p
e
r re

c
o
g
n
itio
n
 o
f 

re
v
e
n
u
e
.

W
o
rk
 p
la
n
n
e
d
:

�
R
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 te
s
tin
g
 o
f re

v
e
n
u
e
 re
c
o
g
n
itio
n
 p
o
lic
ie
s

�
S
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
 te
s
tin
g
 o
f m
a
te
ria
l re
v
e
n
u
e
 s
tre
a
m
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
o
v
e
r-rid

e
 o
f c
o
n
tro
ls

U
n
d
e
r
IS
A
 2
4
0
 th
e
re
 is
 a
 p
re
s
u
m
e
d
 ris
k
 th
a
t th
e
 ris
k
 o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t o
v
e
r-rid

e
 o
f c
o
n
tro
ls
 is
 p
re
s
e
n
t in
 a
ll 

e
n
titie

s
.

W
o
rk
  p
la
n
n
e
d
:

�
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f p
rio
r y
e
a
r a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 e
s
tim
a
te
s
, ju
d
g
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

�
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 e
s
tim
a
te
s
, ju
d
g
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

�
T
e
s
tin
g
 o
f jo
u
rn
a
l e
n
trie
s

�
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f u
n
u
s
u
a
l s
ig
n
ific
a
n
t tra

n
s
a
c
tio
n
s

110



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

O
th
er risk

s id
en
tified

T
h
e au

d
ito

r sh
o
u
ld
 evalu

ate th
e d

esign
 an

d
 d
eterm

in
e th

e im
p
lem

en
tatio

n
 o
f th

e en
tity's co

n
tro

ls, in
clu

d
in
g relevan

t co
n
tro

l activities, o
ver th

o
se risks fo

r w
h
ich

, in
 th

e 
au
d
ito

r's ju
d
gm

en
t, it is n

o
t p

o
ssib

le o
r p

racticab
le to

 red
u
ce th

e risks o
f m

aterial m
isstatem

en
t at th

e assertio
n
 level to

 an
 accep

tab
ly lo

w
 level w

ith
 au

d
it evid

en
ce o

b
tain

ed
 

o
n
ly fro

m
 su

b
stan

tive p
ro
ced

u
res (IS

A
 315). 

In
 th

is sectio
n
 w
e o

u
tlin

e th
e o

th
er risks o

f m
aterial m

isstatem
en
t w

h
ich

 w
e h

ave id
en
tified

 as a resu
lt o

f o
u
r p

lan
n
in
g.

O
th
e
r 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

ris
k
s

D
e
s
c
rip
tio
n

W
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 to
 d
a
te

F
u
rth
e
r w

o
rk
 p
la
n
n
e
d

O
p
e
ra
tin
g
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

C
re
d
ito
rs
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
te
d
 o
r 

n
o
t re

c
o
rd
e
d
 in
 th
e
 c
o
rre
c
t 

p
e
rio
d

�
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
lk
e
d
 th
ro
u
g
h
 th
e
 c
o
n
tro
ls
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 o
v
e
r th

is
 c
y
c
le
. In
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il in

 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 o
u
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

�
W
ith
in
th
e
 a
c
tio
n
 p
la
n
 b
e
lo
w
 w
e
h
a
v
e
 ra
is
e
d
 o
n
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio
n
 in
 re
la
tio
n
 to
 a
n
 a
u
to
m
a
tic
c
o
n
tro
l 

fa
ilu
re
 a
n
d
 o
n
e
 re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio
n
 in
 re
la
tio
n
 to
 th
e
 b
a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ilia
tio
n
.

�
C
u
t-o
ff te

s
tin
g
 a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
 y
e
a
r-e
n
d
 to
 e
n
s
u
re
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 is
 a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
 

fo
r in
 th
e
 c
o
rre
c
t p
e
rio
d

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

re
m
u
n
e
ra
tio
n

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 re
m
u
n
e
ra
tio
n
 

a
c
c
ru
a
l u
n
d
e
rs
ta
te
d

�
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
lk
e
d
 th
ro
u
g
h
 th
e
 c
o
n
tro
ls
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 o
v
e
r th

is
 c
y
c
le
. In
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il in

 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 o
u
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

�
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 ra
is
e
d
 o
n
e
 re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio
n
 w
ith
in
 th
e
 a
c
tio
n
 

p
la
n
 b
e
lo
w
 in
 re
la
tio
n
 to
 th
e
 fre

q
u
e
n
c
y
o
f re

c
o
n
c
ilia
tio
n
s
.

�
T
e
s
ts
 o
f th
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
n
e
s
s
 o
f th
e
 p
a
y
ro
ll
s
y
s
te
m
 in
te
rfa
c
e
s
 in
 th
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l le
d
g
e
r a
n
d
 c
o
n
tro
l a
c
c
o
u
n
t re
c
o
n
c
ilia
tio
n
s

�
M
o
n
th
ly
 tre

n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is

W
e
lfa
re
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re

W
e
lfa
re
 b
e
n
e
fit

e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 im
p
ro
p
e
rly

c
o
m
p
u
te
d

�
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
lk
e
d
 th
ro
u
g
h
 th
e
 c
o
n
tro
ls
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 o
v
e
r th

is
 c
y
c
le
. In
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il in

 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 o
u
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

�
O
u
r w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 is
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 w
is
h
 to
 

b
rin
g
 to
 y
o
u
r a
tte
n
tio
n
 a
t th
is
 s
ta
g
e
.

�
S
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
te
s
tin
g
 o
f a
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
c
il ta

x
 b
e
n
e
fit 

c
la
im
s

�
R
e
c
o
n
c
ile
 b
e
n
e
fit e

x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 to
 th
e
 b
e
n
e
fit s

u
b
s
id
y
 c
la
im
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
  

th
e
 im
p
a
c
t o
f a
n
y
 s
ig
n
ific
a
n
t d
iffe
re
n
c
e
s

�
C
o
m
p
le
te
 b
e
n
e
fit s

o
ftw
a
re
 d
ia
g
n
o
s
tic
 to
o
l, u
p
ra
tin
g
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly
tic
a
l re
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 to
 p
rio
r y
e
a
r s
u
b
s
id
y
 c
la
im

111



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

O
th
er risk

s id
en
tified

 co
n
tin
u
ed

T
h
e au

d
ito

r sh
o
u
ld
 evalu

ate th
e d

esign
 an

d
 d
eterm

in
e th

e im
p
lem

en
tatio

n
 o
f th

e en
tity's co

n
tro

ls, in
clu

d
in
g relevan

t co
n
tro

l activities, o
ver th

o
se risks fo

r w
h
ich

, in
 th

e 
au
d
ito

r's ju
d
gm

en
t, it is n

o
t p

o
ssib

le o
r p

racticab
le to

 red
u
ce th

e risks o
f m

aterial m
isstatem

en
t at th

e assertio
n
 level to

 an
 accep

tab
ly lo

w
 level w

ith
 au

d
it evid

en
ce o

b
tain

ed
 

o
n
ly fro

m
 su

b
stan

tive p
ro
ced

u
res (IS

A
 315). 

In
 th

is sectio
n
 w
e o

u
tlin

e th
e o

th
er risks o

f m
aterial m

isstatem
en
t w

h
ich

 w
e h

ave id
en
tified

 as a resu
lt o

f o
u
r p

lan
n
in
g.

O
th
e
r 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

ris
k
s

D
e
s
c
rip
tio
n

W
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 to
 d
a
te

F
u
rth
e
r w

o
rk
 p
la
n
n
e
d

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
t

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 tra

n
s
a
c
tio
n
s
n
o
t 

re
c
o
rd
e
d

�
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
lk
e
d
 th
ro
u
g
h
 th
e
 c
o
n
tro
ls
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 o
v
e
r th

is
 c
y
c
le
. In
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il in

 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 o
u
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

�
O
u
r w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 is
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 w
is
h
 to
 

b
rin
g
 to
 y
o
u
r a
tte
n
tio
n
 a
t th
is
 s
ta
g
e
.

�
P
re
d
ic
tiv
e
 a
n
a
ly
tic
a
l re
v
ie
w
 o
f h
o
u
s
in
g
 re
n
ts
 re
v
e
n
u
e
s

�
T
e
s
ts
 o
f th
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
n
e
s
s
 o
f th
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 re
n
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 in
te
rfa
c
e
s
 in
 th
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l le
d
g
e
r a
n
d
 c
o
n
tro
l a
c
c
o
u
n
t re
c
o
n
c
ilia
tio
n
s

�
C
u
t-o
ff te

s
tin
g

P
la
n
t,

P
ro
p
e
rty
 a
n
d
 

E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

R
e
v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
ts
n
o
t c
o
rre
c
t

�
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
a
lk
e
d
 th
ro
u
g
h
 th
e
 c
o
n
tro
ls
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 o
v
e
r th

is
 c
y
c
le
. In
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 b
y
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il in

 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 o
u
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

�
O
u
r w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 is
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 w
is
h
 to
 

b
rin
g
 to
 y
o
u
r a
tte
n
tio
n
 a
t th
is
 s
ta
g
e
.

�
E
v
a
lu
a
te
 th
e
 q
u
a
lific

a
tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 o
f th
e
v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 e
x
p
e
rt 

�
S
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv
e
te
s
tin
g
 o
f a
ll a
s
s
e
ts
 re
-v
a
lu
e
d
, a
g
re
e
in
g
 to
 v
a
lu
a
tio
n
 

c
e
rtific

a
te
s

�
E
n
s
u
re
 a
s
s
e
ts
 n
o
t re

-v
a
lu
e
d
 in
-y
e
a
r a
re
 n
o
t m
a
te
ria
lly
 m
is
s
ta
te
d

112



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

V
alu
e fo

r m
o
n
ey

V
a
lu

e
 fo

r m
o
n
e
y

T
h
e A

u
d
it C

o
m
m
issio

n
's C

o
d
e o

f A
u
d
it P

ractice req
u
ires u

s to
 issu

e a co
n
clu

sio
n
 

o
n
 w
h
eth

er th
e C

o
u
n
cil h

as p
u
t in

 p
lace p

ro
p
er arran

gem
en
ts fo

r secu
rin

g 
eco

n
o
m
y, efficien

cy an
d
 effectiven

ess in
 its u

se o
f reso

u
rces. T

h
is is kn

o
w
n
 as th

e 
V
alu

e fo
r M

o
n
ey (V

fM
) co

n
clu

sio
n
. 

O
u
r V

fM
 co

n
clu

sio
n
 is b

ased
 o
n
 th

e fo
llo

w
in
g criteria sp

ecified
 b
y th

e A
u
d
it 

C
o
m
m
issio

n
:

W
e h

ave u
n
d
ertaken

 a risk assessm
en
t to

 id
en
tify areas o

f risk to
 o
u
r V

fM
 

co
n
clu

sio
n
. W

e w
ill u

n
d
ertake w

o
rk in

 th
e fo

llo
w
in
g areas to

 ad
d
ress th

e risks 
id
en
tified

:

•
F
o
llo

w
 u
p
 th

e p
ro
gress th

e C
o
u
n
cil h

as m
ad
e in

 im
p
lem

en
tin

g th
e 

reco
m
m
en
d
atio

n
s raised

 in
 o
u
r 2012/

13 F
in
an
cial R

esilien
ce rep

o
rt

•
R
eview

 th
e revised

 M
ed
iu
m
 T
erm

 F
in
an
cial P

lan
 in

 th
e ligh

t o
f th

e L
o
cal 

G
o
vern

m
en
t fin

an
ce settlem

en
t an

d
 tran

sfer fro
m
 th

e H
o
u
sin

g R
even

u
e 

A
cco

u
n
t

T
h
e resu

lts o
f o

u
r V

fM
 au

d
it w

o
rk an

d
 th

e key m
essages arisin

g w
ill b

e rep
o
rted

 
in
 o
u
r A

u
d
it F

in
d
in
gs rep

o
rt an

d
 in

 th
e A

n
n
u
al A

u
d
it L

etter.  W
e w

ill d
iscu

ss an
d
 

agree w
ith

 o
fficers w

h
eth

er to
 issu

e a sep
arate rep

o
rt in

 resp
ect o

f V
fM

 w
ith

 
d
etailed

 fin
d
in
gs.

V
fM

 c
r
ite

r
ia

F
o

c
u

s
 o

f th
e
 c

r
ite

r
ia

T
h
e o

rgan
isatio

n
 h
as p

ro
p
er 

arran
gem

en
ts in

 p
lace fo

r secu
rin

g 
fin

an
cial resilien

ce

T
h
e o

rgan
isatio

n
 h
as ro

b
u
st system

s an
d
 

p
ro
cesses to

 m
an
age fin

an
cial risks an

d
 

o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ities effectively, an

d
 to

 secu
re a 

stab
le fin

an
cial p

o
sitio

n
 th

at en
ab
les it to

 
co
n
tin

u
e to

 o
p
erate fo

r th
e fo

reseeab
le 

fu
tu
re

T
h
e o

rgan
isatio

n
 h
as p

ro
p
er 

arran
gem

en
ts fo

r ch
allen

gin
g h

o
w
 

it secu
res eco

n
o
m
y, efficien

cy an
d
 

effectiven
ess

T
h
e o

rgan
isatio

n
 is p

rio
ritisin

g its 
reso

u
rces w

ith
in
 tigh

ter b
u
d
gets, fo

r 
exam

p
le b

y ach
ievin

g co
st red

u
ctio

n
s an

d
 

b
y im

p
ro
vin

g efficien
cy an

d
 p
ro
d
u
ctivity

113



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

R
esu

lts o
f in

terim
 au

d
it w

o
rk

T
h
e fin

d
in
gs o

f o
u
r in

terim
 au

d
it w

o
rk, an

d
 th

e im
p
act o

f o
u
r fin

d
in
gs o

n
 th

e acco
u
n
ts au

d
it ap

p
ro
ach

, are su
m
m
arised

 in
 th

e tab
le b

elo
w
:

W
o
rk
p
e
rfo
rm
e
d
 a
n
d
 fin

d
in
g
s

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 re
v
ie
w
e
d
 in
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
it's
 o
v
e
ra
ll a
rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 in
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 a
u
d
itin
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. O
u
r w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
a
n
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 w
is
h
 to
 b
rin
g
 to
 y
o
u
r a
tte
n
tio
n
.  

W
e
 a
ls
o
 re
v
ie
w
e
d
 in
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
it's
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's
 k
e
y
 fin
a
n
c
ia
l 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 to
 d
a
te
. W

e
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 s
ig
n
ific
a
n
t w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
tin
g
 o
n
 o
u
r re

s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
. 

O
v
e
ra
ll, w

e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 th
a
t th
e
 in
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
it s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
o
n
tin
u
e
s
 to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t a
n
d
 s
a
tis
fa
c
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 to
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il a
n
d
 th
a
t in
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
it w

o
rk
 c
o
n
trib
u
te
s
 to
 a
n
 

e
ffe
c
tiv
e
 in
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
l e
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
t a
t th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.

O
u
r re

v
ie
w
 o
f in
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
it w

o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 im
p
a
c
t o
n
 o
u
r a
u
d
it a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

W
a
lk
th
ro
u
g
h
te
s
tin
g

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
a
lk
th
ro
u
g
h
 te
s
ts
 o
f c
o
n
tro
ls
 o
p
e
ra
tin
g
 in
 a
re
a
s
 

w
h
e
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r th
a
t  th

e
re
 is
 a
 ris
k
 o
f m
a
te
ria
l m
is
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t to
 

th
e
 fin
a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
. 

O
u
r w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
a
n
y
 is
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 w
is
h
 to
 b
rin
g
 to
 y
o
u
r 

a
tte
n
tio
n
. In
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
ith
 o
u
r d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
. 

O
u
r w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 im
p
a
c
t o
n
 

o
u
r a
u
d
it a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
to
 d
a
te
.

H
o
w
e
v
e
r, a

 n
u
m
b
e
r o
f
m
in
o
r is
s
u
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
s
 

ra
is
e
d
 w
ith
in
 th
e
 a
c
tio
n
 p
la
n
 a
t A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 to
 th
is
 re
p
o
rt.

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f in

fo
rm
a
tio
n
 te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y

c
o
n
tro
ls

O
u
r in
fo
rm
a
tio
n
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t
w
ill p

e
rfo
rm
 a
 h
ig
h
 le
v
e
l re
v
ie
w
 o
f 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l IT
 c
o
n
tro
l e
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
t, a
s
 p
a
rt o

f th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll re

v
ie
w
 o
f 

th
e
 in
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
ls
 s
y
s
te
m
. W

e
 w
ill a

ls
o
 p
e
rfo
rm
 a
 fo
llo
w
 u
p
 o
f th
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 th
a
t w
e
re
 ra
is
e
d
 la
s
t
y
e
a
r. 

IT
 (in
fo
rm
a
tio
n
 te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
) c
o
n
tro
ls
 w
ill b

e
 o
b
s
e
rv
e
d
 to
 c
o
n
firm

 th
e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 o
u
r d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
.

T
h
e
 re
s
u
lts
 o
f th
is
 w
o
rk
 a
re
c
u
rre
n
tly
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
.  If a

n
y
 is
s
u
e
s
 

a
re
 id
e
n
tifie

d
 th
a
t re

q
u
ire
 re
p
o
rtin
g
, th
e
s
e
 w
ill b

e
 re
p
o
rte
d
 

w
ith
in
 th
e
 A
u
d
it F
in
d
in
g
s
 R
e
p
o
rt a

t th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f th
e
 a
u
d
it.

J
o
u
rn
a
l e
n
try
 c
o
n
tro
ls

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 re
v
ie
w
e
d
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's
 jo
u
rn
a
l e
n
try
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt o

f d
e
te
rm
in
in
g
 o
u
r jo
u
rn
a
l e
n
try
 te
s
tin
g
 s
tra
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 m
a
te
ria
l w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 lik
e
ly
 to
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 im
p
a
c
t o
n
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's
 c
o
n
tro
l e
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
t o
r fin

a
n
c
ia
l 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
.

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
o
u
r u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f th
e
 jo
u
rn
a
l p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. O
u
r w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
t id
e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
y
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

im
p
a
c
t o
n
 o
u
r a
u
d
it a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
to
 d
a
te
.

W
e
 w
ill u

n
d
e
rta
k
e
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 te
s
tin
g
 o
n
 jo
u
rn
a
l tra

n
s
a
c
tio
n
s
  b
y
 

e
x
tra
c
tin
g
 a
n
d
 te
s
tin
g
 'u
n
u
s
u
a
l' e
n
trie
s
 p
o
s
te
d
 d
u
rin
g
 th
e
 y
e
a
r.

114



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

T
h

e
 a

u
d

it c
y
c

le

K
ey d

ates

C
o

m
p

le
tio

n
/

re
p

o
rtin

g
 

D
e
b

rie
f

In
te

rim
 a

u
d

it 

v
is

it

F
in

a
l a

c
c
o

u
n

ts

V
is

it

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 2
0
1
4

O
c
to
b
e
r 2
0
1
4

K
e

y
 p

h
a

s
e

s
 o

f o
u

r a
u

d
it

2
0
1
3
-2
0
1
4

D
a

te
A

c
tiv

ity

J
a
n
u
a
ry
2
0
1
4

P
la
n
n
in
g

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4

In
te
rim
 s
ite
 v
is
it

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4

P
re
s
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f th
e
A
u
d
it P

la
n
 to
 th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
itte
e

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
4

Y
e
a
r e
n
d
 fie
ld
w
o
rk

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
1
4

A
u
d
it fin

d
in
g
s
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 m
e
e
tin
g
 w
ith
 D
ire
c
to
r o
f F
in
a
n
c
e
, H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ity

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 2
0
1
4

R
e
p
o
rt a

u
d
it
fin
d
in
g
s
 to
 th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 w
ith
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 (th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
itte
e
)

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 2
0
1
4

S
ig
n
 fin
a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
p
in
io
n

115



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

F
e

e
s

£

C
o

u
n

cil a
u

d
it

7
0

,6
8

0

G
ra

n
t ce

rtifica
tio

n
1

9
,2

0
0

T
o

tal fees (exclu
d

in
g

 V
A

T
)

89,880

F
ees an

d
 in
d
ep
en
d
en
ce

O
u

r fe
e

 a
s
s
u

m
p

tio
n

s
 in

c
lu

d
e

:

�
S
u
p
p
o
rtin

g sch
ed
u
les to

 all figu
res in

 th
e acco

u
n
ts 

are su
p
p
lied

 b
y th

e agreed
 d
ates an

d
 in

 acco
rd
an
ce 

w
ith

 th
e agreed

 u
p
o
n
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 req

u
est list

�
T
h
e sco

p
e o

f th
e au

d
it, an

d
 th

e C
o
u
n
cil an

d
 its 

activities, h
ave n

o
t ch

an
ged

 sign
ifican

tly

�
T
h
e C

o
u
n
cil w

ill m
ake availab

le m
an
agem

en
t an

d
 

acco
u
n
tin

g staff to
 h
elp

 u
s lo

cate in
fo
rm

atio
n
 an

d
 

to
 p
ro
vid

e exp
lan

atio
n
s

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 e
th

ic
s

W
e co

n
firm

 th
at th

ere are n
o
 sign

ifican
t facts o

r m
atters th

at im
p
act o

n
 o
u
r in

d
ep
en
d
en
ce as au

d
ito

rs th
at w

e are 
req

u
ired

 o
r w

ish
 to

 d
raw

 to
 yo

u
r atten

tio
n
. W

e h
ave co

m
p
lied

 w
ith

 th
e A

u
d
itin

g P
ractices B

o
ard

's E
th
ical 

S
tan

d
ard

s an
d
 th

erefo
re w

e co
n
firm

 th
at w

e are in
d
ep
en
d
en
t an

d
 are ab

le to
 exp

ress an
 o
b
jective o

p
in
io
n
 o
n
 th

e 
fin

an
cial statem

en
ts.

F
u
ll d

etails o
f all fees ch

arged
 fo

r au
d
it an

d
 n
o
n
-au

d
it services w

ill b
e in

clu
d
ed
 in

 o
u
r A

u
d
it F

in
d
in
gs rep

o
rt at th

e 
co
n
clu

sio
n
 o
f th

e au
d
it.

W
e co

n
firm

 th
at w

e h
ave im

p
lem

en
ted

 p
o
licies an

d
 p
ro
ced

u
res to

 m
eet th

e req
u
irem

en
t o

f th
e A

u
d
itin

g P
ractices 

B
o
ard

's E
th
ical S

tan
d
ard

s.

F
e

e
s
 fo

r o
th

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

s

S
ervice

£

N
o

n
e

N
il

116



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

C
o
m
m
u
n
icatio

n
 o
f au

d
it m

atters w
ith
 th
o
se ch

arg
ed
 w
ith
 g
o
vern

an
ce

O
u
r c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
tio
n
 p
la
n

A
u
d
it 

p
la
n

A
u
d
it 

fin
d
in
g
s

R
e
s
p
e
c
tiv
e
 re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
 o
f a
u
d
ito
r a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t/th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 

w
ith
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

�

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 s
c
o
p
e
 a
n
d
 tim

in
g
 o
f th
e
 a
u
d
it. F

o
rm
, tim

in
g
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
l c
o
n
te
n
t o
f c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
tio
n
s

�

V
ie
w
s
 a
b
o
u
t th
e
 q
u
a
lita
tiv
e
 a
s
p
e
c
ts
  o
f th
e
 e
n
tity
's
a
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 a
n
d
 

fin
a
n
c
ia
l re
p
o
rtin
g
 p
ra
c
tic
e
s
, s
ig
n
ific
a
n
t m
a
tte
rs
 a
n
d
 is
s
u
e
 a
ris
in
g
 d
u
rin
g
 

th
e
 a
u
d
it a
n
d
 w
ritte

n
 re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
tio
n
s
 th
a
t h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
o
u
g
h
t

�

C
o
n
firm

a
tio
n
 o
f in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
tiv
ity

�
�

A
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t th
a
t w
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
lie
d
 w
ith
  re

le
v
a
n
t e
th
ic
a
l re
q
u
ire
m
e
n
ts
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
,  re

la
tio
n
s
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r m

a
tte
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 m
ig
h
t  

b
e
 th
o
u
g
h
t to
 b
e
a
r o
n
 in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 

D
e
ta
ils
 o
f n
o
n
-a
u
d
it w

o
rk
 p
e
rfo
rm
e
d
 b
y
 G
ra
n
t T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P
 a
n
d
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
 firm

s
, to
g
e
th
e
r w
ith
  fe
e
s
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
.  

D
e
ta
ils
 o
f s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
s
 a
p
p
lie
d
 to
 th
re
a
ts
 to
 in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

�
�

M
a
te
ria
l w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 in
 in
te
rn
a
l c
o
n
tro
l id
e
n
tifie

d
 d
u
rin
g
 th
e
 a
u
d
it

�

Id
e
n
tific

a
tio
n
 o
r s
u
s
p
ic
io
n
 o
f fra

u
d
 in
v
o
lv
in
g
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t a
n
d
/o
r o
th
e
rs
 

w
h
ic
h
 re
s
u
lts
 in
 m
a
te
ria
l m
is
s
ta
te
m
e
n
t o
f th
e
 fin
a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

�

N
o
n
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
ith
 la
w
s
 a
n
d
 re
g
u
la
tio
n
s

�

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 m
o
d
ific
a
tio
n
s
 to
 th
e
 a
u
d
ito
r's
 re
p
o
rt, o

r e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
f m
a
tte
r

�

U
n
c
o
rre
c
te
d
 m
is
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

�

S
ig
n
ific
a
n
t m
a
tte
rs
 a
ris
in
g
 in
 c
o
n
n
e
c
tio
n
 w
ith
 re
la
te
d
 p
a
rtie
s

�

S
ig
n
ific
a
n
t m
a
tte
rs
 in
 re
la
tio
n
 to
 g
o
in
g
 c
o
n
c
e
rn

�

In
te
rn
a
tio
n
a
l S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
n
 A
u
d
itin
g
  (IS

A
) 2
6
0
, a
s
 w
e
ll a
s
 o
th
e
r IS

A
s
, p
re
s
c
rib
e
 m
a
tte
rs
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 a
re
 re
q
u
ire
d
 to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 w
ith
 th
o
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 w
ith
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
, a
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 

w
e
 s
e
t o
u
t in
 th
e
 ta
b
le
 o
p
p
o
s
ite
.  

T
h
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t, T
h
e
 A
u
d
it P

la
n
, o
u
tlin
e
s
 o
u
r a
u
d
it s
tra
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
 to
 d
e
liv
e
r th

e
 a
u
d
it, 

w
h
ile
 T
h
e
 A
u
d
it F
in
d
in
g
s
 w
ill b

e
 is
s
u
e
d
 p
rio
r to

 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l o
f th
e
 fin
a
n
c
ia
l s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
  a
n
d
 

w
ill p

re
s
e
n
t k
e
y
 is
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r m

a
tte
rs
 a
ris
in
g
 fro

m
 th
e
 a
u
d
it, to

g
e
th
e
r w
ith
 a
n
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
tio
n
 a
s
 to
 h
o
w
 th
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 re
s
o
lv
e
d
.

W
e
 w
ill c

o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 a
n
y
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 o
r u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 fin
d
in
g
s
 a
ffe
c
tin
g
 th
e
 a
u
d
it o
n
 a
 tim

e
ly
 

b
a
s
is
, e
ith
e
r in
fo
rm
a
lly
 o
r v
ia
 a
 re
p
o
rt to

 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.

R
e

s
p

e
c

tiv
e

 re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ilitie
s

T
h
is
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 in
 th
e
 c
o
n
te
x
t o
f th
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t o
f R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
 o
f 

A
u
d
ito
rs
 a
n
d
 A
u
d
ite
d
 B
o
d
ie
s
 is
s
u
e
d
 b
y
 th
e
 A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 (w
w
w
.a
u
d
it-

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
.g
o
v
.u
k
). 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 a
s
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's
 in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t e
x
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
ito
rs
 b
y
 th
e
 A
u
d
it 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
, th
e
 b
o
d
y
 re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 fo
r a
p
p
o
in
tin
g
 e
x
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
ito
rs
 to
 lo
c
a
l p
u
b
lic
 b
o
d
ie
s
 

in
 E
n
g
la
n
d
. A
s
 e
x
te
rn
a
l a
u
d
ito
rs
, w
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
 b
ro
a
d
 re
m
it c
o
v
e
rin
g
 fin
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 m
a
tte
rs
. 

O
u
r a
n
n
u
a
l w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 is
 s
e
t in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith
 th
e
 C
o
d
e
 o
f A
u
d
it P

ra
c
tic
e
 (th
e
 

C
o
d
e
) is
s
u
e
d
 b
y
 th
e
 A
u
d
it C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 in
c
lu
d
e
s
 n
a
tio
n
a
lly
 p
re
s
c
rib
e
d
 a
n
d
 lo
c
a
lly
 

d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 w
o
rk
. O
u
r w
o
rk
 c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il's
 k
e
y
 ris
k
s
 w
h
e
n
 re
a
c
h
in
g
 o
u
r 

c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 u
n
d
e
r th

e
 C
o
d
e
. 

It is
 th
e
 re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ility

 o
f th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il to

 e
n
s
u
re
 th
a
t p
ro
p
e
r a
rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 in
 p
la
c
e
 fo
r 

th
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t o
f its

 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
, a
n
d
 th
a
t p
u
b
lic
 m
o
n
e
y
 is
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rly
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
 fo
r.  W

e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 h
o
w
 th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il is

 fu
lfillin

g
 th
e
s
e
 re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ilitie

s
. 

117



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

A
p

p
en

d
ices

118



©
  2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

   |

A
ctio

n
 p
lan

P
rio

rity
H

ig
h

-
S

ig
n
ific

a
n
t e

ffe
c
t o

n
 c

o
n
tro

l s
y
s
te

m
M

e
d
iu

m
-

E
ffe

c
t o

n
 c

o
n
tro

l s
y
s
te

m
L
o
w

-
B

e
s
t p

ra
c
tic

e

R
e
c

N
o
.

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio
n

P
rio
rity

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t re

s
p
o
n
s
e

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
d
a
te
 &
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ility

1
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il s

h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 th
e
 b
a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ilia

tio
n
 is
 k
e
p
t u
p
 to
 d
a
te
o
n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly 

b
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 a
n
y o

n
-g
o
in
g
 v
a
ria
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 c
le
a
re
d
.

M
e
d
iu
m

T
h
e
 im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f th

e
 e
-fin

a
n
c
ia
ls
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 h
a
s
 

s
lig
h
tly d

e
la
ye
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 to
 b
rin
g
 th
e
 b
a
n
k
 re

c
o
n
c
ilia

tio
n
 

u
p
-to

-d
a
te
 b
u
t w

o
rk
 is
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 th

is
.

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
4

2
P
a
yro

ll re
c
o
n
c
ilia

tio
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 

a
 tim

e
ly
b
a
s
is
 in
 lin

e
 w
ith
 th

e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

fre
q
u
e
n
c
y o

f re
v
ie
w
.

M
e
d
iu
m

M
o
n
th
ly re

c
o
n
c
ilia

tio
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
.

A
c
c
o
u
n
tin
g
 T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia
n
 

O
n
-g
o
in
g

3
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il s

h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 th
a
t th

e
 s
ys
te
m
 

c
o
n
tro

ls
 w
ith
in
 th

e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
P
a
ya
b
le
 s
ys
te
m
 

o
v
e
r th

e
 e
n
te
rin
g
 o
f a
n
 in
v
o
ic
e
 d
a
te
 is
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 c
o
rre

c
tly.

M
e
d
iu
m

S
ys
te
m
 c
o
n
tro

ls
 to
 b
e
 re

v
ie
w
 w
ith
 E
K
S
 IC

T
.

C
re
d
ito
rs
 O
ffic

e
r

A
p
ril 2

0
1
4

119



©
 2014 G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

. A
ll rights reserved. 

'G
rant T

hornton' m
eans G

rant T
hornton U

K
 LLP

, a lim
ited 

liability
partnership. 

G
rant T

hornton is a m
em

ber firm
 of G

rant T
hornton Internation

al Ltd 
(G

rant
T
hornton International). R

eferences to 'G
rant T

hornton' are 
to the brand under w

hich the G
rant T

hornton m
em

ber firm
s operate 

and refer to one or m
ore m

em
ber firm

s, as the context requires. 
G
rant T

hornton International and the m
em

ber firm
s are not a 

w
orldw

ide partnership. S
ervices are delivered independe

ntly by 
m
em

ber firm
s, w

hich are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. G

rant T
hornton International does not provide 

services to clients. 

g
ran

t-th
o
rn
to
n
.co

.u
k

120


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 19/11/2013 Governance Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 05/12/2013 Governance Committee

	5 INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY UPDATE REPORT
	6 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014-15
	Annex A - DDC 3 year strategic plan 2014-17

	7 INTERNAL AUDIT SELF-ASSESSMENT AGAINST THE PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS
	8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT QUARTER THREE REPORT
	Appendix 1 Q3 Treasury Management Report 2013-14
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	9 CERTIFICATION REPORT 2012-13
	10 CERTIFICATION WORK PLAN 2013-14
	11 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE - MARCH 2014
	12 AUDIT PLAN 2013-14

